

Government of India Ministry of Jal Shakti, Department of Water Resources, River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation Central Ground Water Board

NATIONAL HYDROLOGY PROJECT Central Ground Water Board, Bhujal Bhawan, NIT-IV, Faridabad (Haryana)-121001 Phone No: 0129-2477186, 0129-2477102

E mail id: seop-cgwb@nic.in

NATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING FOR SOTH-2 ZONE

NIET No: 10/2019-20/MMS

e-Tender Inquiry for the Supply, Installation, Commissioning of DWLRs and telemetry including security arrangements, establishment of Data Acquisition system & its maintenance for Real Time Ground Water Level monitoring and supply of Ground water level, ground water temperature data from site and receipt of data at Regional Office Data Centre (RODC), Chennai, in a desired format from 475 observation wells (Piezometers wells) in the states of Tamilnadu & UT of Puducherry through telemetry systems with 05 years warranty and 02 years AMC.

Government of India Ministry of Jal Shakti, Department of Water Resources, River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation Central Ground Water Board NATIONAL HYDROLOGY PROJECT

1. NAME OF WORK : The Supply, Installation, Commissioning of DWLRs and telemetry including security arrangements, establishment of Data Acquisition system & its maintenance for Real Time Ground Water Level monitoring and supply of Ground water level, ground water temperature data from site and receipt of data at Regional Office Data Centre (RODC), Chennai, in a desired format from 475 observation wells (Piezometers wells) in the states of Tamilnadu & UT of Puducherry through telemetry systems with 05 years warranty and 02 years AMC with an estimated cost of Rs 5,70,00,000/-

	INVITING	:	THE CHAIRMAN,
BIDS			Central Ground Water Board,
			Government of India,
			Bhujal Bhawan, NH-IV, Faridabad-121001
			Phone No : :01292477186 FAX: 0129-2477200
			E mail id: seop-cgwb@nic.in
3. PLACE C	-	:	Central Ground Water Board,
ING OF BI	DS		Bhujal Bhawan, NH-IV, Faridabad-121001

:

4. CRITICAL DATE

S. No	Description		Date	Time
1	Dates of Online Publication of Tend	er	29/02/2020	1300 Hrs.
	Documents in CPP portal			
2	Dates of Tender Document	Start	29/02/2020	1400 Hrs.
	Download			
		End	03/04/2020	1300 Hrs.
3	Deadline for seeking further informat	ion/	13/03/2020	1630 Hrs.
	clarifications through email			
4	Date of Pre-Bid Meeting		18/03/2020	1500Hrs.
5	Dates of Online Submission of	Start	29/02/2020	1600 Hrs.
	Tender			
		End	03/04/2020	1600 Hrs.

6	Deadline for Physical Submission of Cost of Tender Documents and EMD/ Bid Security to purchasers address	03/04/2020	1500 Hrs.
7	Time and Date for Opening of Technical Bid	07/04/2020	1615 Hrs.
8	Time and Date for Opening of Financial Bid	Will be commu after technical	

- 5. Bids shall be received online only at the website of CPP portal https://eprocure.gov.in/eprocure/app
- 6. Aspiring bidders who have not enrolled/ registered in CPP portal are advised to enroll/ register before participating through the portal. The portal enrolment is free of cost. The bidders are advised to go through the instructions provided at Annexure A: 'Instructions for online bid submission'.
- 7. The bidders will be at liberty to be present either in person or through an authorized representative, who must carry 'Bid Acknowledgement Receipt', at the time of opening of bid or can view the bid opening event online at their remote end.

Regional Director (Engineering) For and on behalf of the President of India

Date:

SECTION I: INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB)

NATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING FOR

The Supply, Installation, Commissioning of DWLRs and telemetry including security arrangements, establishment of Data Acquisition system & its maintenance for Real Time Ground Water Level monitoring and supply of Ground water level, ground water temperature data from site and receipt of data at Regional Office Data Centre (RODC), Chennai, in a desired format from 475 observation wells (Piezometers wells) in the states of Tamilnadu & UT of Puducherry through telemetry systems with 05 years warranty and 02 years AMC

IBRD Loan No.8725--IN

- 1. This Invitation for Bid follows the General Procurement Notice for this Project that appeared in Development Business on 09.03.2017
- 2. The Government of India has received financing from the World Bank towards the cost of National Hydrology project and it is intended that part of the proceeds will be applied to eligible payments under the contract for which this Invitation for Bids is issued.
- 3. The Chairman, Central Ground Water Board, Faridabad invites online bids from eligible bidders for the Supply, Installation, Commissioning of DWLRs and telemetry including security arrangements, establishment of Data Acquisition system & its maintenance for Real Time Ground Water Level monitoring and supply of Ground water level, ground water temperature data from site and receipt of data at Regional Office Data Centre (RODC), Chennai, in a desired format from 475 observation wells (Piezometers wells) in the states of Tamilnadu & UT of Puducherry through telemetry systems with 05 years warranty and 02 years AMC (Annual Maintenance Contract)
- 4. Bidding will be conducted through the National Competitive Bidding (NCB) procedures agreed with World Bank. The bidding is open to all eligible bidders as defined in the Bank's Procurement Guidelines. In addition, please refer to paragraphs 1.6 and 1.7 of the Guidelines setting forth the World Bank's policy on conflict of interest.
- 5. Bidding documents are available online on <u>https://eprocure.gov.in/eprocure/app</u>. The non-refundable fee for tender document in the form of Demand Draft/ Cheque/Bankers Cheque on any Scheduled/ Nationalized bank payable at Faridabad in favor of DDO, CGWB, Faridabad. The bidders are responsible for ensuring any addenda available on the website is also downloaded and incorporated accordingly.

a.	Tender document fee (non-refundable)	: Rs. 1,000/- (Rs. One Thousand only)
b.	Bid Security-	: Rs 57,00,000/-

c. Date of commencement of downloading of : 29/02/2020 at 14:00 Hrs bidding document

- d. Last date for downloading of bidding document : 03/04/2020 at 13:00 Hrs server time
- e. Last date and time for receipt of bids : 03/04/2020 at 16:00 Hrs server time.
- f. Time and date of opening of bids
- : 07/04/2020 at 16:15 Hrs server time
- The bidding is through on line only (CPPP), the bidder is required to have Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) from one of the authorized Certifying Authorities, authorised by Government of India for issuing DSC. Aspiring bidders who have not obtained the user ID and password for participating in eprocurement in this Project, may obtain the same from the website: <u>https://eprocure.gov.in/</u> <u>eprocure/app</u>.
- 7. Bid security of the amount specified in the bidding document, drawn in favor of DDO, CGWB, Faridabad must be submitted as per the procedure described in paragraph 8 below. The Bid security shall be valid for 60 days beyond the validity of the bid. Bids must be submitted online on<u>https://eprocure.gov.in/eprocure/app</u> on or before deadline of tender submission, and will be opened online on the specified time and date for opening of bids. Any bid or modifications to bid (including discount) received outside e-procurement system will not be considered. If the office happens to be closed on the date of opening of the bids will be opened on the next working day at the same time. The electronic bidding system would not allow any late submission of bids.
- 8. Bids must be submitted online on https//:www.eprocure.gov.in on or before the date and time for receipt of bids, and the 'Technical Part' of bids will be opened online on the specified time and date for opening of bids, as given above. The "Financial Part" shall remain unopened in the e-procurement system until the second public Bid opening for the financial part. Any bid or modifications to bid (including discount) received outside e-procurement system will not be considered. If the office happens to be closed on the date of opening of the bids as specified, the bids will be opened on the next working day at the same time. The electronic bidding system would not allow any late submission of bids.
- 9. The bidders are required to submit (a) original demand drafts towards the fee of bid document and registration on e-procurement website (if not previously registered); (b) original bid security in approved form; and (c) original affidavit regarding correctness of information furnished in the bid document submitted to The Chairman, CGWB, CHQ, Bhujal Bhawan, Faridabad, before the opening of the Bid, either by registered post/speed post/courier or by hand, failing which the bids will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened.
- 10. Other details can be seen in the bidding document. The Purchaser shall not be held liable for any delays due to system failure beyond its control. Even though the system will attempt to notify the bidders of any bid updates, the Purchaser shall not be liable for any information not received by the bidder. It is the bidders' responsibility to verify the website for the latest information related to this bid from time to time.

Seal of Office & Address The Regional Director (Engineering), Central Ground Water Board, Government of India, Bhujal Bhawan, NH-IV, Faridabad-121001 Phone No: 0129--2477186 FAX: 0129-2477200

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES	8
SECTION I - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS [ITB]	9
SECTION II - BIDDING DATA SHEET	
SECTION III. EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION CRITERIA	40
SECTION IV – BIDDING FORMS	46
SECTION V. – ELIGIBLE COUNTRIES	63
SECTION- VI. BANK POLICY - CORRUPT AND FRAUDULENT PRACTICES	64
PART 2 - SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS	66
SECTION VII – SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS	67
PART 3 – CONTRACT	128
SECTION VIII – GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	129
SECTION IX. SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	148
SECTION X – CONTRACT FORMS	162

PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES

SECTION I - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS [ITB]

Section I. Instructions to Bidders

Table of Clauses

A. GE	ENERAL		12
	1.	SCOPE OF BID	
	2.	Source of Funds	
	3.	CORRUPT & FRAUDULENT PRACTICES	12
	4.	Eligible Bidders	13
	5.	ELIGIBLE GOODS AND RELATED SERVICES	15
B. CC	ONTENTS	S OF BIDDING DOCUMENT	15
	6.	SECTIONS OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS	15
	7.	CLARIFICATION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS	16
	8.	Amendment of Bidding Documents	16
C. PR	REPARA	FION OF BIDS	17
	9.	Cost of Bidding	17
	10.	LANGUAGE OF BID	
	11.	DOCUMENTS COMPRISING THE BID	17
	12.	PROCESS OF BID SUBMISSION	18
	13.	ALTERNATIVE BIDS	
	14.	BID PRICES AND DISCOUNTS	
	15.	CURRENCIES OF BID& PAYMENT	20
	16.	DOCUMENTS ESTABLISHING THE ELIGIBILITY AND CONFORMITY OF THE GOODS AND RELATED	
	Servic	XES	
	17.	DOCUMENTS ESTABLISHING THE ELIGIBILITY & QUALIFICATIONS OF THE BIDDER	
	18	Period of Validity of Bids	
	19	BID SECURITY	
	20	FORMAT AND SIGNING OF BID	
D. ON		IBMISSION OF BIDS	
	21	PREPARATION OF BIDS	
	22	DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF BIDS	
	23	LATE BIDS	
	24	WITHDRAWAL, SUBSTITUTION, AND MODIFICATION OF BIDS	
	25	PUBLIC OPENING OF TECHNICAL PARTS OF BIDS	
E. EV	-	ON OF BIDS – GENERAL PROVISIONS	
	26		
	27	CLARIFICATION OF BIDS	
	28	DEVIATIONS, RESERVATIONS, OMISSIONS	
	29	NON-CONFORMITIES, ERRORS AND OMISSIONS	
	30	EVALUATION OF TECHNICAL PARTS	
	31	DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIVENESS	
	32	QUALIFICATION OF THE BIDDERS	
	33	PUBLIC OPENING OF FINANCIAL PARTS.	
	35	CORRECTION OF ARITHMETICAL ERRORS	31

	36	CONVERSION TO SINGLE CURRENCY	31
	37	MARGIN OF DOMESTIC PREFERENCE	
	38	COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL PARTS	31
	39	PURCHASER'S RIGHT TO ACCEPT ANY BID, AND TO REJECT ANY OR ALL BIDS	32
J. AWA	RD OF	CONTRACT	
	40	Award Criteria	32
	41	PURCHASER'S RIGHT TO VARY QUANTITIES AT TIME OF AWARD	32
	42	NOTIFICATION OF AWARD	32
	PUBLICA	ATION OF AWARD	32
	RECOUR	RSE TO UNSUCCESSFUL BIDDERS	32
	43	SIGNING OF CONTRACT	33
	44	Performance Security	33

Section I. Instructions to Bidders

A. General

- Scope of Bid
 1.1 The Purchaser indicated in the Bidding Data Sheet (BDS), issues these Bidding Documents for the supply of Goods and Related Services incidental thereto as specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements. The name, identification and number of lots (contracts) of this National Competitive Bidding (NCB) procurement are specified in the BDS.
 - 1.2 Throughout these Bidding Documents:
 - the term "in writing" means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, fax, telex, including if **specified in the BDS**, distributed or received through the electronic-procurement system used by the Employer) with proof of receipt;
 - (b) if the context so requires, "singular" means "plural" and vice versa; and
 - (c) "day" means calendar day.
- 2. Source of Funds 2.1 The Government of India (hereinafter called "Borrower") specified in the BDS has applied for or received financing (hereinafter called "funds") from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development or the International Development Association (hereinafter called "the Bank") in an amount specified in BDS toward the project named in the BDS. The Borrower intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract for which these Bidding Documents are issued.
 - 2.2 Payment by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the Bank in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Loan (or other financing) Agreement. The Loan (or other financing) Agreement prohibits a withdrawal from the loan or other financing) account for the purpose of any payment to persons or entities, or for any import of goods, if such payment or import, to the knowledge of the Bank, is prohibited by decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. No party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights from the Loan (or other financing) Agreement or have any claim to the funds.
- Corrupt 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Section VI.
 Practices
 - 3.2 In further pursuance of this policy, Bidders shall permit and shall cause its agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers and to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to the submission of the application, bid

submission (in case prequalified), and contract performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

4. Eligible Bidders

- 4.1 A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, a government-owned entity— subject to ITB 4.5—or any combination of such entities in the form of a joint venture (JV) under an existing agreement or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent. In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV during the bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution.
- 4.2 Numbers of members/firms in a joint venture shall not be more than two including the lead partner.
- 4.3 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Bidder found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this bidding process, if the Bidder:
 - a. directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another Bidder; or
 - b. receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Bidder; or
 - c. has the same legal representative as another Bidder; or
 - d. has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Purchaser regarding this bidding process; or
 - e. participates in more than one bid in this bidding process. Participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the disqualification of all Bids in which such Bidder is involved. However, this does not limit the inclusion of the same subcontractor in more than one bid; or
 - f. any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the goods/equipment that are the subject of the bid; or
 - g. any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the Purchaser or Borrower for the Contract implementation; or
 - h. would be providing goods, works, or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to consulting services for the preparation or implementation of the project specified in the BDS ITB 2.1 that it provided or were provided by any of its affiliate that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with that firm; or
 - has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Borrower (or of the project implementing agency, or of a recipient of a part of the loan) who: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of

the bidding documents or specifications of the contract, and/or the bid evaluation process of such contract; or (ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such contract unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the Bank throughout the procurement process and execution of the contract.

- 4.4 A Bidder may have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions pursuant to ITB 4.7. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is constituted, incorporated or registered in and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country, as evidenced by its articles of incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association) and its registration documents, as the case may be. This criterion also shall apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed sub-contractors or sub-consultants for any part of the Contract including related Services.
- 4.5 A Bidder that has been sanctioned by the Bank in accordance with the above ITB 3.1, including in accordance with the Bank's Guidelines on Preventing and Combating Corruption in Projects Financed by IBRD Loans and IDA Credits and Grants ("Anti-Corruption Guidelines"), shall be ineligible to be prequalified for, bid for, or be awarded a Bank-financed contract or benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or otherwise, during such period of time as the Bank shall have determined. The list of debarred firms and individuals is available at the electronic address specified in the BDS.
- 4.6 Bidders that are Government-owned enterprises or institutions in the Purchaser's Country may participate only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous (ii) operate under commercial law, and (iii) are not dependent agencies of the Purchaser. To be eligible, a government-owned enterprise or institution shall establish to the Bank's satisfaction, through all relevant documents, including its Charter and other information the Bank may request, that it: (i) is a legal entity separate from the government (ii) does not currently receive substantial subsidies or budget support; (iii) operates like any commercial enterprise, and, inter alia, is not obliged to pass on its surplus to the government, can acquire rights and liabilities, borrow funds and be liable for repayment of its debts, and can be declared bankrupt; and (iv) is not bidding for a contract to be awarded by the department or agency of the government which under their applicable laws or regulations is the reporting or supervisory authority of the enterprise or has the ability to exercise influence or control over the enterprise or institution.
- 4.7 A Bidder shall not be under suspension from bidding by the Purchaser as the result of the operation of a Bid–Securing Declaration.

- 4.8 Firms and individuals may be ineligible if so indicated in Section V and (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country, provided that the Bank is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the supply of goods or the contracting of works or services required; or (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's country prohibits any import of goods or contracting of works or services from that country, or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.
- 4.9 A bidder shall provide such evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Purchaser, as the Purchaser shall reasonably request.
- 5. Eligible Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and Related Services
 5.1 All the Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank may have their origin in any country in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries.
 - 5.2 For purposes of this Clause, the term "goods" includes commodities, raw material, machinery, equipment, and industrial plants; and "related services" includes services such as insurance, installation, training, and initial maintenance.
 - 5.3 The term "origin" means the country where the goods have been mined, grown, cultivated, produced, manufactured or processed; or, through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components.

B. Contents of Bidding Document

6. Sections of Bidding Documents consist of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the Sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addendum issued in accordance with ITB Clause 8.

PART 1 Bidding Procedures

- Section I. Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
- Section II. Bidding Data Sheet (BDS)
- Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- Section IV. Bidding Forms
- Section V. Eligible Countries
- Section VI Bank Policy-Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

PART 2 Supply Requirements

• Section VII. Schedule of Requirements

PART 3 Contract

- Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract (GCC)
- Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
- Section X. Contract Forms
- 6.2 The Invitation for Bids issued by the Purchaser is not part of the Bidding Document.
- 6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Purchaser, the Purchaser is not responsible for the completeness of the document, responses to requests for clarification, minutes of pre-bid meeting (if any),or Addenda to the Bidding Document in accordance with ITB 8. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Purchaser shall prevail.
- 6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Documents and to furnish with its Bid all information or documentation as is required by the Bidding Documents.
- 7. Clarification of 7.1 The electronic bidding system specified in the BDS provides for online Bidding clarifications. A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification on the **Documents** Bidding Documents may notify the Purchaser online. Clarifications requested through any other mode shall not be considered by the Purchaser. The Purchaser will respond to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids. Description of clarification sought and the response of the Purchaser shall be uploaded for information of all Bidders without identifying the source of request for clarification. Should the Purchaser deem it necessary to amend the Bidding Documents as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure under ITB Clause 8 and ITB Sub-Clause 22.2. It is the bidder's responsibility to check on the e-procurement system, for any addendum/ amendment/ corrigendum to the bidding document.
- Amendment of Bidding Documents
 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Purchaser may amend the Bidding Documents by issuing addendum. The addendum will appear on the e-procurement system under "Latest Corrigendum" and email notification is also automatically sent to those bidders who have started working on the tender, or as otherwise specified in BDS.
 - 8.2 Any addendum thus issued shall be part of the Bidding Documents and shall be deemed to have been communicated to all the bidders.

8.3 To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids, pursuant to ITB Sub-Clause 22.2

C. Preparation of Bids

- 9. Cost of Bidding
 9.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its bid, and the Purchaser shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.
- 10. Language of Bid 10.1 The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Purchaser, shall be written in English language. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages into English language, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.

11. Documents11.1The Bid shall comprise two Parts, namely the Technical Part and the
Financial Part. These two Parts shall be submitted simultaneously.Bid

11.2 The Technical Part shall contain the following:

- (a) Letter of Bid Technical Part, in accordance with ITB Clause 12;
- (b) Bid Security, in accordance with ITB Clause 19.1, if required;
- (c) Alternative bids– Technical Part, if permissible, in accordance with ITB 13, the Technical Part of any Alternative Bid;
- (d) written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB Clause 20.2;
- documentary evidence in accordance with ITB Clause 17 establishing the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted;
- (f) documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's eligibility to bid;
- (g) documentary evidence in accordance with ITB Clause 16, that the Goods and Related Services to be supplied by the Bidder are of eligible origin;
- (h) documentary evidence in accordance with ITB Clauses 16, that the Goods and Related Services conform to the Bidding Documents;
- (i) Manufacturer's authorization form; and
- (j) any other document **required in the BDS**.

- 11.3 The **Financial Part** shall contain the following:
 - (a) Letter of Bid Financial Part: prepared in accordance with ITB 12 and ITB 14;
 - (b) Price Schedules: completed prepared in accordance with ITB 12 and ITB 14;
 - (c) Alternative Bid Financial Part; if permissible in accordance with ITB 13, the Financial Part of any Alternative Bid; and
 - (d) any other document required in the BDS.
- 11.4 The Technical Part shall not include any financial information related to the Bid price. Where material financial information related to the Bid price is contained in the Technical Part, the Bid shall be declared non-responsive.
- 11.5 The Bidder shall furnish in the Letter of Bid, information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Bid.
- 12. Process of Bid Submission
 12.1 The Letter of Bid – technical Part, Letter of Bid – Financial Part and Price Schedules shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The forms must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted except as provided under ITB 20.2. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.
 - 12.2 Entire Bid including the Letter of Bid and filled-up Price Schedules shall be submitted online on e-procurement system specified in ITB 7.1. Details and process of online submission of the tender and relevant documents are given in the website mentioned above. Scanned copies of documents listed in clauses 11 and 12.3 should also be uploaded on this website.
 - 12.3 Submission of Original Documents: The bidders are required to separately submit (i) original demand drafts towards the cost of bid document and registration on e-procurement website (if not previously registered) (as per RFB); (ii) original bid security in approved form; and (iii) original affidavit regarding correctness of information furnished with bid document, with the office specified in the BDS, before the opening of the technical part of the Bid, either by registered/speed post/courier or by hand, failing which the bids will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened. Hard copy of rest of the bid is not to be submitted.
- **13. Alternative Bids** 13.1 Unless otherwise **specified in the BDS**, alternative bids shall not be considered.

- 14. Bid Prices and Discounts
- 14.1 The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid Financial Part and in the Price Schedules shall conform to the requirements specified below.
- 14.2 All lots (contracts) and items must be listed and priced separately in the Price Schedules.
- 14.3 The price to be quoted in the Letter of Bid Financial Part, in accordance with ITB 12.1, shall be the total price of the bid, excluding any discounts offered.
- 14.4 The Bidder shall quote any discounts and indicate the methodology for their application in the Letter of Bid Financial Part in accordance with ITB 12.1.
- 14.5 Prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder's performance of the Contract and not subject to variation on any account, **unless otherwise specified in the BDS. A** bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation shall be treated as nonresponsive and shall be rejected, pursuant to ITB 31. However, if in accordance with the BDS, prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract, a bid submitted with a fixed price quotation shall not be rejected, but the price adjustment shall be treated as zero.
- 14.6 If so specified in ITB 1.1, bids are being invited for individual lots (contracts) or for any combination of lots (packages). Unless otherwise **specified in the BDS**, prices quoted shall correspond to 100 % of the items specified for each lot and to 100% of the quantities specified for each item of a lot. Bidders wishing to offer discounts for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their bid the price reductions applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Discounts shall be submitted in accordance with ITB 14.4 provided the bids for all lots (contracts) are submitted and opened at the same time.
- 14.7 The terms EXW and other similar terms shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms, published by The International Chamber of Commerce, **as specified in the BDS**.
- 14.8 Prices shall be quoted as specified in the Price Schedule included in Section IV, Bidding Forms. In quoting prices, the Bidder shall be free to use transportation through carriers registered in any eligible country, in accordance with Section V Eligible Countries. Similarly, the Bidder may obtain insurance services from any eligible country in accordance with Section V Eligible Countries. Prices shall be entered in the following manner:
 - (a) For Goods:

- the price of the Goods quoted EXW (ex-works, exfactory, ex-warehouse, ex-showroom, or off-the-shelf, as applicable), including GST as applicable payable on the finished Goods;
- (ii) any other taxes if payable in India on the Goods, if the contract is awarded to the Bidder; and
- (iii) the price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods to their final destination (Project Site) **specified in the BDS**.
- (b) for the Related Services, other than inland transportation and other services required to convey the Goods to their final destination, whenever such Related Services are specified in the Schedule of Requirements:
 - (i) the price of each item comprising the Related Services (inclusive of any applicable taxes).

14.9 Deemed Export Benefits

Bidders may like to ascertain availability of tax/duty exemption benefits, if any, available for contracts financed under World Bank Credits/ Loans. They are solely responsible for obtaining such benefits, which they have considered in their bid and in case of failure to receive such benefits for reasons whatsoever, the Purchaser will not compensate the bidder.

Where the bidder has quoted taking into account such benefits, it must give all information required for issue of necessary Certificates in terms of the Government of India's relevant Notification along with its bid as per form stipulated in Section IV Bidding Forms.

If the Bidder has considered the Deemed Export Benefits in its bid, the Bidder shall confirm and certify that the Purchaser will not be required to undertake any responsibilities of the deemed export scheme or the benefits available during contract execution except issuing the required certificates. Bids which do not conform to this provision or any condition by the Bidder which makes the bid subject to availability of deemed export benefits or compensation on withdrawal of or any variations in the deemed export benefits scheme will make the bid non responsive and hence liable to rejection.

15. Currencies of 15.1 The Bidder shall quote the Price in Indian Rupees only.

Bid& Payment

- 16. Documents Establishing the Eligibility and conformity of the Goods and Related Services
- 16.1 To establish the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services in accordance with ITB Clause 5, Bidders shall complete the country of origin declarations in the Price Schedule Forms, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 16.2 To establish the conformity of the Goods and Related Services to the Bidding Documents, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid the documentary evidence that the Goods conform to the technical specifications and standards specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.
- 16.3 The documentary evidence may be in the form of literature, drawings or data, and shall consist of a detailed item by item description of the essential technical and performance characteristics of the Goods and Related Services, demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the Goods and Related Services to the technical specification, and if applicable, a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Section VII Schedule of Requirements.
- 16.4 The Bidder shall also furnish a list giving full particulars, including available sources and current prices of spare parts, special tools, etc., necessary for the proper and continuing functioning of the Goods during the period **specified in the BDS** following commencement of the use of the goods by the Purchaser.
- 16.5 Standards for workmanship, process, material, and equipment, as well as references to brand names or catalogue numbers specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may offer other standards of quality, brand names, and/or catalogue numbers, provided that it demonstrates, to the Purchaser's satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are superior to those specified in the Section VII Schedule of Requirements.
- Ints17.1To establish Bidder's eligibility in accordance with ITB 4, Bidders shall
complete the Letter of Bid Technical Part, included in Section IV, Bidding
Forms.Interpret to the stability of Bid Technical Part, included in Section IV, Bidding
Forms.
 - 17.2 The documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted shall establish to the Purchaser's satisfaction:
 - (a) that the Bidder meets each of the qualification criterion Criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification;
 - (b) (i) that, if **required in the BDS**, a Bidder that does not manufacture or produce the Goods it offers to supply shall submit the

17. Documents Establishing the Eligibility &Qualifications of the Bidder Manufacturer's Authorization using the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms to demonstrate that it has been duly authorized by the manufacturer or producer of the Goods to supply these Goods in the Purchaser's Country;

- (ii) Supplies for any particular item in each schedule of the bid should be from one manufacturer only. Bids from agents offering supplies from different manufacturers for the same item of the schedule in the bid will be treated as non-responsive.
- (iii) that, if required in the BDS, the Bidder is or will be (if awarded the contract) represented by an Agent in the country equipped and able to carry out the Supplier's maintenance, repair and spare parts-stocking obligations prescribed in the Conditions of Contract and/or Technical Specifications;
- (c) Bids from Joint Ventures are not acceptable.
- 18 Period of Validity 18.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the BDS after the bid submission deadline date prescribed by the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 22.1. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Purchaser as non-responsive.
 - 18.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the bid validity period, the Purchaser may request bidders to extend the period of validity of their bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Bid Security is requested in accordance with ITB Clause 19, it shall also be extended for a corresponding period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid Security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its bid, except as provided in ITB Sub-Clause 18.3.
 - 18.3 If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial bid validity, the Contract price shall be determined as follows:
 - (a) In the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be the bid price adjusted by the factor **specified in the BDS** for each week or part of the week that has elapsed from the expiration of the initial bid validity to the date of notification of award to the successful bidder.
 - (b) In the case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be made.

- (c) In any case, bid evaluation shall be based on the bid Price without taking in to consideration the applicable correction from those indicated above.
- **19 Bid Security** 19.1 The Bidder shall furnish as part of the Technical Part of its bid, a Bid Security, if required, as **specified in the BDS**.
 - 19.2 Not used.
 - 19.3 The Bid Security shall be in the amount **specified in the BDS** and denominated in Indian Rupees or a freely convertible currency, and shall:
 - (a) at the bidder's option, be in the form of either a certified check, demand draft, letter of credit, or a bank guarantee from a Nationalized /Scheduled Bank in India, or another security specified in the BDS;
 - (b) be substantially in accordance with one of the forms of Bid Security included in Section IV, Bidding Forms, or other form approved by the Purchaser prior to bid submission;
 - (c) be payable promptly upon written demand by the Purchaser in case the conditions listed in ITB Clause 19.7 are invoked;
 - (d) be submitted in its original form; copies will not be accepted;
 - (e) remain valid for a period of 45 days beyond the original validity period of the bids, or beyond any period of extension of bid validity, if so requested under ITB Clause 18.2.
 - 19.4 If a Bid Security is required in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 19.1, any bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security shall be rejected by the Purchaser as non-responsive.
 - 19.5 The Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's signing the contract and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to ITB Clause 44.
 - 19.6 The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the contract and furnished the required performance security.
 - 19.7 The Bid Security may be forfeited:
 - (a) if a Bidder
 - withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid (Technical Part and/or Financial Part), except as provided in ITB Sub-Clause 18.2;

- or
- (ii) does not accept the correction of errors in pursuant to ITB35,
- or
- (b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB Clause 43; or
 - (ii) furnish a Performance Security in accordance with ITB Clause 44.
- 19.8 Not used.
- 19.9 If a bid security is **not required in the BDS**, and
 - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid Form, except as provided in ITB 18.2, or does not accept the correction of errors pursuant to ITB 35; or
 - (b) if the successful Bidder fails to sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 43; or furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 44;

the Borrower may, **if provided for in the BDS**, declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Purchaser for a period of time **as stated in the BDS**.

- 20.1 The Bidder shall prepare the Bid as per details given in ITB 21.
 - 20.2 The bid shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. The authorization shall consist of a written confirmation **as specified in the BDS** and shall be uploaded along with the bid.
 - 20.3 Not used.

20 Format and

Signing of Bid

20.4 Corrections if any in the bid can be carried out by editing the information before electronic submission on e-procurement portal.

D. Online Submission of Bids

21 Preparation of Bids
21.1 Bids, both Technical and Financial Parts, shall be submitted online on the e-procurement system specified in BDS 7.1. Detailed guidelines for viewing bids and submission of online bids are given on the website. The Invitation for Bids under this Project is published on this website. Any citizen or prospective bidder can logon to this website and view the Invitation for Bids and can view the details of goods for which bids are invited. A prospective bidder can submit its bid online; however, the bidder is required to have enrolment/registration in the website, and should have valid Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) in the form of smart card/e-token obtained from any authorised certifying agency of Government of India (for class of DSC **specified in BDS**). The bidder should register in the website using the relevant option available. Then the Digital Signature registration has to be done with the e-token, after logging into the website. The bidder can then login the website through the secured login by entering the password of the e-token & the user id/ password chosen during registration. After getting the bid schedules, the Bidder should go through them carefully and submit the specified documents, along with the bid, otherwise the bid will be rejected.

- 21.2 The completed bid comprising of documents indicated in ITB 12, should be uploaded on the e-procurement portal along with scanned copies of requisite certificates as are mentioned in different sections in the bidding document and scanned copy of the bid security.
- 21.3 All the documents are required to be signed digitally by the bidder. After electronic on line bid submission, the system generates a unique bid identification number which is time stamped as per server time. This shall be treated as acknowledgement of bid submission.
- 21.4 Physical, Email, Telex, Cable or Facsimile bids will be rejected as non-responsive.

22 Deadline for 22.1 Bids must be uploaded online no later than the date and time specified in the BDS. Bids

- 22.2 The Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids by amending the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB Clause 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Purchaser and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.
- **23 Late Bids** 23.1 The electronic bidding system would not allow any late submission of bids after due date & time as per server time.
- 24 Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids
 24.1Bidders may modify their bids by using appropriate option for bid modification on the e-procurement portal, before the deadline for submission of bids. For this the bidder need not make any additional payment towards the cost of bid document. For bid modification and consequential re-submission, the bidder is not required to withdraw his bid submitted earlier. The last modified bid submitted by the bidder within the bid submission time shall be considered as the bid. For this purpose, modification/withdrawal by other means will not be accepted. In online system of bid submission, the modification and consequential resubmission of bids is allowed any number of times. A bidder may withdraw his bid by using appropriate option for bid withdrawal, before the deadline

for submission of bids, however, if the bid is withdrawn, re-submission of the bid is not allowed (or allowed if specified in BDS).

- 24.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 24.1 shall not be opened.
- 24.3 No bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid (Technical Part and/or Financial Part) or any extension thereof.

E. Public Opening of Technical Parts of Bids

25 Public Opening 25.1. The Purchaser shall publicly open Technical Parts of all bids received by of Technical the deadline, at the date, time and place specified in the BDS, in the Parts of Bids presence of Bidder's designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend, and this could also be viewed by the bidders online. The Financial Parts of the bids shall remain unopened in the e-procurement system, until the subsequent public opening, following the evaluation of the Technical Parts of the Bids. In all cases, original documents submitted as specified in ITB 12.3 shall be first scrutinized, and Bids that do not comply with the provisions of ITB 12.3 will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened. Thereafter, bidder's names, and such other details as the Purchaser may consider appropriate will be notified online as Technical Part bid opening summary.

> In the event of the specified date of bid opening being declared a holiday for the Purchaser, the bids will be opened at the appointed time and location on the next working day.

25.2 The electronic summary of the bid opening will be generated and uploaded online. The Purchaser will also prepare minutes of the Bid opening, including the information disclosed and upload the same for viewing online. Only Technical Parts of Bids, alternative bids - Technical Parts if permitted in ITB 13 that are opened at Bid opening shall be considered further for evaluation.

E. Evaluation of Bids – General Provisions

- 26 Confidentiality Information relating to the examination, evaluation, comparison, and 26.1 post-gualification of bids, and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until information on Contract Award is communicated to all Bidders in accordance with ITB 42.
 - 26.2 Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Purchaser in the examination, evaluation, comparison, and post-qualification of the bids or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.

- 26.3 Notwithstanding ITB Sub-Clause 26.2, from the time of bid opening to the time of Contract Award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Purchaser on any matter related to the bidding process, it should do so in writing.
- 27 Clarification of Bids
 27.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, comparison of the bids and postqualification of the Bidders, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder in respect to its Bid, that is not in response to a request by the Purchaser shall not be considered. The Purchaser's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease, in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Purchaser in the Evaluation of the bids, in accordance with ITB Clause 35.
 - 27.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its bid by the date and time set in the Purchaser's request for clarification, its bid may be rejected.

28 Deviations, Reservations, Omissions

Omissions

28.1

(a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the

During the evaluation of bids, the following definitions apply:

- (b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents; and
- (c) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the Bidding Documents.
- 29Non-
conformities,
Errors and29.1Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may waive
any non conformities or omissions in the Bid which do not constitute a
material deviation, reservation or omission.

Bidding Documents;

- 29.2 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the Bid related to documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price or substance of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 29.3 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or component in the manner specified **in the BDS**.

G. Evaluation of Technical Parts of Bids

27

- 30 Evaluation of Technical Parts
 30.1 In evaluating the Technical Parts of each Bid, the Purchaser shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in ITB 31, ITB 32, and Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted.
- **31 Determination of** 31.1 The Purchaser's determination of a bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself as defined in ITB 11.
 - 31.2 A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of the Bidding Documents without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:
 - (a) If accepted, would
 - affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Goods and Related Services specified in the Contract; or
 - (ii) limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Documents, the Purchaser's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or
 - (b) if rectified would unfairly affect the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.
 - 31.2.1 Bids from Agents, without proper authorization from the manufacturer as per Section IV, shall be treated as non-responsive.
 - 31.3.1The Purchaser shall examine the bids to confirm that all documents and technical documentation requested in ITB Clause 11 have been provided, and to determine the completeness of each document submitted.
 - 31.3.2 The Purchaser shall examine the bid to confirm that the Bidder has accepted all terms and conditions specified in GCC and the SCC without material deviations or reservations. Deviations from or objections or reservations to critical provisions such as those concerning Performance Security (GCC Clause 18). Warranty (GCC Clause 28), Force Majeure (Clause 32), Limitation of liability (GCC Clause 30), Governing law (GCC Clause 9) and Taxes & Duties (GCC Clause 17) will be deemed to be a material deviation. The Purchaser's determination of a bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself without recourse to extrinsic evidence.
 - 31.4 If a bid is not substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents, it shall be rejected by the Purchaser and may not subsequently be made responsive by the Bidder by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.

- 32 Qualification of 32.1 The Purchaser shall determine, to its satisfaction, whether all eligible the Bidders Bidders, whose Bids have been determined to be substantially responsive to the bidding document, meet the Qualification Criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
 - 32.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's gualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 17. The determination shall not take into consideration the qualifications of other firms such as the Bidder's subsidiaries, parent entities, affiliates, subcontractors (other than specialized subcontractors if permitted in the bidding document), or any other firm(s) different from the Bidder.
 - 32.3 If a Bidder does not meet the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, its Bid shall be rejected by the Purchaser and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.
 - 32.4 Only Bids that are both substantially responsive to the bidding document, and meet all Qualification Criteria shall have the Financial Parts of their Bids opened at the second public opening

H. Public Opening of Financial Parts of Bids

- 33 Public Opening 33.1 Following the completion of the evaluation of the Technical Parts of the of Financial Bids, and the Bank has issued its no objection (if applicable), the Parts Purchaser shall notify in writing to those Bidders who have failed to meet the Qualification Criteria and/or whose Bids were considered nonresponsive to the requirements in the bidding document, advising them of the following information:
 - their Technical Part of Bid failed to meet the requirements of the (a) bidding document;
 - their Financial Part of the Bid shall not be opened; and (b)
 - (C) notify them of the date and time for public opening of the Financial Parts of the Bids. Financial Parts of the bids shall not be opened earlier than seven (7) days from the communication of technical evaluation results to the bidders.
 - 33.2 The Purchaser shall, simultaneously, notify in writing those Bidders whose Technical Parts have been evaluated as substantially responsive to the bidding document and met the Qualification Criteria, advising them of the following information:
 - (a) their Bid has been evaluated as substantially responsive to the bidding document and met the Qualification Criteria;

- (b) their Financial Part of Bid will be opened at the public opening of Financial Parts;
- (c) notify them of the date and time of the second public opening of the Financial Parts of the Bids, as **specified in the BDS**.
- 33.3 The opening date should allow Bidders sufficient time to make arrangements for attending the opening. The Financial Part of the Bid shall be opened publicly in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend, and this could also be viewed by the bidders online. The bidder's names, the Bid prices, the total amount of each bid, including any discounts and Alternative Bid Financial Part, and such other details as the Purchaser may consider appropriate will be notified online by the Purchaser at the time of bid opening.

In the event of the specified date of bid opening being declared a holiday for the Purchaser, the bids will be opened at the appointed time and location on the next working day.

33.4 The electronic summary of the bid opening will be generated and uploaded online. The Purchaser will also prepare minutes of the Bid opening, including the information disclosed and upload the same for viewing online. Only Financial Part of Bids, Financial Parts of Alternative Bids and discounts that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered further for evaluation.

I. Evaluation of Financial Parts of Bids

- 34 Evaluation of
Financial Parts34.1To evaluate the Financial Part of each Bid, the Purchaser shall consider
the following:
 - (a) evaluation will be done for Items or Lots (contracts), as specified in the BDS; and the Bid Price as quoted in accordance with ITB 14;
 - (b) Not used;
 - (c) price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 14.4;
 - (d) Not used;
 - (e) price adjustment due to quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities in accordance with ITB 29.3; and
 - (f) the additional evaluation factors specified in the BDS as per ITB 34.5 from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

- 34.2 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
- 34.3 If this bidding document allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated cost of the lot (contract) combinations, including any discounts offered in the Letter of Bid - Financial Part, is specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 34.4 The Purchaser's evaluation of a Bid shall include (i) price quoted EXW including GST as applicable on the finished goods; (ii) other taxes, if any, payable on finished goods; (iii) price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods to their Final Destination; and (iv) price for Related Services, if any.
- 34.5 The Purchaser's evaluation of a Bid may require the consideration of other factors, in addition to the Bid price quoted in accordance with ITB 14. These factors may be related to the characteristics, performance and terms & conditions of purchase of the Goods and Related Services. The effect of the factors selected, if any, shall be expressed in monetary terms to facilitate comparison of Bids, unless otherwise specified in the BDS from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The criteria and methodologies to be used shall be as specified in ITB 34.1 (f).
- 35 Correction of Arithmetical Errors
 35.1 The e-procurement system automatically calculates the total amount from unit rates and quantities and the system also automatically populates the amount in words from the amount in figures and therefore there is no scope of discrepancy and need for arithmetic correction.
- 36 Conversion to 36.1 Not applicable. Single Currency
- 37 Margin of 37.1 Not applicable. Domestic Preference
- 38 Comparison of Financial Parts
 38.1 The Purchaser shall compare the evaluated prices of all substantially responsive bids to determine the lowest-evaluated bid, in accordance with ITB Clause 34.

39 Purchaser's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids
 39.1 The Purchaser reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to annul the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all documents submitted and specifically, bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.

J. Award of Contract

- **40 Award Criteria** 40.1 Subject to ITB 39.1,the Purchaser shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose bid has been determined to be the lowest evaluated bid and is substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.
- 41 Purchaser's Right to Vary Quantities at Time of Award
 41.1 At the time the Contract is awarded, the Purchaser reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of Goods and Related Services originally specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements, provided this does not exceed the percentages specified in the BDS, and without any change in the unit prices or other terms and conditions of the bid and the Bidding Documents.
- 42 Notification of Award
 42.1 Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Purchaser shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been accepted. The notification letter (hereinafter called "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the purchaser will pay in consideration of the supply of Goods (hereinafter called "the Contract Price").
- 42.2 At the same time the Purchaser shall publish in a National website (https://eprocure.gov.in/) or on the Purchaser's website with free access if available, or in the official gazette, the results identifying the bid and lot numbers and the following information: (i) name of each Bidder who submitted a Bid; (ii) bid prices as read out at bid opening; (iii) name and evaluated prices of each Bid that was evaluated; (iv) name of bidders whose bids were rejected and the reasons for their rejection; and (v) name of the successful Bidder, and the price it offered, as well as the duration and summary scope of the contract awarded.
 - 42.3 The Purchaser shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after Publication of contract award, requests in writing the grounds on which its bid was not selected.
 - 42.4 Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, the notification of award shall constitute a binding Contract.

Recourse to Unsuccessful Bidders

- 42.5 Upon the successful Bidder's furnishing of the performance security and signing the Contract Form pursuant to ITB Clause 43, the Purchaser will promptly notify each unsuccessful Bidder and will discharge its bid security, pursuant to ITB Clause 19.5
- **43 Signing of Contract 43.1** Promptly after notification, the Purchaser shall send the successful Bidder the Contract Agreement.
 - 43.2 Within twenty-one (21) days of receipt of the Contract Agreement, the successful Bidder shall sign, date, and return it to the Purchaser.
- 44 Performance Security
 44.1 Within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of notification of award from the Purchaser, the successful Bidder, if required, shall furnish the Performance Security in accordance with the GCC, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section X Contract forms, or another Form acceptable to the Purchaser. Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Purchaser may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder, whose bid is substantially responsive and is determined by the Purchaser to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

SECTION II - BIDDING DATA SHEET

The following specific data for the goods to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in ITB.

[Instructions for completing the Bidding Data Sheet are provided, as needed, in the notes in italics mentioned for the relevant ITB Clauses].

ITB Clause Reference	A. General	
ITB 1.1	The Purchaser is: The Chairman , Central Ground Water Board, Ministry of Jal Shakti, Department of Water Resources, River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation, Government of India, Bhujal Bhawan, NH-IV, Faridabad-121001 E mail id: seop-cgwb@nic.in	
ITB 1.1	The name and identification number of the NCB is: The Supply, Installation, Commissioning of DWLRs and telemetry including security arrangements, establishment of Data Acquisition system & its maintenance for Real Time Ground Water Level monitoring and supply of Ground water level, ground water temperature data from site and receipt of data at Regional Office Data Centre (RODC), Chennai, in a desired format from 475 observation wells (Piezometers wells) in the states of Tamilnadu & UT of Puducherry through telemetry systems with 05 years warranty and 02 years AMC	
	IFB No. : NHP/CGWBW/TELEMETRY/2 The number, identification and names of the tender (contracts): (one) Job	
ITB 1.2(a)	The Purchaser shall use the electronic-procurement system specified in BDS 7.1 to manage this Bidding process.	
ITB 2.1	The Borrower is Government of India Loan or Financing Agreement Amount US\$ 175 million	
ITB 2.1	The name of the Project is National Hydrology Project.	
ITB 4.4	A list of firms debarred from participating in World Bank projects is available at http://www.worldbank.org/debarr	

	B. Contents of Bidding Documents
ITB 7.1	Electronic –Procurement System
	The Purchaser shall use the following electronic-procurement system to manage this Bidding process: <u>https://eprocure.gov.in/eprocure/app</u>
ITB 8.1	The addendum will appear on the e-procurement system under latest corrigendum and email notification is also sent to those bidders who have started working on this tender.
	C. Preparation of Bids
ITB 11.2 (j)	Cover 1: Technical Bid
	The Bidder shall submit the following additional documents in its bid:
	Certification of incorporation of the bidder and manufacturer
	• The bidder shall clearly confirm that all facilities exist with him (or manufacturer, as applicable) in his factory or at site or work place for inspection and testing and these can be accessed by the Purchaser or his representative for inspection.
	Technical schedules of goods as required by technical specifications.
	Descriptive Documents, drawings, notes and references of operating and assembly of mechanical parts
	• A detailed description of the Goods essential technical and performance characteristics.
	• A clause-by-clause commentary on the Purchaser's technical specifications demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the Goods and Services to those specifications or a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Technical Specifications.
	• For purposes of the commentary to be furnished pursuant to Paragraph 6 above, the Bidder shall note that standards for workmanship, material and goods, and references to brand names or catalogue numbers designated by the Purchaser in its Technical Specifications are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may substitute alternative standards, brand names and/or catalogue numbers in its bid, provided that it demonstrates to the Purchaser's satisfaction that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence to those designated in the Technical Specifications.
	• The documentary evidence of the goods and services eligibility shall consist of a statement in the Price Schedule on the country of origin of the goods and services offered which shall be confirmed by a certificate of origin at the time of shipment.

	 Non-manufacturer bidders will submit the manufacturer's authorization Form as per Proforma in Section IV. The following details shall also be provided by Indian Bidders:
	a. Name, address, PAN and ward/circle where they are being assessed of the Directors of the Bidding Company.
	 b. Company's PAN and Income Tax clearance certificate and ward/circle where it is being assessed,
	 Registration details of the company under GST and other laws as may be applicable.
	• The bidders from outside India shall provide the corresponding details of Income Tax registration, Social Security Number, details regarding Registration under goods & services tax (as may be applicable) etc
	 The bidder shall disclose instance of previous past performance that may have resulted into adverse actions taken against the bidder during the last five years. All document required in Section 3: Evaluation & Qualification Criteria
	 <u>Cover 2: Financial Bid</u> Financial Bid as per BOQ in XLS format. Note: Bidders are requested to enter GST against the item. The Financial evaluation will be done based on item without considering GST. The AMC rate may be entered by bidder according to the tender for engaging AMC after 5 years of warranty. The GST as applicable will be reimbursed on proof of payment to Government.
ITB 11.2(j)	In addition to the requirements under ITB 11.1, bids submitted by a JV shall include a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by all members. Alternatively, a letter of intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement in the event of a successful bid shall be signed by all members and submitted with the bid, together with a copy of the proposed Agreement.
ITB 12	Note for Bidders: Bidders have to submit the bids on the e-procurement portal along with the relevant required documents. For this purpose, the bidders shall fill up online, the forms that are available for online filling on the e-portal. The rest of the forms shall be downloaded by the bidders and filled up. The filled up pages shall then be scanned and uploaded on the e-procurement portal (only in CPPP) along with the scanned copies of the supporting documents.
ITB 12.3	For submission of original documents, the Purchaser's address is:
	The Regional Director (Engineering), Central Ground Water Board, Ministry of Jal Shakti, Department of Water Resources, River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation, Government of India, Bhujal Bhawan, NH-IV, Faridabad- 121001 E mail id: seop-cgwb@nic.in Country: INDIA
ITB 13.1	Alternative Bids shall not be considered.
L	

ITB 14.5	The prices quoted by the Bidder <i>shall not</i> be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract.
ITB 14.7	The Incoterms edition is Incoterms 2010.
ITB 14.8 (a) (iii)	"Final destination (Project Site)": as mentioned in Schedule of Requirements
ITB 14.9	As per latest instructions from Government of India.
ITB 16.4	Period of time the Goods are expected to be functioning (for the purpose of spare parts): 10 years.
ITB 17.2 (b) (i)	Manufacturer's authorization is: required as per proforma in Section IV.
ITB 17.2 (b)iii	After Sales service is required which shall be provided by the Supplier or alternatively by its Agent in case of a foreign bidder.
ITB 17.2 (c)	Deleted.
ITB 18.1	The bid validity period shall be 120 days.
ITB 18.3(A)	Not applicable
ITB 19.1	Bid shall include a Bid Security valid for a period of 60 days beyond the original validity period of the bids, or beyond any period of extension of bid validity(issued by bank) included in Section IV Bidding Forms
ITB 19.3	The amount of the Bid Security shall be Rs 57,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Seven Lakh only)
ITB 19.8	The bid security of a JV must be in the name of the JV that submits the bid. If the JV has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of bidding, the bid security shall be in the names of all future members as named in the letter of intent referred to in ITB 4.1 and ITB 11.2.
ITB 19.9	Deleted
ITB 20.2	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist of: <i>Power of attorney</i>
ITB 20.3	In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized representative of the JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives.

	D. Submission and Opening of Bids
ITB 21.2	Class of Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) required is Class III
ITB 22.1	The last date of submission for uploading of bids is: Date: 03/04/2020 Time: 16.00 hours server time
ITB 24.1	Re-submission of the bid is allowed, if withdrawn within the period of submission of bid.
	E. Public Opening of Technical Parts of Bids
ITB 25.1	The online bid opening shall take place at:
	Central Ground Water Board, Ministry of Jal Shakti, Department of Water Resources, River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation, Government of India, Bhujal Bhawan, NH- IV, Faridabad-121001
	E mail id: seop-cgwb@nic.in Country: INDIA
	Date: 07/04/2020 Time: 16:15 Hrs
	F. Evaluation of Bids-General Provisions
ITB 29.3	The adjustment shall be based on the highest price of the item or component as quoted in other substantially responsive Bids, subject to a maximum of the estimated price of the item. If the price of the item or component cannot be derived from the price of other substantially responsive Bids, the Purchaser shall use its best estimate.
	H. Public Opening of Financial Parts of Bids
ITB 33.2(c)	Following the completion of the evaluation of the Technical Parts of the Bids, the Purchaser will notify all technically qualified Bidders of the date and time of the public opening of Financial Parts. The online opening of the Financial Parts of bids (for technically qualified bidders) shall take place at the following address. The Regional Director (Engineering), Central Ground Water Board, Ministry of Jal Shakti, Department of Water Resources, River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation, Government of India, Bhujal Bhawan, NH-IV, Faridabad-121001 E mail id: seop-cgwb@nic.in Country: INDIA
ITB 34.1(a)	Evaluation will be done for complete items as a whole of the tender.

ITB 34.4	Replace with following:
	The Purchaser's evaluation of a bid will exclude and not take into account:
	(a) In the case of Goods manufactured in India or goods of foreign origin already located in India, GST and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the goods if a contract is awarded to the Bidder;
	(b) Not Used.
	(c) any allowance for price adjustment during the period of execution of the contract, if provided in the bid.
	But, the purchaser's evaluation of a bid will include i) price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods to their Final Destination; and (ii) price for Related Services, if any.
ITB 34.5	The adjustments shall be determined using the following criteria, from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria:
	 (a) the projected operating and maintenance costs for five years as defined in Technical Specifications in bid document. The bidder will have to quote the price in "Price and Completion Schedule- Related Services". and
	 the cost of major replacement components, mandatory spare parts, and service: Not Applicable.
	the availability in the Purchaser's Country of spare parts and after-sales services for the equipment offered in the bid: Not Applicable.
	 the projected operating and maintenance costs during the life of the equipment: Not Applicable.
	4. the performance and productivity of the equipment offered: Not Applicable.
	J. Award of Contract
ITB 41.1	The maximum percentage by which quantities may be increased is: 15%
	The maximum percentage by which quantities may be decreased is: 15%

SECTION III. EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION CRITERIA

This Section complements the Instructions to Bidders. It contains the criteria that the Purchaser shall use to evaluate a bid and determine whether a Bidder qualifies in accordance with ITB 32&34. No other criteria shall be used.

1 Qualification (ITB 32)

1.1 Qualification Criteria (ITB 32.1)

The Purchaser shall assess each Bid against the following Qualification Criteria. Requirements not included in the text below shall not be used in the evaluation of the Bidder's qualifications.

(a) Financial Capability

The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence that it meets the following financial quirement(s):

A) In case of individual Bidder

- (i) Capacity to have a cash flow The Bidder must provide a letter from a reputed bank stating the availability of liquid assets and/ or credit facilities exclusively for this Contract only, of not less than INR 1,14,00,000/- or its equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency.
- (ii) The Minimum required annual turnover in respect of supply, installation and commissioning of goods and services for the successful Bidder in any two of the last *five (5)* years shall be of **INR** 5,70,00,000/- or its equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency. Period of 5 years shall be reckoned from 31st march of financial year preceding the year in which bid is published (i.e 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18and 2018-19)
- (iii) Further, bidder should be in continuous business of supplying and after sale services of products similar to that specified in the 'Schedule of requirement' during the last 5 years prior to date of bid submission.
- (iv) Bidder shall furnish the legal status, place of registration and principal place of business of the company or firm or partnership, etc.;
- (v) Details of experience and past performance on equipment offered and on those of similar nature within the past seven years (Prior to the date of bid submission) and details of current contracts in hand and other commitments (suggested Proforma given in Section IV).
- (vi) The bidder should furnish a brief write-up, backed with adequate data, explaining his available capacity and experience (both technical and commercial) for the supply of the required equipment within the specified time of completion after the meeting all their current commitments.
- (vii) Reports on Financial standing of the bidders such as profit and loss statements, balance sheets and auditor's report for the past three years, bankers certificate etc.
- (viii) A firm can submit only one bid in the same bidding process. A bidder who submits or participates in more than one bid will cause all the bids in which the bidder has participated to be disqualified.
- (ix) Should possess GST Registration. The GST Registration Certificate should be attached with the bid. In case of foreign bidder, if presently bidder is not having any office(s) in India, he has to provide the GST registration certificate within one month of award of contract. In this regard, an undertaking may be submitted as soon as the contract is awarded.

B) In case of Joint Venture (JV)

i) Capacity to have a cash flow: The Bidders must provide a letter from a reputed bank stating the availability of liquid assets and/or credit facilities exclusively for this Contract only, of no less than *INR* 1,42,50,000/- or its equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency collectively.

- ii) In case of JV, the Minimum required annual turnover in respect of supply, installation and commissioning of goods for the successful Bidder in any two of the last *five (5)* years shall be of *INR 5,70,00,000/- or its equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency*. Collectively. Period of 5 years shall be reckoned from 31st march of financial year preceding the year in which bid is published. The lead partner must have minimum annual turnover of *INR 3,99,00,000/- or its equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency*. In any two of the last *five (5)* years while other partner must have minimum annual turnover of *INR 1,71,00,000/- or its equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency* in any two of the last *five (5)* years.
- iii) Further, one member of Joint Venture should be in continuous business of supplying and after sales services of products similar to that specified in the 'Schedule of requirement' during the last 5 years prior to date of bid submission while other member should be in continuous business of supplying and after sale services of products similar to that specified in the 'Schedule of requirement' at least 1 year prior to date of bid submission.
- iv) All members of Joint Venture shall furnish the legal status, place of registration and principal place of business of the company or firm or partnership, etc.;
- v) Details of experience and past performance of all members of Joint Venture on equipment offered and on those of similar nature within the past seven years (Prior to the date of bid submission) and details of current contracts in hand and other commitments (suggested Proforma given in Section IV).
- vi) The lead member of Joint Venture should furnish a brief write-up, backed with adequate data, explaining his available capacity and experience (both technical and commercial) for the supply of the required equipment within the specified time of completion after the meeting all their current commitments.
- vii) Responsibilities in respect of lead firm as well as each of the Joint Venture members shall be clearly indicated in the JV agreement;
- viii) The Joint Venture agreement shall not be cancelled or amended unilaterally without consent of the Purchaser and a statement to this effect should appear in the JV agreement;
- ix) Reports on financial standing of the each JV members such as profit and loss statements, balance sheets and auditor's report for the past three years, banker's certificate, etc.

At least one member of Joint Venture should possess GST Registration.

(b) Experience and Technical Capacity

The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence to demonstrate that it meets the following experience requirement(s):

i) Technical experience

A) In case of individual Bidder

The bidder must have supplied, tested, and commissioned the Digital/ Automatic Water Level Recorder stations with GSM / GPRS based telemetry to the extent of at least 100 stations (comprising of minimum 1 data logger and sensor at each station) in any two of the year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document and should be in use satisfactorily with no adverse report for at least one year preceding the date of bid opening.

B) In case of Joint Venture (JV)

The JV partners must have supplied, tested and commissioned the Digital/ Automatic Water Level Recorder stations with GSM / GPRS based telemetry to the extent of **at least 100 stations** (comprising of minimum 1 data logger and sensor at each station) collectively in any two of the year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document. Out of which the one partner should have supplied, installed, commissioned and provided after sales service satisfactorily to the extent of at least minimum 70 **stations**(comprising of minimum 1 data logger and sensor at each station) in any two of the year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document and other partner should have operated and maintained satisfactorily to the extent of at least minimum **30 stations** (comprising of minimum 1 data logger and sensor at each station) in any two of the year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document and other partner should have operated and maintained satisfactorily to the extent of at least minimum **30 stations** (comprising of minimum 1 data logger and sensor at each station) in any two of the year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document and other partner should have operated and maintained satisfactorily to the extent of at least minimum **30 stations** (comprising of minimum 1 data logger and sensor at each station) in any two of the year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document

ii) Manufacturer Authorization for DWLR station equipment

If the bidder/JV partners is/are not the manufacturer of the Digital Water Level Recorder (DWLR) station equipment (i.e. listed in table-1), the bidder/JV Partner shall furnish a legally enforceable authorization from manufacturer in the prescribed Form [Section-IV] assuring full guarantee and warranty obligations as per GCC and SCC for the goods offered.

If the bidder or JV partner, himself is a manufacturer of the DWLR station equipment (listed in Table-1), then a self-authorization suffices.

Further, bidder or JV partner should furnish the documentary evidence from the manufacturer of the equipment (listed in Table-1) to establish that the manufacturer has manufactured and supplied the quantity of the DWLR station equipment as per Table-1 below in any two year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document.

S No	Item	Total quantity to be supplied as per schedule of requirement	Minimum total sum of required quantity in any two of last Seven years		
1	DWLR water level sensor (Non- Vented, Submersible pressure sensor with Temperature sensor) as per the technical specification	475	150		
2	DWLR Data logger with GSM, GPRS modem as per the technical specification	475	150		

Table-1 Compliance for equipment manufacturer

- III. The bidder should have after sales support in the region (within a radius of 500 km from the State Capital). If bidder does not have any after sales support office within 500 km from state Capital at the time of bidding, he shall require to be establish the same within one month after successful award of contract
- IV- Even though the bidders meet the above qualifying criteria, they are subject to be disqualified if they have made misleading or false representations in the forms, statements and attachments submitted in proof of the qualification requirements; and/or record of poor performance such as, not properly completing the contract, inordinate delays in completion, litigation history, or financial failures etc.

FINANCIAL PART

2. Margin of Preference (ITB 37) - Not Applicable

3. Evaluation (ITB 30, 31, and 34)

3.1. Evaluation Criteria (ITB 34.5)

The Purchaser shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Section to evaluate Bids. By applying the criteria and methodologies, the Purchaser shall determine the substantially responsive lowest-evaluated bid.

The Purchaser's evaluation of a bid may take into account, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB Clause 14.8, one or more of the following factors as specified in ITB Sub-Clause 34.1 (f) and in BDS referring to ITB 34.5, using the following criteria and methodologies.

(a) The Purchaser's evaluation of a bid will take into account, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB Clause 14.8, cost of comprehensive AMC for two year after including 5years warranty& Operation and Maintenance period. The amount of comprehensive AMC for two year shall be computed to current level by applying a discount factor of 10%.

3.2. Multiple Contracts (ITB 34.3)

Not Applicable as bid consists of a single schedule.

SECTION IV – BIDDING FORMS

Table of Forms

1.Letter of Bid– Technical Part	47
2. Letter of Bid– FINANCIAL Part	49
3. BIDDER INFORMATION FORM	51
3B. Bidder's JV Members Information Form	52
4. FORM OF AFFIDAVIT FOR CORRECTNESS OF INFORMATION AND D	OCUMENTS
SUBMITTED WITH BID	53
5. Price schedule forms	54
6. Bank guarantee for advance payment	60
7. MANUFACTURER'S Authorization	60
8.DECLARATION for Claiming Excise Duty Exemption	61
9. PERFORMA FOR PERFORMANCE STATEMENT	62

1.LETTER OF BID- TECHNICAL PART

The Bidder must prepare the Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder's complete name and address.

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing these forms and shall be deleted from the final products.

No alterations to the text except as provided in ITB20.2, shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted except as provided in ITB 12.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] NCB No.: [insert number of bidding process] Invitation for Bid No.: [insert No of IFB]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]To The Chairman,

Central Ground Water Board, Government of India, NH IV, Faridabad – 121001

We, the undersigned, declare that:

- (a) We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Documents, including Addenda No. issued in accordance with ITB 8: [insert the number and issuing date of each Addenda];
- (b) We meet the eligibility requirements and have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4;
- (c) We have not been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Purchaser based on execution of a Bid Securing Declaration in the Purchaser's country in accordance with ITB 4.6;
- (d) We offer to supply in conformity with the Bidding Documents and in accordance with the Delivery Schedules specified in the Schedule of Requirements the following Goods and Related Services [insert a brief description of the Goods and Related Services];
- (e) Our bid shall be valid for the period of time specified in ITB Sub-Clause 18.1, from the date fixed for the bid submission deadline in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 22, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (f) If our bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance with the Bidding Documents;
- (g) We are not participating, as a Bidder or as a subcontractor, in more than one bid in this bidding process in accordance with ITB 4.2(e), other than alternative bids submitted in accordance with ITB 13;
- (h) We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not subject to, and not controlled by any entity or individual that is subject to, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group in accordance with the Agreement for Mutual

Enforcement of Debarment Decisions between the World Bank and other development banks. Further, we are not ineligible under the Purchaser's Country laws or official regulations or pursuant to a decision of the United Nations Security Council;

- (i) We are not a government owned entity/ We are a government owned entity but meet the requirements of ITB 4.5;¹
- (j)We understand that this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed;
- (k) We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated bid or any other bid that you may receive;
- (I)We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf will engage in any type of fraud and corruption; and
- (m) We undertake that, in competing for (and, if the award is made to us, in executing) the above contract, we will strictly observe the laws against fraud and corruption in force in India namely, "Prevention of Corruption Act 1988."

Name of the Bidder [insert complete name of person signing the Bid]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder** [insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid]

Title of the person signing the Bid [insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]

Signature of the person named above *[insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]*

Date signed _[insert date of signing] day of [insert month], [insert year]

**: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid Schedules.

¹Bidder to use as appropriate

2. LETTER OF BID-FINANCIAL PART

The Bidder must prepare the Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder's complete name and address.

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing these forms and shall be deleted from the final products.

No alterations to the text except as provided in ITB 20.2, shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted except as provided in ITB 12.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] NCB No.: [insert number of bidding process] Invitation for Bid No.: [insert No of IFB] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To:

The Chairman, Central Ground Water Board, Government of India, NH IV, Faridabad – 121001

We, the undersigned Bidder, hereby submit the second part of our Bid, the Financial Part. In submitting our Financial Part we make the following additional declarations:

- (a) Our bid shall be valid for the period of time specified in ITB Sub-Clause 18.1, from the date fixed for the bid submission deadline in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 22, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (b) The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (c) below, is:

In case of only one lot, total price of the Bid [insert the total price of the bid in words and figures];

In case of multiple lots, total price of each lot [insert the total price of each lot in words and figures];

In case of multiple lots, total price of all lots (sum of all lots) [insert the total price of all lots in words and figures];

(c) The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:

- (i) The discounts offered are: [Specify in detail each discount offered.]
- (ii) The <u>exact method of calculations to determine the net price after application of discounts is shown below</u>: [Specify in detail the method that shall be used to apply <u>the discounts</u>]; Discounts.
- (d) The following commissions, gratuities, or fees have been paid or are to be paid with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract: [insert complete name of each Recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity]

Name of Recipient	Address	Reason	Amount

(If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate "none.")

(e) We understand that this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed.

Name of the Bidder [insert complete name of person signing the Bid]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder** [insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid]

Title of the person signing the Bid [insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]

Signature of the person named above *[insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]*

Date signed _[insert date of signing] day of [insert month], [insert year]

**: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid Schedules.

3. BIDDER INFORMATION FORM

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] NCB No.: [insert number of bidding process]

Page _____ of ____ pages

1. Bidder's Legal Name [insert Bidder's legal name]
2. Bidder's actual or intended Country of Registration: [insert actual or intended Country of Registration]
3. Bidder's Year of Registration: [insert Bidder's year of registration]
4. Bidder's Legal Address in Country of Registration: [insert Bidder's legal address in country of registration]
5. Bidder's Authorized Representative Information
Name: [insert Authorized Representative's name]
Address: [insert Authorized Representative's Address]
Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers]
Email Address: [insert Authorized Representative's email address]
6. Attached are copies of original documents of: [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]
Articles of Incorporation or Registration of firm named in 1, above, in accordance with ITB Sub- Clauses 4.3.
In case of government owned entity from the Purchaser's country, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy and compliance with commercial law and not dependent agency of borrower or sub-borrower or purchaser, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 4.5.
Included are the organizational chart ,a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership

3B. BIDDER'S JV MEMBERS INFORMATION FORM

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture].

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] ICB No.: [insert number of bidding process] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

Page _____ of ____ pages

1.	Bidder's Legal Name: [insert Bidder's legal name]
2.	Bidder's JV Member's Legal Name: [insert JV's Member legal name]
3.	Bidder's JV Member's country of registration: [insert JV's Member country of registration]
4.	Bidder's JV Member's year of registration: [insert JV's Member year of registration]
5.	Bidder's JV Member's legal address in country of registration: [insert JV's Member legal address in country of registration]
6.	Bidder's JV Member's authorized representative information
Nar	ne: [insert name of JV's Member authorized representative]
Ado	Iress: [insert address of JV's Member authorized representative]
Tele	ephone/Fax numbers: [insert telephone/fax numbers of JV's Member authorized representative]
Em	ail Address: [insert email address of JV's Member authorized representative]
7.	Attached are copies of original documents of [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]
	Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or registration documents of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.3.
	In case of a Government-owned enterprise or institution, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy, operation in accordance with commercial law, and absence of dependent status, in accordance with ITB 4.5.
8. lr	cluded are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.

4. FORM OF AFFIDAVIT FOR CORRECTNESS OF INFORMATION AND DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED WITH BID

[Reference ITB12.3]

[This affidavit should be on a non-judicial stamp paper of Rs.10/- and shall be attested by Magistrate/ Sub-Judge/ Notary Public]

I, (name of the authorised representative of the Bidder) solemnly affirm and state as under:

Deponent

Place:	
Date:	

* This sub-paragraph is not applicable if the Bidder is an individual and is signing the Bid on his own behalf.

5.Price Schedule Forms

[The Bidder shall fill in these Price Schedule Forms in accordance with the instructions indicated. The list of line items in column 1 of the **Price Schedules** shall coincide with the List of Goods and Related Services specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements.]

1. PRICE SCHEDULE FOR SUPPLY OF GOODS AS PER SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS (FOR 475 WELLS)

	Price in Rs. N							Date: NCB No: Alternative No: Page No of		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
Line Item No	Description of Goods	Country of Origin	Delivery Date	Quantity and physical unit	Unit price EXW	Total EXW price per line item (Col. 5×6)	Price per line item for inland transportation, insurance and other services required to convey the Goods to their final destination (ITB 14.8 (a)(iii))	GST and other taxes payable per item if Contract is awarded (in accordance with ITB 14.8(a)(ii)	Total Price per line item (Excluding GST and other taxes) (Col. 7+8)	
1	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with Telemetry									
1a	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non –vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with water level measurement range up to 30-mts and sensor cable specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable, to be installed at depth as per Table-1 and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list		4 months from date of signing of contract	Nos (List Provided)						
1b	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non –vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with water level measurement range up to 45-mts and sensor cable specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable, to be installed at depth as per Table-1 and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list		4 months from date of signing of contract	Nos (List Provided)						

				A. Total P	rice (Rs)	
1e	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non –vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with water level measurement range up to 120-mts and sensor cable specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable, to be installed at depth as per Table-1 and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list	4 months from date of signing of contract	Nos (List Provided)			
1d	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non –vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with water level measurement range up to 105-mts and sensor cable specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable, to be installed at depth as per Table-1 and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list	4 months from date of signing of contract	Nos (List Provided)			
1c	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non –vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with water level measurement range up to 75-mts and sensor cable specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable, to be installed at depth as per Table-1 and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list	4 months from date of signing of contract	Nos (List Provided)			

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [insert date]

2. PRICE AND COMPLETION SCHEDULE - RELATED SERVICES (FOR 475 WELLS)

	Price in Rs.	No: of				
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Service N°	Description of Services (excludes inland transportation and other services required in India to convey the goods to their final destination)	Country of Origin	Delivery Date at place of Final destination	Quantity and physical unit	Unit price	Total Price per Service (Col. 5*6)
S-1	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with Telemetry					
S-1	Installation, Testing and Commissioning of Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non-vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with desired measurement range and standard sensor cable as specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable to be installed at depth as per list and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list		9 months from date of signing of contract	475 No.		
S-2	Integration of GSM & GPRS data with the existing Regional Office Data Center (NDC) at Chennai with all ancillary equipment as per technical specifications		4 months from date of signing of contract	01No.		
S-3	Five Years Operation & Maintenance and Comprehensive Warranty for DWLRs with Telemetry system along with accessories, installed at designated locations and Data Center equipment as specified in schedule of requirement after final acceptance and upgradation of all software associated with DWLR systems. This includes replacement of batteries as & when required, replacement of spares/ parts/ equipments/ consumables, periodic inspections, repairing/service charges, the cost of Communication using GSM & GPRS SIM and other related charges.		Continuous activity for five years after successful commissioning and final acceptance certificate of DWLR	01 Lot		

	Minimum One Service Engineer shall be placed at Regional Office Data Center & one in each Region for Operation of DWLR system with Telemetry.				
S-4 a S- 4b	Comprehensive AMC for DWLR with telemetry Systems along with all accessories, installed at designated locations and Data Center equipments as specified in schedule of requirement after 5 years warranty period This includes the replacement of batteries as and when required, replacement of spares/ parts/ equipments/ consumables, periodic inspections, repairing/service charges, the cost of communication using GSM &GPRS, SIM and High speed Internet charges and other related charges.	Continuous activity for two years after five years O&M and warranty period	Year 1 after expiry of O & M and warranty period of 5 years Year 2 after expiry of O & M and warranty period of 5 years		
S-6	Training of the purchaser's personnel at the supplier's plant and/or/onsite in assembly, startup, operation, maintenance and/or repair of DWLR with telemetry and relevant software and supplied goods. Course topics will include sensor calibration, data logger configuration, data downloading, data retrieval, collection, Trouble shooting, processing maintenance requirements and procedure for equipment configuration, installation, site testing and commissioning including training kit containing course material in soft and hard copies as per technical specification	Continuous activity as per table in Schedule of Requirement	24 trainings		
		Sum (Exc	luding GST & other	taxes)Rs. (B)	
				GST	
			Total pri	ice Rs. (A+B)	

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [insert date]

6.Form of Bid Security

(Bank Guarantee)

[The bank shall fill in this Bank Guarantee Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Beneficiary: [Purchaser to insert its name and address]

IFB No.: [Purchaser to insert reference number for the Invitation for Bids]

Alternative No.: [Insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

Date: [Insert date of issue]

BID GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]

We have been informed that _____ [insert name of the Bidder, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture (whether legally constituted or prospective) or the names of all members thereof] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has submitted or will submit to the Beneficiary its bid (hereinafter called "the Bid") for the execution of ______ under Invitation for Bids No. ______ ("the IFB").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the Beneficiary's conditions, bids must be supported by a bid guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we, as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of ______ (_____) upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand, supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that either the Applicant:

- (a) has withdrawn its Bid during the period of bid validity set forth in the Applicant's Letter of Bid ("the Bid Validity Period"), or any extension thereto provided by the Applicant; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Beneficiary during the Bid Validity Period or any extension thereto provided by the Applicant, (i) has failed to execute the contract agreement, or (ii) has failed to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders ("ITB") of the Beneficiary's bidding document.

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Applicant is the successful bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the contract agreement signed by the Applicant and the performance security issued to the Beneficiary in relation to such contract agreement; or (b) if the Applicant is not the successful bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of the Beneficiary's notification to the Applicant of the results of the bidding process; or (ii)forty five days after the end of the Bid Validity Period.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office indicated above on or before that date.

[Signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

7. MANUFACTURER'S AUTHORIZATION

[The Bidder shall require the Manufacturer to fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated. This letter of authorization should be on the letterhead of the Manufacturer and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are legally binding on the Manufacturer. The Bidder shall include it in its bid, if so indicated in the **BDS**.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] NCB No.: [insert number of bidding process] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [insert complete name of Purchaser]

WHEREAS

We [insert complete name of Manufacturer], who are official manufacturers of [insert type of goods manufactured], having factories at [insert full address of Manufacturer's factories], do hereby authorize [insert complete name of Bidder] to submit a bid the purpose of which is to provide the following Goods, manufactured by us [insert name and or brief description of the Goods], and to subsequently negotiate and sign the Contract against the above IFB.

We hereby extend our full guarantee and warranty in accordance with Clause 28 of the General Conditions of Contract, with respect to the Goods offered by the above firm against this IFB.

We as a manufacturer of *[insert type of goods manufactured]* confirm to provide the spare & service support for a minimum period of 10 years after commissioning

Signed: [insert signature(s) of authorized representative(s) of the Manufacturer]

Name: [insert complete name(s) of authorized representative(s) of the Manufacturer] Title: [insert title]

Duly authorized to sign this Authorization on behalf of: [insert complete name of Bidder]

Dated on ______ day of ______, ____[insert date of signing]

Note – Modify this format suitably in cases where manufacturer's warranty and guarantee are not applicable for the items for which bids are invited. If the supply consists of number of items, indicate the specific item (s) for which alone the above authorization is required.

8.DECLARATION FOR CLAIMING EXCISE DUTY EXEMPTION

(Name of the Project)

Bid No
Description of item to be supplied

(Information for issue of certificate for claiming exemption of Excise Duty (ED) in terms of Central excise notification No. 108/95)

(Bidder's Name and Address):

(Name of Purchaser)

То

Dear Sir:

- 1. We confirm that we are solely responsible for obtaining deemed export benefits which we have considered in our bid and in case of failure to receive such benefits for reasons whatsoever, Purchaser will not compensate us.
- 2. We are furnishing below the information required by the Purchaser for issue of necessary certificate in terms of Central Excise notification no 108/95 read along with all subsequent amendments including the amendment dated 01-03-2008.

(i) Ex-factory price per unit on which ED is payable: *Rs. _____

- (ii) No of Units to be supplied:
- (iii) Total cost on which ED is payable

(Rs.)_____

(The requirements listed above are as per Current notifications. These may be modified, as necessary, in terms of the rules in force)

(Signature)	
(Printed Name) _	
(Designation)	
(Common Seal)	

* Please attach details item-wise with cost, if there are more than one items. The figures indicated should tally with what is given in the price schedule.

9. PERFORMA FOR PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

[Please see ITB Clause 36.2 and Section III-Evaluation and Qualification Criteria]

	Proforma for Performance Statement (for a period of last three/five years)						
Bid No		Date of opening		Tim	e Hours		
		Name of the	Firm				
Order placed by (full address of Purchaser)	Order No. and date	Description and quantity of ordered equipment	<u>Value of</u> <u>order</u>	<u>Date of con</u> deliv		Remarks indicating reasons for late delivery, if any	Has the equipment been satisfactorily functioning? (Attach a certificate from the Purchaser/Consignee)
				As per contract	Actual		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8

Note:

A) Delivery means the commencement of supply of data on commissioning

B) * - Performance certificate from the client indicating successful receipt of data for the period from __to __ from ___no of locations, should be submitted for each order failing which the same will not considered.

Signature and seal of the Bidder

SECTION V. – ELIGIBLE COUNTRIES

Public Information Center

Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Non Consulting Services in Bank-Financed Procurement

In reference to ITB 4.7 and 5.1, for the information of the Bidders, at the present time firms, goods and services from the following countries are excluded from this bidding process:

Under ITB 4.7(a) and 5.1: None

Under ITB 4.7(b) and 5.1: None

SECTION- VI. BANK POLICY - CORRUPT AND FRAUDULENT PRACTICES

Guidelines for Procurement of Goods, Works, and Non-Consulting Services under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits & Grants by World Bank Borrowers, dated January 2011.

"Fraud and Corruption:

- 1.16 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank loans), bidders, suppliers, contractors and their agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts.² In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:
 - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;³;
 - ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;⁴
 - (iii) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including influencing improperly the actions of another party;⁵
 - (iv) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;⁶
 - (v) "obstructive practice" is:
 - (aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially

² In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

³ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "*another party*" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "*public official*" includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

⁴ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

⁵ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

⁶ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or

- (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 1.16(e) below.
- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- (c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the loan allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement or the implementation of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank's sanctions procedures,⁷ including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time: (i) to be awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (ii) to be a nominated⁸;
- (e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors, and their sub-contractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records, and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank."

A firm or individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract upon: (i) completion of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, and through the application the World Bank Group corporate administrative procurement sanctions procedures for fraud and corruption; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an ongoing sanctions proceeding. See footnote 14 and paragraph 8 of Appendix 1 of these Guidelines.

⁸ A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

PART 2 - SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS

SECTION VII – SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS

1. LIST OF GOODS AND DELIVERY SCHEDULE FOR 475 NUMBERS	69
2. LIST OF RELATED SERVICES [ITB CLAUSE 14.8(B)] AND COMPLETION SCHEDULE	72
3. TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	
4. DRAWINGS	115
5. INSPECTIONS AND TESTS	115
6. PROFORMA OF CERTIFICATE FOR ISSUE BY THE PURCHASER AFTER	126
SUCCESSFUL INSTALLATION AND STARTUP OF THE SUPPLIED GOODS	126

1. List of Goods and Delivery Schedule for 475 Numbers

Line	Description of Goods	Quantity	Physical	Final (Site)	Deliv	very (as per Inco terms)	Date
ltem N°			unit	Destination as specified in BDS	Earliest Delivery Date	Latest Delivery Date	Bidder's offered Delivery date
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
1	Digital Water Level recorders DWLR	with Telem	etry				
1a	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non –vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with water level measurement range up to 30-mts and sensor cable specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable, to be installed at depth as per Table-1 and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list	List provided	Nos.	As per list of Installation Sites for DWLR	4 months from date of signing of contract	4 months from date of signing of contract	
1b	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non –vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with water level measurement range up to 45-mts and sensor cable specified in Table-1 - List	List provided	Nos.	As per list of Installation Sites for DWLR	4 months from date of signing of contract	4 months from date of signing of contract	

	of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable, to be installed at depth as per Table-1 and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list						
1c	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non -vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with water level measurement range up to 75-mts and sensor cable specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable, to be installed at depth as per Table-1 and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list	List provided	Nos.	As per list of Installation Sites for DWLR	4 months from date of signing of contract	4 months from date of signing of contract	
1d	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non -vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with water level measurement range up to 105-mts and sensor cable specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter	List provided	Nos.	As per list of Installation Sites for DWLR	4 months from date of signing of contract	4 months from date of signing of contract	

	signal cable, to be installed at depth as per Table-1 and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list						
1e	Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non –vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with water level measurement range up to 120-mts and sensor cable specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable, to be installed at depth as per Table-1 and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list	List provided	Nos.	As per list of Installation Sites for DWLR	4 months from date of signing of contract	4 months from date of signing of contract	

2. List of Related Services [ITB Clause 14.8(b)] and Completion Schedule

Service	Description of Service	Quantity	Physical Unit	Place where Services shall be performed	Final Completion Date(s) of Services
1	Digital Water Level Recorders (DWLRs) –with telemetry system				
S-1a	Installation, Testing and Commissioning of Digital Water Level recorders (DWLRs) with non-vented hydrostatic pressure type sensor and barometric pressure correction for individual station with desired measurement range and standard sensor cable as specified in Table-1 - List of Installation Sites for DWLR along with junction boxes and 5 meter signal cable to be installed at depth as per list and necessary accessories with battery operated data logger and telemetry System based on GSM & GPRS as per the technical specifications to be installed at designated locations as per list	475	Nos	As per List of Installation Sites for DWLR	9 months from the date of signing of the contract
S-2	Integration of GSM & GPRS data with the existing Regional Office Data Center, Chennai (RODC) with all ancillary equipment as per technical specifications	01	Nos	As per List of Installation Sites for DWLR	4 months from the date of signing of the contract
S-3	Five Years Operation & Maintenance and Comprehensive Warranty for DWLRs with Telemetry system along with accessories, installed at designated locations and Data Center equipment as specified in schedule of requirement after final acceptance and upgradation of all software associated with DWLR systems. This includes replacement of batteries as & when required, replacement of spares/ parts/ equipments/ consumables, periodic inspections, repairing/service charges, the cost of Communication using GSM &GPRS SIM and other related charges. Minimum One Service Engineer shall be placed at Regional Office Data Center for Operation of DWLR system with Telemetry.	01	Lot	 Location of DWLRs as per List Data Centre Equipment at Regional Office Data Centre, CGWB, Chennai 	Continuous activity. for five years after successful commissioning and final acceptance certificate of DWLR

S-4	Comprehensive AMC for DWLR with telemetry System along with all accessories, installed at designated locations and Data Center equipments as specified in schedule of requirement after 5 years warranty period. This includes the replacement of batteries as and when required at bidder's cost; the cost of communication using GSM & GPRS, SIM and High speed Internet charges and other related charges	1	Year	 Location of DWLRs as per List Data Centre Equipment at Regional Office Data Centre, CGWB, Chennai 	Year One after expiry of O & M and warranty period of 5 year
		1	Year	 Location of DWLRs as per List Data Centre Equipment at Regional Data Centre, CGWB, Chennai 	Year two after expiry of O & M and warranty period of 5 year
S-5	Training of the purchaser's personnel at the supplier's plant and/or/onsite in assembly, startup, operation, maintenance and/or repair of DWLR with telemetry and relevant software and supplied goods. Course topics will include sensor calibration, data logger configuration, data downloading, data retrieval, collection, Trouble shooting, processing maintenance requirements and procedure for equipment configuration, installation, site testing and commissioning including training kit containing course material in soft and hard copies as per technical specification	24	Nos. Training	As per table in Schedule of Requirement Two each in CGWB Regional Offices (SECR) & at NDC, Faridabad.	Continuous activity

Table-1 - LIST OF INSTALLATION DWLR AT SITE IN THE STATE OF TAMILNADU & UT OF PUDUCHERRY

S.No	State wise SI No	State	District	Block	Village	Latitude	Longitude	Depth constructed (m)	WL_Premonsoon 2018 (mbgl)	WL_Post monsoon 2018 (mbgl)	Tentative depth of installation of DWLR (m)
1	1	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ANDIMADAM	Elaiyur pz	11.2333	79.3150	216.00	58.03	59.85	64.85
2	2	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	JAYAMKONDAM	G.K.Cholapuram -EW	11.2081	79.4475	101.00	33.28	28.62	38.28
3	3	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	JAYAMKONDAM	G.K.Cholapuram -OW-1-Pz	11.2081	79.4475	101.00	34.83	30.25	39.83
4	4	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	JAYAMKONDAM	G.K.Cholapuram -OW-2	11.2081	79.4475	101.00	40.90	38.48	45.90
5	5	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ANDIMADAM	Keelkavarapalayam- OW-1	11.3478	79.3842	101.00	81.20	82.25	87.25
6	6	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ANDIMADAM	Keelkavarapalayam- OW-2	11.3478	79.3842	101.00	81.29	82.06	87.06
7	7	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ANDIMADAM	Kuvagam ew	11.2836	79.2839	223.00	109.40	66.65	114.40
8	8	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ANDIMADAM	Kuvagam Ow	11.2836	79.2839	223.00	100.00	77.43	105.00
9	9	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ANDIMADAM	Mahimapuram OW-2	11.3478	79.3842	101.00	39.20	39.90	44.90
10	10	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ANDIMADAM	Oliyur ew	11.3992	79.3208	147.00	56.58	58.49	63.49
11	11	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ANDIMADAM	Oliyur ow 1	11.3992	79.3208	147.00	56.48	58.38	63.38
12	12	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ANDIMADAM	Oliyur ow 2	11.3992	79.3208	147.00	56.30	58.19	63.19
13	13	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ARIYALUR	V.Ramanapuram OW	11.1756	79.1094	150.00	34.96	32.30	39.96
14	14	Tamil Nadu	Ariyalur	ARIYALUR	V.Ramanapuram PZ	11.1756	79.1094	101.00	35.27	30.50	40.27
15	15	Tamil Nadu	Chennai	THOMAS MALAI	Pallavaram	12.9728	80.1544	46.00	3.40	3.95	8.95
16	16	Tamil Nadu	Chennai	CHENNAI	Taramani (NITTR PZ)	12.9867	80.2497	101.00	4.60	4.20	9.60
17	17	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Alandurai pz	10.9625	76.8008	200.00	21.95	17.45	26.95
18	18	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	AVINASHI	Alathur pz	11.3000	77.1894	187.00	32.25	8.20	37.25
19	19	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PERIYANAICKANPALAYAM	Anaikatti pz	11.1131	76.7508	77.00	12.02	11.85	17.02
20	20	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PONGALUR	Andipalayam	11.0050	77.4039	60.00	7.85	1.68	12.85

21	21	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	ANAMALAI	Angalakurichi	10.5250	76.9994	49.00	10.42	1.75	15.42
22	22	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THIRUPPUR	Boyampalayam pz	11.1347	77.3519	60.00	5.35	2.70	10.35
23	23	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Cbe Stock Exchange pz	10.9964	77.0050	60.00	8.88	9.39	14.39
24	24	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Chennanur pz	10.9453	76.8350	200.00	41.90	36.92	46.90
25	25	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Coimbatore Taluk Office	11.0017	76.9711	60.85	33.66	20.35	38.66
26	26	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PERIYANAICKANPALAYAM	Corporation North Zone pz	11.0161	76.9772	200.00	14.51	8.65	19.51
27	27	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PERIYANAICKANPALAYAM	Cwc Campus pz	11.0414	77.0006	60.00	5.20	3.90	10.20
28	28	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Devarayapuram pz	10.9953	76.8017	157.00	40.85	41.52	46.52
29	29	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THIRUPPUR	Ganganaickenpalayam pz	11.1092	77.4356	60.00	13.46	26.26	31.26
30	30	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PERIYANAICKANPALAYAM	Ghs Ganapathi pz	11.0419	76.9419	60.00	5.00	4.15	10.00
31	31	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THIRUPPUR	lduvampalayam pz	11.0842	77.3111	60.00	2.78	2.82	7.82
32	32	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PALLADAM	Kallampalayam	11.0303	77.2833	60.00	9.00	11.30	16.30
33	33	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PERIYANAICKANPALAYAM	Kalviramapalayam	11.0417	76.8875	70.00	60.60	63.40	68.40
34	34	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THIRUPPUR	Kaniyampoondi pz	11.1289	77.2833	60.00	25.90	8.44	30.90
35	35	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	KINATHUKADAVU	Kattampatty pz	10.8053	77.1425	200.00	9.88	9.50	14.88
36	36	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	KINATHUKADAVU	Kinathukadavu pz	10.8167	77.0167	56.65	5.30	3.63	10.30
37	37	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Kuniyamuthur	10.9667	76.9167	64.05	10.92	4.65	15.92
38	38	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PALLADAM	Kunnakalpalayam pz	11.0456	77.3272	60.00	4.04	3.90	9.04
39	39	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	MADUKKARAI	Madukkarai-PZ	10.9083	76.9667	45.75	12.90	16.60	21.60
40	40	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	KARAMADAI	Mettupalayam pz	11.3000	76.9472	39.00	9.92	9.30	14.92
41	41	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	OhT Campus pz	11.0008	76.9511	99.00	32.26	22.26	37.26
42	42	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PERIYANAICKANPALAYAM	P.S.G. college	11.0217	77.0025	200.00	16.40	15.50	21.40
43	43	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	UDUMALAIPETTAI	Pallapalayam pz	10.5256	77.2181	152.00	34.40	17.20	39.40

44	44	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	UTHUKULI	Pappampalayam	11.1356	77.4828	60.00	9.08	5.38	14.08
45	45	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	GUDIMANGALAM	Pathampatti pz	10.6781	77.2147	163.00	6.85	10.00	15.00
46	46	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	KINATHUKADAVU	Periya Negamam pz	10.7403	77.1014	200.00	17.50	10.95	22.50
47	47	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PALLADAM	Peruntholavu Pz	11.0467	77.3814	60.00	52.60	47.50	57.60
48	48	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	MADUKKARAI	Pichanur	10.8750	76.9000	48.80	18.40	12.35	23.40
49	49	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	ANNUR	Pillaimpalayam pz	11.1914	77.0900	100.00	28.53	21.85	33.53
50	50	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	ANNUR	Pongalur pz	11.2983	77.0789	60.00	7.58	4.35	12.58
51	51	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	POLLACHI SOUTH	Samathoor HSS	10.6022	77.0092	130.00	20.25	6.05	25.25
52	52	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	SARKARSAMAKULAM	Saravanampatti1	11.0750	77.0014	61.00	33.26	25.90	38.26
53	53	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	SARKARSAMAKULAM	Sarkar samakulam pz	11.1333	77.0333	147.00	16.10	13.65	21.10
54	54	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	KARAMADAI	Seeliyur	11.1792	76.7583	52.65	5.70	5.85	10.85
55	55	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Sugarcane Institute pz	11.0097	76.9186	143.00	30.55	27.90	35.55
56	56	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	SULUR	Sulur pz	11.0181	77.1236	111.00	0.75	1.05	6.05
57	57	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Sundakkamuthur pz	10.9528	76.9217	200.00	43.80	41.35	48.80
58	58	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Telngupalayam	10.9833	76.9228	60.00	9.89	8.61	14.89
59	59	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	AVINASHI	Thathanur Aanaikalpalayam pz	11.3067	77.2789	187.50	56.05	7.84	61.05
60	60	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	KARAMADAI	Thekkampatti pz	11.2558	76.9347	50.00	12.02	6.50	17.02
61	61	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	ANAMALAI	Thivansapudur	10.6283	76.8753	114.00	16.22	7.28	21.22
62	62	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Thondamuthur	10.9833	76.8333	58.00	52.40	42.98	57.40
63	63	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THONDAMUTHUR	Tn Urban Studies pz	11.0219	76.9419	200.00	16.73	13.80	21.73
64	64	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	GUDIMANGALAM	Varadharajapuram Murungapatti pz	10.6797	77.2719	157.00	61.56	43.70	66.56
65	65	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THIRUPPUR	Velampalayam	11.1447	77.3094	60.00	21.20	11.95	26.20

66	66	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	PERIYANAICKANPALAYAM	Vellakinaru pz	11.0733	76.9528	200.00	44.95	36.47	49.95
67	67	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Arasadikuppam	11.6619	79.5667	115.00	88.06	88.48	93.48
68	68	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KAMMAPURAM	C.Keeranur OW-1	11.4569	79.3739	101.00	48.59	52.82	57.82
69	69	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KAMMAPURAM	C.Keeranur OW-2	11.4569	79.3739	101.00	49.34	57.76	62.76
70	70	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Kattiyankuppam Pz-1	11.5036	79.6325	101.00	88.12	62.70	93.12
71	71	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Kattiyankuppam Pz-2	11.5036	79.6325	101.00	98.10	73.95	101.00
72	72	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Kattiyankuppam Pz-3	11.5036	79.6325	101.00	88.66	63.15	93.66
73	73	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	CUDDALORE	Kattusagai(n)	11.6500	79.6500	300.00	82.60	58.00	87.60
74	74	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Kodandaramapuram pz	11.5228	79.6533	101.00	46.16	37.90	51.16
75	75	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Kudikadu PZ 1	11.6833	79.7739	101.00	8.29	5.10	13.29
76	76	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	MANGALUR	Mangalur	11.5125	79.0111	48.78	14.12	12.14	19.12
77	77	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	MELBHUVANAGIRI	Maruthur IV	11.4922	79.6028	100.00	39.62	27.73	44.62
78	78	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	MELBHUVANAGIRI	Maruthur II	11.4922	79.6028	55.00	48.91	37.10	53.91
79	79	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	MELBHUVANAGIRI	Maruthur EW	11.4922	79.6028	40.00	7.66	5.72	12.66
80	80	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KOLLIDAM	Nallur	11.3300	79.7753	42.75	7.76	8.75	13.75
81	81	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	ANNAGRAMAM	Nellikuppam PZ	11.7758	79.6733	101.00	29.26	27.06	34.26
82	82	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Pacharapalayam II-EW	11.5922	79.5922	362.00	76.76	74.95	81.76
83	83	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Pacharapalayam PzI-OW	11.5922	79.5922	210.00	77.88	74.90	82.88
84	84	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KUMARATCHI	Palaiyamkottai EW	11.3619	79.4669	101.00	66.95	64.20	71.95
85	85	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	MELBHUVANAGIRI	Parudur Pz-1	11.4161	79.5722	101.00	52.03	44.80	57.03
86	86	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	MELBHUVANAGIRI	Parudur Pz-2	11.4161	79.5722	101.00	52.05	50.32	57.05
87	87	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	MELBHUVANAGIRI	Parudur Pz-3	11.4161	79.5722	101.00	54.36	49.76	59.36
88	88	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	PARANGIPETTAI	Puduchatram PZ	11.5203	79.7197	101.00	4.84	4.60	9.84
89	89	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Rajankuppam PZ	11.5417	79.5778	101.00	27.24	23.32	32.24

90	90	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	CUDDALORE	Ramapuram -I EW	11.6872	79.6942	150.00	77.02	43.67	82.02
91	91	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	CUDDALORE	Ramapuram -II EW1	11.6872	79.6942	200.00	49.13	46.85	54.13
92	92	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Reddipalayam pz	11.5322	79.5967	101.00	26.69	14.12	31.69
93	93	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Sengalpalayam I pz	11.5386	79.5189	101.00	83.66	83.95	88.95
94	94	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Sengalpalayam li pz	11.5386	79.5189	101.00	80.58	82.15	87.15
95	95	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	CUDDALORE	Silaminathanpettai I	11.6956	79.6100	348.00	81.65	70.10	86.65
96	96	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	CUDDALORE	Silaminathanpettai II	11.6956	79.6100	141.00	72.32	71.58	77.32
97	97	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KATTUMANNARKOIL	Srimushanam PZ	11.4050	79.3983	101.00	49.58	45.00	54.58
98	98	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Teerthanagiri EW	11.5772	79.6831	101.00	29.85	26.05	34.85
99	99	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Teerthanagiri OW-1	11.5772	79.6831	101.00	53.33	34.28	58.33
100	100	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Teerthanagiri OW-2	11.5772	79.6831	101.00	22.85	14.73	27.85
101	101	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Thaiyalkunapattinam pz	11.5839	79.6336	101.00	46.86	32.35	51.86
102	102	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Vadalur OW-1	11.5603	79.5561	101.00	77.38	69.74	82.38
103	103	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Vadalur OW-2	11.5603	79.5561	101.00	11.90	10.00	16.90
104	104	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	KURINJIPADI	Vanathirayapuram I	11.5867	79.5333	172.00	26.71	23.00	31.71
105	105	Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	VRIDHACHALAM	Virudachalam1	11.5167	79.3375	49.15	44.17	42.82	49.15
106	106	Tamil Nadu	Dharmapuri	DHARMAPURI	Dharmapuri2	12.1375	78.1708	62.30	24.88	22.22	29.88
107	107	Tamil Nadu	Dharmapuri	MORAPPUR	Ecchambadi	12.2017	78.3544	200.00	30.67	28.61	35.67
108	108	Tamil Nadu	Dharmapuri	HARUR	Harur2	12.0514	78.4833	49.00	18.24	19.72	24.72
109	109	Tamil Nadu	Dharmapuri	MORAPPUR	Jaggubathipalayam	12.1942	78.2950	200.00	22.25	17.10	27.25
110	110	Tamil Nadu	Dharmapuri	PENNAGARAM	Konnagihalli	12.1342	77.9683	101.00	42.52	39.35	47.52
111	111	Tamil Nadu	Dharmapuri	HARUR	Kottapatti	11.9778	78.6625	101.00	24.86	21.51	29.86
112	112	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	VADAMADURAI	Ayyalur	10.4792	78.1833	62.50	18.90	18.75	23.90
113	113	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	DINDIGUL	Chattarapatti pz	10.4619	77.9467	200.00	11.40	13.25	18.25
114	114	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	ATHOOR	Chitterivu pz	10.2378	77.7708	200.00	21.00	19.00	26.00

115	115	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	DINDIGUL	Dindigul1	10.4083	77.9667	42.00	3.40	2.68	8.40
116	116	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	THOPPAMPATTI	Kallimandiam	10.5833	77.6944	72.10	9.70	10.10	15.10
117	117	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	DINDIGUL	Kullanampatti	10.3417	77.9917	55.40	13.00	11.80	18.00
118	118	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	NATTAM	Nattam	10.2328	78.2333	51.25	7.10	5.70	12.10
119	119	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	REDDIARCHATRAM	Pittalaipatti	10.3278	77.9333	50.70	12.25	9.20	17.25
120	120	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	SANARPATTI	Sanarpatti	10.2583	78.1000	69.40	39.05	28.50	44.05
121	121	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	ATHOOR	Siddayamkottai	10.2725	77.8356	200.00	7.80	3.05	12.80
122	122	Tamil Nadu	Erode	AMMAPET	Alampalayam pz	11.6272	77.6061	60.00	51.96	52.15	57.15
123	123	Tamil Nadu	Erode	DHARAPURAM	Alangiyam	10.6583	77.4958	52.20	9.85	4.50	14.85
124	124	Tamil Nadu	Erode	THOOKANAICKENPALAYAM	Alukuli pz	11.4481	77.3578	60.00	46.37	46.37	51.37
125	125	Tamil Nadu	Erode	AMMAPET	Ammapet1	11.6250	77.7167	31.00	7.17	5.58	12.17
126	126	Tamil Nadu	Erode	MODAKKURUCHI	Arachchalur	11.1667	77.7000	71.46	6.67	6.30	11.67
127	127	Tamil Nadu	Erode	SATHIYAMANGALAM	Ariyappanpalayam pz	11.4756	77.2542	60.00	6.34	4.70	11.34
128	128	Tamil Nadu	Erode	TALAVADI	Asanur pz	11.6739	77.1289	60.00	14.80	13.38	19.80
129	129	Tamil Nadu	Erode	MODAKKURUCHI	Avalpundurai	11.2333	77.7208	60.20	4.92	5.28	10.28
130	130	Tamil Nadu	Erode	CHENNIMALAI	Basuvapatti pz	11.1381	77.6053	200.00	6.36	4.24	11.36
131	131	Tamil Nadu	Erode	AMMAPET	Chennampatti pz	11.7011	77.6719	60.00	57.34	55.80	60.00
132	132	Tamil Nadu	Erode	CHENNIMALAI	Chennimalai1	11.1583	77.5917	60.00	8.09	8.42	13.42
133	133	Tamil Nadu	Erode	DHARAPURAM	Dharapuram1	10.7333	77.5333	79.50	3.46	2.01	8.46
134	134	Tamil Nadu	Erode	SATHIYAMANGALAM	E. Chettipalayam	11.3942	77.3011	60.00	0.00	6.12	11.12
135	135	Tamil Nadu	Erode	MODAKKURUCHI	E.Vellampalayam pz	11.1697	77.6806	161.50	8.20	4.73	13.20
136	136	Tamil Nadu	Erode	GOBICHETTIPALAYAM	Gobichettipalayam	11.4500	77.4500	31.50	9.05	8.17	14.05
137	137	Tamil Nadu	Erode	DHARAPURAM	Govindhapuram pz	10.7133	77.4225	200.00	9.50	8.38	14.50
138	138	Tamil Nadu	Erode	AMMAPET	Guruvareddiyur	11.6417	77.6833	33.50	16.06	16.25	21.25
139	139	Tamil Nadu	Erode	CHENNIMALAI	Ingur pz	11.2261	77.5817	195.10	6.53	4.33	11.53
140	140	Tamil Nadu	Erode	PERUNDURAI	Kambaliyampatti pz	11.2314	77.5253	200.00	4.56	6.95	11.95

141	141	Tamil Nadu	Erode	THOOKANAICKENPALAYAM	Kambanaickenpalayam pz	11.5297	77.2953	200.00	26.44	21.07	31.44
142	142	Tamil Nadu	Erode	UTHUKULI	Karumancheri pz	11.1578	77.4444	200.00	30.90	14.40	35.90
143	143	Tamil Nadu	Erode	THOOKANAICKENPALAYAM	Kasipalayam pz	11.4544	77.3344	200.00	5.25	1.40	10.25
144	144	Tamil Nadu	Erode	SATHIYAMANGALAM	Kathampalayam pz	11.4256	77.2411	60.00	5.91	1.78	10.91
145	145	Tamil Nadu	Erode	ANTHIIYUR	Kattupalayam pz	11.5453	77.5953	60.00	10.48	10.12	15.48
146	146	Tamil Nadu	Erode	SATHIYAMANGALAM	Kavilipalayam pz	11.3792	77.2278	60.00	2.20	3.33	8.33
147	147	Tamil Nadu	Erode	BHAVANI	Kavundappadi	11.4333	77.5583	58.00	6.29	7.17	12.17
148	148	Tamil Nadu	Erode	KODUMUDI	Kodumudi pz	11.0819	77.8853	60.00	5.09	3.35	10.09
149	149	Tamil Nadu	Erode	DHARAPURAM	Kolathupalayam pz	10.7639	77.5831	200.00	6.10	3.63	11.10
150	150	Tamil Nadu	Erode	NAMBIYUR	Kosanam pz	11.3711	77.3578	200.00	13.90	7.25	18.90
151	151	Tamil Nadu	Erode	BHAVANISAGAR	Kottamangalam	11.4583	77.1333	40.00	12.44	8.76	17.44
152	152	Tamil Nadu	Erode	GOBICHETTIPALAYAM	Kugalur pz	11.4833	77.4806	60.00	8.59	7.18	13.59
153	153	Tamil Nadu	Erode	UTHUKULI	Kunnathur	11.2792	77.4125	91.70	29.40	20.30	34.40
154	154	Tamil Nadu	Erode	AMMAPET	Kurichi pz	11.5731	77.6950	60.00	5.21	2.26	10.21
155	155	Tamil Nadu	Erode	NAMBIYUR	Malaiyapalayam pz	11.2903	77.3306	60.00	50.46	11.86	55.46
156	156	Tamil Nadu	Erode	VELLAKOIL	Muttur	11.0500	77.7500	58.84	4.82	4.69	9.82
157	157	Tamil Nadu	Erode	PUDUR	Nagalapuram(Nagappapalayam)	9.2333	78.1306	70.90	4.38	3.13	9.38
158	158	Tamil Nadu	Erode	PERUNDURAI	Nallampatti pz	11.3333	77.5417	195.00	8.57	5.34	13.57
159	159	Tamil Nadu	Erode	KANGEYAM	Nattakadaiyur	11.0875	77.6611	69.20	7.44	7.90	12.90
160	160	Tamil Nadu	Erode	MULANUR	Nilangelvalasu pz	10.6431	77.7342	60.00	6.14	6.72	11.72
161	161	Tamil Nadu	Erode	KANGEYAM	Padiyur pz	11.0639	77.4922	200.00	7.76	9.58	14.58
162	162	Tamil Nadu	Erode	PERUNDURAI	Pandiyampalayam pz	11.3983	77.5175	60.00	18.38	11.10	23.38
163	163	Tamil Nadu	Erode	ERODE	Periyapuliyur pz	11.4283	77.6492	60.00	2.78	1.35	7.78
164	164	Tamil Nadu	Erode	NAMBIYUR	Pilliyampalayam pz	11.3447	77.3189	60.00	14.15	5.14	19.15
165	165	Tamil Nadu	Erode	DHARAPURAM	Ponnapuram Pz	10.6981	77.3906	200.00	42.00	36.80	47.00

166	166	Tamil Nadu	Erode	KODUMUDI	Priyakolanalli pz	11.1744	77.8567	60.00	5.11	1.68	10.11
167	167	Tamil Nadu	Erode	VELLAKOIL	Puduppai pz	10.9586	77.7225	60.00	6.28	4.80	11.28
168	168	Tamil Nadu	Erode	BHAVANISAGAR	Pungaipuliampatti	11.3500	77.1667	48.80	16.90	12.16	21.90
169	169	Tamil Nadu	Erode	BHAVANI	Punnam pz	11.5072	77.6139	60.00	5.15	4.14	10.15
170	170	Tamil Nadu	Erode	TALAVADI	Rajan Nagar pz	11.5289	77.1422	60.00	16.84	8.12	21.84
171	171	Tamil Nadu	Erode	KUNDADAM	Sangarandampalayam pz	10.8306	77.5864	200.00	29.40	12.50	34.40
172	172	Tamil Nadu	Erode	SATHIYAMANGALAM	Sathyamangalam1	11.4972	77.2361	31.20	11.50	8.82	16.50
173	173	Tamil Nadu	Erode	BHAVANI	Settunampalayam pz	11.5200	77.6033	60.00	9.22	8.15	14.22
174	174	Tamil Nadu	Erode	BHAVANI	Urachikottai	11.4847	77.6917	31.00	5.00	4.92	10.00
175	175	Tamil Nadu	Erode	TALAVADI	Velliyampalayamputhur pz	11.4886	77.1564	60.00	7.66	7.00	12.66
176	176	Tamil Nadu	Erode	BHAVANISAGAR	Vinnampalli	11.4328	77.2022	200.00	50.00	20.57	55.00
177	177	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	CHITHAMUR	Athur-Villupuram Dist	12.3778	79.7028	200.00	5.30	6.00	11.00
178	178	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	KUNDRATHUR	Guduvancheri	12.8417	80.0667	100.00	15.24	7.30	20.24
179	179	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	KATTANKOLATHUR	Kattankulathur	12.8083	80.0297	42.70	9.00	6.50	14.00
180	180	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	MADURANTAKAM	Maduranthakam	12.5083	79.8917	46.00	5.65	5.10	10.65
181	181	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	KATTANKOLATHUR	Nedunkundram	12.8847	80.1136	200.00	5.05	4.60	10.05
182	182	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	MADURANTAKAM	Nethapakkam	12.4411	79.8856	200.00	5.10	1.85	10.10
183	183	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	KUNDRATHUR	Paddapai	12.9125	80.0125	36.90	7.50	9.30	14.30
184	184	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	SRIPERUMBUDUR	Panruti Kandigai	12.9167	79.8444	181.15	9.00	4.70	14.00
185	185	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	THOMAS MALAI	Perungulathur	12.9167	80.1083	46.00	5.50	4.80	10.50
186	186	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	KATTANKOLATHUR	Ponmar	12.8658	80.1864	200.00	5.00	2.20	10.00
187	187	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	UTHIRAMERUR	Rettamangalam	12.6333	79.8333	42.70	6.25	3.30	11.25
188	188	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	UTHIRAMERUR	Thirumukkudal	12.7375	79.8417	61.60	2.50	2.20	7.50
189	189	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	THIRUPORUR	Tiruporur	12.7200	80.1850	36.20	3.20	2.31	8.20
190	190	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	WALAJABAD	Uthukkadu pz	12.8292	79.8300	200.00	2.30	1.00	7.30

191	191	Tamil Nadu	Kancheepuram	KUNDRATHUR	Vadakkupattu pz	12.8181	79.9367	118.25	1.00	0.70	6.00
192	192	Tamil Nadu	Kanyakumari	AGASTEESWARAM	Kanyakumari PZ	8.0889	77.5500	40.60	12.71	9.26	17.71
193	193	Tamil Nadu	Kanyakumari	KILLIYOOR	Karungal pz	8.2347	77.2347	54.40	13.25	13.09	18.25
194	194	Tamil Nadu	Kanyakumari	AGASTEESWARAM	Kundal(West) PZ	8.1028	77.5439	101.00	24.00	7.40	29.00
195	195	Tamil Nadu	Kanyakumari	MUNCHIRAI	Marthandam	8.3098	77.2144	28.15	7.50	8.70	13.70
196	196	Tamil Nadu	Kanyakumari	RAJAKKAMANGALAM	Rajakamangalam	8.1319	77.3667	14.65	2.80	2.40	7.80
197	197	Tamil Nadu	Kanyakumari	THUCKALAY	Thakkalai1	8.2486	77.3083	31.45	6.50	6.04	11.50
198	198	Tamil Nadu	Kanyakumari	THIRUVATTAR	Thiruvattar	8.3333	77.2678	48.60	6.72	8.60	13.60
199	199	Tamil Nadu	Karur	KARUR	Ayyampalayam pz	11.0611	78.0319	200.00	3.35	1.35	8.35
200	200	Tamil Nadu	Karur	KULITHALAI	Ayyarmalai pz	10.8792	78.4917	200.00	8.33	7.70	13.33
201	201	Tamil Nadu	Karur	ARAVAKURICHI	Choladasanpatti pz	10.8500	78.0000	60.00	8.32	12.50	17.50
202	202	Tamil Nadu	Karur	THOGAMALAI	Echampatti pz	10.8589	78.4228	200.00	7.75	3.27	12.75
203	203	Tamil Nadu	Karur	KULITHALAI	Enungur pz	10.8500	78.4917	200.00	8.40	8.50	13.50
204	204	Tamil Nadu	Karur	ARAVAKURICHI	Kovilur	10.7603	77.8289	60.00	3.05	4.70	9.70
205	205	Tamil Nadu	Karur	KARUR	Noyyil pz	11.0583	77.9333	200.00	4.40	5.00	10.00
206	206	Tamil Nadu	karur	THOGAMALAI	Vaducheri	10.7317	78.5250	55.00	11.08	11.92	16.92
207	207	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	SHOOLAGIRI	Athimugam1	12.7583	77.9792	51.00	6.35	8.54	13.54
208	208	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	BARGUR	Bargur	12.5458	78.3583	47.20	38.48	36.98	43.48
209	209	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	KRISHNAGIRI	Billakottai Pz	12.4072	78.1658	101.00	12.52	14.45	19.45
210	210	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	HOSUR	Hosur HP	12.7167	77.8333	67.00	10.37	12.22	17.22
211	211	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	KAVERIPATTANAM	Kaveripatnam	12.4125	78.2292	45.00	5.20	4.55	10.20
212	212	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	UTHANGARAI	Keezhkuppam Pz	12.2228	78.5283	101.00	12.44	15.00	20.00
213	213	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	SHOOLAGIRI	Kelamangalam Pz	12.5997	77.8625	101.00	4.88	6.24	11.24
214	214	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	KRISHNAGIRI	Krishnagiri1	12.5306	78.2306	62.00	17.84	13.24	22.84
215	215	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	PALACODU	Marandahalli	12.4000	78.0083	46.20	10.37	14.00	19.00
216	216	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	ALANGANALLUR	Alanganallur	10.0500	78.0967	15.85	10.20	6.12	15.20
217	217	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MELUR	Ambalakaranpatti pz	9.9683	78.3914	60.00	1.40	1.80	6.80

218	218	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MADURAI EAST	Andarkottaram pz	9.9086	78.1858	200.00	5.50	7.00	12.00
219	219	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	KALLIKUDI	Avalsuranpatti pz	9.6414	77.9744	60.00	6.20	5.75	11.20
220	220	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	CHELLAMPATTI	Chekkanoorani pz	9.9414	77.9681	60.00	9.35	4.20	14.35
221	221	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MADURAI WEST	Kallandri1	10.0458	78.2000	55.40	5.45	1.90	10.45
222	222	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	THIRUMANGALAM	Keelakottai pz	9.7867	78.0019	60.00	5.70	5.60	10.70
223	223	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	T.KALLUPATTY	Kolluveeranpatti pz	9.7069	77.8856	200.00	8.10	8.50	13.50
224	224	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	KOTTAMPATTI	Kottampatti pz	10.2219	78.3772	60.00	28.00	27.95	33.00
225	225	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	ALANGANALLUR	Kulamnagalm pz	10.0139	78.1147	60.00	2.43	0.95	7.43
226	226	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MADURAI EAST	Kunnathur pz	9.8967	78.2550	48.00	10.40	5.40	15.40
227	227	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MADURAI WEST	M.Chathirapatti pz	10.0517	78.1656	60.00	11.35	6.35	16.35
228	228	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MELUR	Melur1	10.0306	78.3333	46.30	11.50	2.60	16.50
229	229	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MADURAI WEST	Narayanapuram	9.9572	78.1333	60.00	32.90	16.85	37.90
230	230	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	THIRUPPARANKUNDRAM	Nilaiyur pz	9.8553	78.0589	60.00	11.30	6.71	16.30
231	231	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MADURAI WEST	Omachikulam pz	9.9950	78.1469	60.00	9.70	3.85	14.70
232	232	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	THIRUMANGALAM	P.Ammapatti pz	9.8458	77.8947	60.00	5.10	4.60	10.10
233	233	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	ALANGANALLUR	Palamedu PZ	10.1106	78.1133	60.00	3.00	1.05	8.00
234	234	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	T.KALLUPATTY	Peraiyur pz	9.7428	77.7922	200.00	12.60	11.60	17.60
235	235	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	SEDAPATTI	Saptur pz	9.7628	77.7392	200.00	19.20	17.25	24.20
236	236	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	SEDAPATTI	Sedapatti	9.7500	77.6750	39.40	11.65	8.05	16.65
237	237	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	THIRUMANGALAM	Surakulam pz	9.8364	78.0567	60.00	14.50	7.00	19.50
238	238	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	T.KALLUPATTY	T.Kalluppatti pz	9.7233	77.8475	200.00	12.95	12.45	17.95
239	239	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	SEDAPATTI	T.Ramanathapuram pz	9.8325	77.7167	200.00	8.00	7.60	13.00
240	240	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	ALANGANALLUR	Thandalai pz	10.0186	78.1011	170.70	5.40	3.00	10.40
241	241	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MELUR	Thaniyamangalam pz	10.0328	78.3936	60.00	17.80	6.75	22.80

242	242	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MADURAI WEST	Thethankulam pz	9.9775	78.1958	36.00	13.50	6.65	18.50
243	243	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	KOTTAMPATTI	Thonthilingapuram pz	10.2597	78.3586	60.00	20.80	19.15	25.80
244	244	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	KOTTAMPATTI	Thumbaipatti pz	10.0858	78.3747	60.00	12.05	13.60	18.60
245	245	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	CHELLAMPATTI	Thummakaundu pz	9.8739	77.8681	200.00	13.90	13.50	18.90
246	246	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	CHELLAMPATTI	Tirumangalam	9.9208	77.8833	54.25	7.65	8.00	13.00
247	247	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	VADIPATTI	Vadipatti Pz	10.0814	77.9669	60.00	3.00	1.22	8.00
248	248	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	THIRUPPARANKUNDRAM	Valayankulam	9.8042	78.0917	47.10	17.95	13.45	22.95
249	249	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MADURAI EAST	Varichiyur pz	9.9125	78.2569	60.00	15.75	9.03	20.75
250	250	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	MELUR	Vellalapatti pz	10.0597	78.2708	60.00	32.95	11.65	37.95
251	251	Tamil Nadu	Nagapattinam	KUTHALAM	Paramasivapuram II	10.9917	79.5681	451.80	17.05	17.00	22.05
252	252	Tamil Nadu	Nagapattinam	KUTHALAM	Paramasivapuram III	10.9914	79.5667	300.00	19.35	10.35	24.35
253	253	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	RASIPURAM	Anaipalayam D	11.4325	78.1589	200.00	4.60	6.70	11.70
254	254	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	RASIPURAM	Anaipalayam S	11.4325	78.1589	60.00	4.53	7.20	12.20
255	255	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	PUDUCHATHIRAM	Ezhur-Olapalayam D	11.3658	78.1192	200.00	110.00	88.80	115.00
256	256	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	PUDUCHATHIRAM	Ezhur-Olapalayam S	11.3658	78.1192	60.00	53.90	54.30	59.30
257	257	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	THIRUCHENGODU	Kokkarayanpettai D	11.3147	77.7947	200.00	3.70	3.03	8.70
258	258	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	THIRUCHENGODU	Kokkarayanpettai S	11.3147	77.7947	60.00	3.90	3.22	8.90
259	259	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	PARAMATHY	Nallurgaundanpalayam	11.2667	77.9750	65.00	10.49	9.60	15.49
260	260	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	PARAMATHY	Paramarthi	11.1542	78.0208	49.80	7.53	5.70	12.53
261	261	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	MALLASAMUDRAM	Ramapuram	11.4403	78.0092	200.00	6.00	7.90	12.90
262	262	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	KABILARMALAI	Solasiramani	11.2500	77.9083	49.50	6.40	6.05	11.40
263	263	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	GOBICHETTIPALAYAM	Tiruchengodu	11.4083	77.9583	70.10	10.30	13.88	18.88
264	264	Tamil Nadu	Nilgiris	GUDALUR	Gudalur	11.4997	76.4861	37.00	4.25	4.50	9.50
265	265	Tamil Nadu	Perambalur	VEPPANTHATTAI	Annukkur	11.3369	78.6853	49.20	7.76	7.86	12.86
266	266	Tamil Nadu	Perambalur	ALATHUR	Padalur Pz	11.0961	78.8253	101.00	6.68	7.70	12.70

267	267	Tamil Nadu	Perambalur	PERAMBALUR	Ranjankudi	11.2583	78.9417	42.60	5.84	9.05	14.05
268	268	Tamil Nadu	Perambalur	VEPPUR	Veppur1	11.3417	79.0625	61.50	4.86	5.00	10.00
269	269	Tamil Nadu	Pudukkottai	ANNAVASAL	Annavasal	10.4500	78.7028	37.90	11.94	7.70	16.94
270	270	Tamil Nadu	Pudukkottai	PONNAMARAVATHI	Konnaiyur	10.3181	78.5750	30.40	12.08	12.89	17.89
271	271	Tamil Nadu	Pudukkottai	KUNNANDARKOIL	Kunnandarkoil	10.5833	78.8917	40.03	12.81	16.35	21.35
272	272	Tamil Nadu	Pudukkottai	THIRUMAYAM	Paniyapatti	10.3125	78.6833	70.00	10.26	9.80	15.26
273	273	Tamil Nadu	Pudukkottai	PUDUKKOTTAI	Pudukkottai	10.3861	78.8042	45.00	5.98	3.90	10.98
274	274	Tamil Nadu	Pudukkottai	THIRUMAYAM	Thirumayam1	10.2333	78.7458	37.45	5.81	3.65	10.81
275	275	Tamil Nadu	Pudukkottai	VIRALIMALAI	Thondaimanallur	10.6083	78.7750	35.90	11.90	12.02	17.02
276	276	Tamil Nadu	Pudukkottai	VIRALIMALAI	Viralimalai1	10.6028	78.5667	46.60	10.40	9.59	15.40
277	277	Tamil Nadu	Ramanathapuram	KAMUTHI	Kamudhi	9.4083	78.2000	48.70	19.76	20.57	25.57
278	278	Tamil Nadu	Salem	KONGANAPURAM	Konganapuram	11.5667	77.9000	46.20	10.75	7.99	15.75
279	279	Tamil Nadu	Salem	KOLATHUR	Kulathur	11.8472	77.7472	65.50	27.60	27.65	32.65
280	280	Tamil Nadu	Salem	EDAPADI	Kullampatti	11.5833	77.7917	49.00	10.04	8.30	15.04
281	281	Tamil Nadu	Salem	NANGAVALLI	Nangavalli	11.7583	77.8958	65.80	11.14	12.50	17.50
282	282	Tamil Nadu	Salem	GANGAVALLI	Sendarpatti	11.4375	78.5000	70.50	7.47	7.14	12.47
283	283	Tamil Nadu	Salem	VEERAPANDY	Utamacholapuram deep pz	11.6139	78.1064	117.00	9.30	10.52	15.52
284	284	Tamil Nadu	Salem	THALAIVASAL	Veraganur	11.4750	78.7375	52.00	14.57	15.52	20.52
285	285	Tamil Nadu	Sivaganga	MANAMADURAI	Manamadurai1	9.7083	78.4750	66.40	13.17	13.05	18.17
286	286	Tamil Nadu	Sivaganga	SIVAGANGA	Muthupettai	9.8569	78.4833	40.50	14.98	15.15	20.15
287	287	Tamil Nadu	Sivaganga	SIVAGANGA	Padamathur	9.8514	78.3750	38.75	9.17	8.82	14.17
288	288	Tamil Nadu	Sivaganga	SAKKOTTAI	Sakottai	10.0958	78.8583	150.35	43.54	44.69	49.69
289	289	Tamil Nadu	Sivaganga	THIRUPATHUR	Tirupathur1	10.1583	78.5750	32.00	10.71	10.50	15.71
290	290	Tamil Nadu	Sivaganga	THIRUPATHUR	Tirupathur2	10.1583	78.5750	200.00	11.00	12.15	17.15
291	291	Tamil Nadu	Sivaganga	THIRUPATHUR	Tiruppattur-EW	10.1000	78.5833	200.00	12.15	12.00	17.15
292	292	Tamil Nadu	Theni	PERIYAKULAM	A.Vadipatti pz	10.0958	77.6881	60.00	56.15	55.20	60.00
293	293	Tamil Nadu	Theni	ANDIPATTI	Andipatti1	9.9917	77.6167	99.85	17.40	9.25	22.40
294	294	Tamil Nadu	Theni	ANDIPATTI	Balakombai PZ	9.9036	77.6233	200.00	35.00	34.10	40.00

295	295	Tamil Nadu	Theni	CHINNAMANUR	Chinnamanur pz	9.8472	77.3825	113.00	7.20	5.40	12.20
296	296	Tamil Nadu	Theni	CUMBUM	Cumbum pz	9.7283	77.2783	200.00	14.85	12.15	19.85
297	297	Tamil Nadu	Theni	CHINNAMANUR	Dumbacheri pz	9.9586	77.3911	164.60	7.55	4.95	12.55
298	298	Tamil Nadu	Theni	PERIYAKULAM	Ganguvarpatti pz	10.1669	77.6944	60.00	5.60	3.30	10.60
299	299	Tamil Nadu	Theni	MYLADUMPARAI	Kadamalaikundu pz	9.8072	77.5031	60.00	9.95	8.65	14.95
300	300	Tamil Nadu	Theni	BODINAYAKANUR	Kodangipatti pz	9.9917	77.4306	60.00	1.00	1.60	6.60
301	301	Tamil Nadu	Theni	THENI	Koduvilarpatti pz	9.9719	77.4919	60.00	17.35	7.80	22.35
302	302	Tamil Nadu	Theni	UTHAMAPALAYAM	Kombai pz	9.8442	77.2981	200.00	54.85	46.25	59.85
303	303	Tamil Nadu	Theni	CHINNAMANUR	Kottur Pz	9.9061	77.4058	60.00	20.00	3.12	25.00
304	304	Tamil Nadu	Theni	ANDIPATTI	M.Subbalapuram pz	9.9717	77.5564	60.00	17.10	16.27	22.10
305	305	Tamil Nadu	Theni	UTHAMAPALAYAM	Ramakrishnapuram pz	9.9392	77.3017	60.00	36.85	35.70	41.85
306	306	Tamil Nadu	Theni	UTHAMAPALAYAM	Sankarapuram pz	9.9069	77.3297	131.00	19.65	15.30	24.65
307	307	Tamil Nadu	Theni	CHINNAMANUR	Seelampatti PZ	9.8742	77.3928	60.00	3.00	1.90	8.00
308	308	Tamil Nadu	Theni	PERIYAKULAM	Silavarpatti pz	10.1197	77.6269	60.00	24.45	26.88	31.88
309	309	Tamil Nadu	Theni	CUMBUM	Surelipatti pz	9.7092	77.3006	158.00	9.50	7.05	14.50
310	310	Tamil Nadu	Theni	ANDIPATTI	T.Subbalapuram pz	10.0064	77.6547	200.00	17.20	11.35	22.20
311	311	Tamil Nadu	Theni	UTHAMAPALAYAM	ThamminaickPatti pz	9.9164	77.2997	60.00	41.45	36.70	46.45
312	312	Tamil Nadu	Theni	BODINAYAKANUR	Theni1	10.0042	77.2847	46.70	7.10	4.10	12.10
313	313	Tamil Nadu	Theni	UTHAMAPALAYAM	U Ammapatti pz	9.8394	77.3447	200.00	15.05	15.45	20.45
314	314	Tamil Nadu	Theni	PERIYAKULAM	Vadugapatti pz	10.0986	77.5714	60.00	11.00	12.00	17.00
315	315	Tamil Nadu	Theni	MYLADUMPARAI	Varusandu pz	9.7358	77.5203	60.00	19.65	15.85	24.65
316	316	Tamil Nadu	Theni	BODINAYAKANUR	Veerapandi pz	9.9606	77.4467	60.00	6.65	5.05	11.65
317	317	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	KALASAPAKKAM	(Netchhat)NetchatramalaiKovil	11.4439	78.0566	60.00	3.40	2.00	8.40
318	318	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	CHETPUT	Chetput	12.4667	79.3333	39.65	3.10	4.10	9.10

319	319	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	PERNAMANALLUR	Eendal	12.4361	79.4181	101.00	3.00	4.10	9.10
320	320	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	KALASAPAKKAM	Kadaladi pz	12.4042	78.9792	52.50	5.50	4.00	10.50
321	321	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	POLUR	Kalasapakkam	12.5058	79.1056	60.00	4.65	4.70	9.70
322	322	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	ANAICUT	Kuppam	12.7236	79.1256	101.30	3.50	3.60	8.60
323	323	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	THANDRAMPET	Ladavaram	12.1583	78.9750	60.00	10.00	11.00	16.00
324	324	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	KALASAPAKKAM	Modaiyur	12.5033	79.2450	200.00	7.70	7.80	12.80
325	325	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	ARNI	Mullandram	12.7667	79.2667	48.90	5.80	6.10	11.10
326	326	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	THURINJAPURAM	Narattampundi	12.3875	79.1000	49.50	4.25	5.30	10.30
327	327	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	CHETPUT	Padagam	12.4244	79.1911	60.00	7.00	6.90	12.00
328	328	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	MELPALLIPATTU	Melravandavadi	12.2083	78.7083	49.60	6.30	8.60	13.60
329	329	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	PUDUPALAYAM	Pudupalayam	12.3611	78.8792	49.40	8.50	9.60	14.60
330	330	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	POLUR	Sedarampattu	12.6808	79.1906	60.00	12.20	10.90	17.20
331	331	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	KALASAPAKKAM	Siruvallur	12.4858	78.9881	60.00	18.30	14.30	23.30
332	332	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	CHEYYAR	Tiruvatripuram (Cheyyar)	12.6656	79.5406	60.00	9.10	4.55	14.10
333	333	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	VANDAVASI	Vandavasi1	12.5022	79.6056	44.50	4.80	3.10	9.80
334	334	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	KEEZHAPAVUR	Alankulam	8.9000	77.4750	61.60	9.29	8.77	14.29
335	335	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	AMBASAMUDRAM	Ambasamudram	8.7194	77.4361	45.30	3.27	2.00	8.27
336	336	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	PAPPAKUDI	Charanmadevi	8.8278	77.5750	51.40	3.73	3.60	8.73
337	337	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	VALLIYOOR	Chettikulam	8.1667	77.6167	39.05	13.23	11.36	18.23
338	338	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	KADAYAM	Kadayam	8.8333	77.4083	57.00	5.56	3.32	10.56
339	339	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	KADAYANALLUR	Kadayanallur	9.0667	77.3458	46.80	9.45	6.55	14.45
340	340	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	KALAKADU	Kalakadu	8.4806	77.5986	43.00	16.74	16.50	21.74
341	341	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	NANGUNERI	Marudakulam	8.5833	77.7153	44.90	9.44	7.85	14.44
342	342	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	VALLIYOOR	Molaikkaraipatti	8.3167	77.5792	100.00	5.98	1.40	10.98

343	343	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	PAPPAKUDI	Mukkudal	8.7347	77.5208	34.30	1.54	1.10	6.54
344	344	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	NANGUNERI	N. Vijayanarayanam	8.5333	77.7917	49.90	5.00	1.38	10.00
345	345	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	NANGUNERI	Nanguneri1	8.4917	77.7042	54.95	2.68	0.62	7.68
346	346	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	TENKASI	Panpoli	9.0167	77.2528	39.05	11.75	9.90	16.75
347	347	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	MANUR	Taruvai	8.6667	77.6806	200.00	1.24	0.60	6.24
348	348	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	PALAYAMKOTTAI	Tirunelveli1	8.7056	77.7222	55.95	2.35	2.00	7.35
349	349	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	VALLIYOOR	Valliyur	8.3861	77.6167	38.90	4.90	2.50	9.90
350	350	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	VASUDEVANALLUR	Vasudevanallur1	9.2417	77.4083	41.90	20.86	10.83	25.86
351	351	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	UDUMALAIPETTAI	Dhalli	10.5083	77.1833	51.90	13.60	7.55	18.60
352	352	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	MADATHUKULAM	Karattoluvu	10.6236	77.3750	39.65	6.60	1.65	11.60
353	353	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	AVINASHI	KaravallurPZ	11.2894	77.1692	46.00	18.61	16.95	23.61
354	354	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	PONGALUR	Kettanur	10.9153	77.2611	67.10	6.12	2.50	11.12
355	355	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	MADATHUKULAM	Kumaralingam1	10.4833	77.3667	61.00	2.75	1.70	7.75
356	356	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	PONGALUR	Nachipalayam1	11.0806	77.4528	108.00	5.68	7.25	12.25
357	357	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	PALLADAM	Palavanchipalayam pz	11.0689	77.3519	60.00	2.75	1.10	7.75
358	358	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	PALLADAM	Palladam2	10.9917	77.2806	49.00	6.85	7.10	12.10
359	359	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	THIRUPPUR	Rengagoundanpalayam pz	11.0697	77.3844	60.00	24.30	10.95	29.30
360	360	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	UDUMALAIPETTAI	Udumalpet2	10.5833	77.2444	83.00	0.90	0.85	5.90
361	361	Tamil Nadu	Tiruppur	THIRUPPUR	Vijayapuram pz	11.0897	77.4008	60.00	11.73	10.70	16.73
362	362	Tamil Nadu	Tiruvallur	TIRUTHANI	Agoor	13.1897	79.5831	200.00	44.30	12.20	49.30
363	363	Tamil Nadu	Tiruvallur	ELLAPURAM	Kannigaiper	13.2808	80.0769	200.00	15.60	13.00	20.60
364	364	Tamil Nadu	Tiruvallur	PALLIPATTU	Keechalam	13.2408	79.5050	60.00	7.30	5.20	12.30
365	365	Tamil Nadu	Tiruvallur	TIRUTHANI	Madam	13.1728	79.6128	200.00	7.60	8.00	13.00
366	366	Tamil Nadu	Tiruvallur	MINJUR	Ponneri PZ	13.3300	80.1956	200.00	34.30	35.00	40.00
367	367	Tamil Nadu	Tiruvallur	TIRUTHANI	Poonimangadu	13.1750	79.6083	30.50	10.50	9.00	15.50
368	368	Tamil Nadu	Tiruvallur	TIRUTHANI	Tiruttani(Near Temple)	13.1417	79.5472	56.00	9.60	4.60	14.60

369	369	Tamil Nadu	Tiruvallur	TIRUTHANI	Tiruttani1	13.1417	79.5417	30.50	8.80	8.60	13.80
370	370	Tamil Nadu	Trichy	MANACHANALLUR	Manachanallur	10.9850	78.7656	44.20	6.35	3.72	11.35
371	371	Tamil Nadu	Trichy	PULLAMPADY	Pullambadi	11.0458	78.9583	46.00	4.55	4.55	9.55
372	372	Tamil Nadu	Trichy	ANDANALLUR	Thiruchirapalli	10.8542	78.7083	49.00	4.55	4.83	9.83
373	373	Tamil Nadu	Trichy	THOTTIAM	Tottiyam	10.9917	78.3353	49.00	8.30	8.96	13.96
374	374	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	KOVILPATTI	Ettayapuram	9.2178	77.9833	31.30	3.84	5.40	10.40
375	375	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	RISHIVANDIYAM	Kadambur	11.9000	79.0500	49.00	11.26	15.86	20.86
376	376	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	KAYATHAR	Kalugumalai	9.1486	77.7167	39.70	6.30	6.18	11.30
377	377	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	OTTAPIDARAM	Maniyachi	8.8667	77.9000	69.30	3.72	3.65	8.72
378	378	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	KOVILPATTI	Nallattinputhur	9.1583	77.8417	42.20	4.66	3.82	9.66
379	379	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	SATTANKULAM	Paikulam	8.5181	77.8556	43.10	11.02	8.45	16.02
380	380	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	SRIVAIKUNTAM	Petmanagar	8.6500	77.9500	40.40	8.59	3.50	13.59
381	381	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	PUDUR	Pudur	9.3136	78.1361	60.80	10.08	10.03	15.08
382	382	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	SATTANKULAM	Satankulam	8.4333	77.9028	50.20	6.20	3.11	11.20
383	383	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	KARUNGULAM	Thailapuram	8.6083	77.8500	37.53	3.84	3.04	8.84
384	384	Tamil Nadu	Tuticorin	KOVILPATTI	Villiseri	9.0583	77.8500	46.50	8.36	5.33	13.36
385	385	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	VELLORE	Abdullapuram pz	12.9119	79.0858	200.00	4.58	2.96	9.58
386	386	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	WALLAJAH	Arakkonam Pz	12.9058	79.2819	129.50	15.10	5.94	20.10
387	387	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	MADHANUR	Asanampattu	12.7028	78.8167	65.80	12.05	13.20	18.20
388	388	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	WALLAJAH	Avarakarai	12.9625	79.2875	39.60	4.40	3.62	9.40
389	389	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	MADHANUR	Chinnapallikuppam pz	12.7633	78.8386	101.00	7.22	8.85	13.85
390	390	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	ARAKONAM	Ichiputhur	13.1250	79.6361	49.50	15.00	10.20	20.00
391	391	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	KANDHILI	Kandili	12.4778	78.4556	42.90	17.40	19.49	24.49
392	392	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	ARCOT	Pennagar	12.8250	79.3917	42.50	2.40	3.44	8.44
393	393	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	K.V.KUPPAM	Pennathur pz	12.9553	78.9239	78.00	8.30	10.20	15.20
394	394	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	PERNAMPATTU	Pernambattu	12.9375	78.7250	56.90	9.44	10.47	15.47
395	395	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	SHOLINGHUR	Ponnai	13.1111	79.4264	39.10	6.60	6.68	11.68
396	396	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	WALLAJAH	Ranipet2	12.9333	79.3500	62.00	0.95	1.20	6.20
397	397	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	THIMIRI	Timiri	12.8278	79.3028	37.20	23.90	19.04	28.90

398	398	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	VELLORE	Virupachipuram(bagayam)	12.8778	79.1333	58.50	9.40	5.75	14.40
399	399	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	WALLAJAH	Vishram	12.9139	79.2917	16.58	2.90	0.68	7.90
400	400	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	VANUR	Andiarpalayam	12.0472	79.7625	195.00	55.41	55.15	60.41
401	401	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	CHINNASALEM	Chinnasalem	11.6342	78.8764	70.30	5.22	4.50	10.22
402	402	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	RISHIVANDIYAM	Kadambur	11.9000	79.0500	49.00	11.26	11.00	16.26
403	403	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	KALLAKURICHI	Kallakurichi1	11.7417	78.9667	39.65	8.14	8.90	13.90
404	404	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	KANAI	Kanai pz	11.9550	79.4183	35.00	3.67	3.25	8.67
405	405	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	MARAKKANAM	Kunimedu pz	12.0944	79.8928	101.00	44.28	41.60	49.28
406	406	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	MUGAIYUR	Mogaiyur PZ	11.9778	79.3181	151.00	6.00	4.04	11.00
407	407	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	SANKARAPURAM	Sankarapuram	11.8833	78.9167	43.00	4.03	6.60	11.60
408	408	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	MARAKKANAM	Tehzbazar	12.1833	79.6667	39.60	4.55	3.17	9.55
409	409	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	THIYAGADURGAM	Timmalai	11.7319	79.1250	200.53	7.69	5.76	12.69
410	410	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	ULUNDURPET	Ulundurpet1	11.6611	79.2944	42.70	13.36	9.02	18.36
411	411	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	VALLAM	Vallam	12.2558	79.5072	52.00	10.26	8.78	15.26
412	412	Tamil Nadu	Virudhunagar	VEMBAKOTTAI	Alangulam	9.3639	77.6861	70.90	5.72	5.46	10.72
413	413	Tamil Nadu	Virudhunagar	KARIAYAPATTI	Kariyapatti1	9.6694	78.1083	39.50	22.72	13.23	27.72
414	414	Tamil Nadu	Virudhunagar	SRIVILLIPUTHUR	Mullikulam	9.4986	77.7000	37.50	17.63	17.15	22.63
415	415	Tamil Nadu	Virudhunagar	SATTUR	Nenmeni1	9.3250	78.0083	42.45	12.04	6.55	17.04
416	416	Tamil Nadu	Virudhunagar	ARUPPUKOTTAI	Palavanatham	9.5667	78.0750	40.90	7.71	4.87	12.71
417	417	Tamil Nadu	Virudhunagar	VIRUDHUNAGAR	Sevalpatti	9.5583	77.9583	32.05	6.98	4.50	11.98
418	418	Tamil Nadu	Virudhunagar	VEMBAKOTTAI	Vembakkottai-OW	9.3333	77.7667	50.00	6.69	8.00	13.00
419	419	Tamil Nadu	Chennai	MYLAPORE - TIRUVALLIKENI-	Guindy (CLRI)	12.9867	80.2497	22.75	7.20		20.00
420	420	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	Annur(N)	Annur pz	11.2250	77.1083	48.80	27.40		40.00
421	421	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	Avinashi(E)	Avinasi pz	11.1978	77.2853	60.00	12.75		20.00
422	422	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	THUDIALUR	Kalviramapalayam	11.0417	76.8875	197.00	71.76		80.00
423	423	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	POLLACHI(N)	Pollachi pz	10.6583	76.9917	51.05	5.20		10.20
424	424	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	Karumathampatti	Samalapuram	11.0875	77.1792	39.00	2.10		10.00

425	425	Tamil Nadu	Coimbatore	Tiruppur (S)	Tirupur	11.0972	77.3528	70.00	6.05	20.00
426	426	Tamil Nadu	Dharmapuri	PALAYAM(D)	Thoppur	11.9500	78.0500	94.00	8.35	20.00
427	427	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	Kovilur	Kovilur (Ramanathapuram)	10.5917	78.0861	45.30	4.75	10.00
428	428	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	Oddanchathram	Oddanchatram1	10.4908	77.7528	70.50	11.70	20.00
429	429	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	Reddiarchatram	Reddiarchatram	10.4278	77.8833	54.25	9.90	20.00
430	430	Tamil Nadu	Dindigul	Kottanatham	Servaikaranpatti	10.7472	78.0917	56.20	11.85	20.00
431	431	Tamil Nadu	Erode	Kunnathur	Chengapalli	11.2250	77.4436	64.60	9.92	20.00
432	432	Tamil Nadu	Erode	Erode east	Erode pz	11.3661	77.7169	195.10	18.44	30.00
433	433	Tamil Nadu	Erode	Nambiyur	Getticheviyur	11.3333	77.4139	51.00	5.30	10.30
434	434	Tamil Nadu	Erode	Kangeyam	Kangayam1	10.9917	77.5583	60.90	4.46	10.00
435	435	Tamil Nadu	Erode	Mulanur	Mulanur1	10.7972	77.7222	55.40	8.48	20.00
436	436	Tamil Nadu	Erode	Uthukuli	Uthukuli pz	11.1744	77.4472	200.00	18.19	30.00
437	437	Tamil Nadu	Karur	Kattalai	Mayanur Ow pz	10.9542	78.2389	46.00	13.65	20.00
438	438	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	MATHUR	Mattur2	12.3833	78.4167	46.20	11.48	20.00
439	439	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	KRISHNAGIRI	Megalachinnapalli	12.6250	78.2542	54.80	38.95	50.00
440	440	Tamil Nadu	Krishnagiri	VEPPANAPALLI	Veppanapalli	12.7042	78.1847	47.00	17.30	30.00
441	441	Tamil Nadu	MADURAI	Vellalapatti	A.Vellalapatti PZ	10.0600	78.2710	60.00	32.95	40.00
442	442	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	USILAMPATTI	Jothilnaickanur pz	9.8758	77.7550	200.00	19.00	30.00
443	443	Tamil Nadu	Madurai	SEDAPATTI	Sellampatti	9.8208	77.8042	41.00	19.45	30.00
444	444	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	Rasipuram	Mohanur1	11.5125	78.1417	56.65	5.58	20.00
445	445	Tamil Nadu	Namakkal	Namakkal	Namakkal2	11.2167	78.1722	49.50	7.22	20.00
446	446	Tamil Nadu	Perambalur	Perambalur	Perambalur1	11.2342	78.8911	52.50	5.28	10.28
447	447	Tamil Nadu	Salem	Attur	Athur	11.5917	78.5861	59.00	29.30	40.00
448	448	Tamil Nadu	Salem	Poolampatti	Chittoor pz	11.6442	77.8250	200.00	68.52	80.00
449	449	Tamil Nadu	Salem	Kadayampatti	Kadayampatti	11.8542	78.0833	62.35	25.60	40.00
450	450	Tamil Nadu	Salem	Pethanaickanpalayam	P.N.Palayam1	11.6472	78.5125	59.00	11.80	20.00
451	451	Tamil Nadu	Salem	Nangavalli	Samudram pz	11.7472	77.9306	200.00	76.64	90.00
452	452	Tamil Nadu	Theni	Kandamanur	Erasakkanaayakanur	9.9250	77.5417	52.70	17.50	30.00

453	453	Tamil Nadu	Theni	Thevaram	Thevaram	9.8847	77.2847	43.00	35.65		42.00
454	454	Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	MELPALLIPATTU	Melravandavadi	12.2083	78.7083	49.60	8.60		20.00
455	455	Tamil Nadu	TIRUNELVELI	Kalloorani	Kilpaur	8.9167	77.3833	39.05	17.71		30.00
456	456	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	Sankarankoil	Sankarankoil1	9.2083	77.5583	39.05	7.34		20.00
457	457	Tamil Nadu	Tirunelveli	RADHAPURAM	Tiruvembalapuram	8.2542	77.7583	46.61	4.50		10.00
458	458	Tamil Nadu	Trichy	Manapparai	Manaparai	10.6144	78.4253	45.20	5.12		10.12
459	459	Tamil Nadu	Trichy	THURAIYUR	Thuraiyur	11.1500	78.6000	43.00	10.95		20.00
460	460	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	K.V.Kuppam	Kv Kuppam	12.9611	78.9800	49.50	15.07		20.07
461	461	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	Pudupadi	Mecheri	12.8111	79.3972	48.90	10.60		20.00
462	462	Tamil Nadu	Vellore	PALLIKONDA	Palligonda	12.9000	78.9458	52.20	7.21		20.00
463	463	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Brammadesam	Brammadesam	12.1958	79.7667	46.00	5.10		10.10
464	464	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Gingee	Gingee1	12.2500	79.4167	40.00	4.21		10.00
465	465	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Thiyagadurgam	Tyagadurgam	11.7306	79.0917	41.70	4.14		10.00
466	466	Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Vikkiravandi	Vikravandi	12.0375	79.5625	39.70	4.01		10.00
467	467	Tamil Nadu	Virudhunagar	Cholapuram(V)	Choolapuram	9.3833	77.5583	22.30	6.26		20.00
468	468	Tamil Nadu	Virudhunagar	Nathampatti	Sundarapandiyan	9.6083	77.6667	39.05	15.40		20.40
469	1	UT of Puducherry	Pondicherry	PONDICHERRY	Manapattu EW	11.7992	79.7747	101.00	26.17	23.00	31.17
470	2	UT of Puducherry	Pondicherry	PONDICHERRY	Manapattu OW	11.7992	79.7747	101.00	6.90	4.94	11.90
471	3	UT of Puducherry	Pondicherry	PONDICHERRY	Mangalam1	11.9256	79.7361	487.00	18.51	19.73	24.73
472	4	UT of Puducherry	Pondicherry	PONDICHERRY	Mangalam2	11.8922	79.7361	269.50	19.27	20.17	25.17
473	5	UT of Puducherry	Pondicherry	PONDICHERRY	Mangalam3	11.8922	79.7361	150.50	28.42	27.50	33.42
474	6	UT of Puducherry	Pondicherry	PONDICHERRY	Mangalam4	11.8922	79.7361	108.00	27.96	26.40	32.96
475	7	UT of Puducherry	Pondicherry	PONDICHERRY	Mangalam5	11.8922	79.7361	58.00	25.76	24.38	30.76

Note: 1. The sites listed above are tentative and the purchaser reserves right to change the site for which no additional cost shall be paid.

2. The depth of DWLR setting may vary depending on the water level during installation.

3. The well should be cleaned by the contractor before lowering the instrument with its accessories.

4. Quantities may increase or decrease.

3. TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

1.0 SCOPE OF WORK

- (i) Complete supply, installation, testing, commissioning of remote stations including associated civil works, sensors, data logger, software, hardware and ancillaries' equipment, etc.
- (ii) The scope of work also includes supply of data during Five (5) years comprehensive warranty period and two (2) years AMC period to commence immediately after the expiry of warranty period.
- (iii) Technical design, supply, installation, testing, commissioning of Digital Water Level Recorder (DWLR) for the real time ground water level data collection network and establish data communications using **GSM & GPRS telemetry** between the remote stations and existing Data Centre at Chennai, later to National data centre, CGWB, Faridabad and through the e-SWIS at New Delhi. This includes, but is not limited to acquiring service, and maintaining all aspects of the service during the Comprehensive warranty period.
- (iv) Establish communication between remote DWLR stations with existing GSM & GPRS receiving system along with all required arrangement at Regional Data Center, Chennai to collect GSM & GPRS data from DWLR station network. And required all acquiring hardware and software, installation, configuration. The data is to be submitted in the requisite format and hence no data processing software has to be provided by the bidder at National data centre
- (v) Perform on-site assembly, start-up of the supplied goods.
- (vi) Complete commissioning integration, testing & organization of the whole system.
- (vii) Provide operation & maintenance services during Five (5) years comprehensive warranty period and two (2) years AMC period to commence immediately after the expiry of warranty period, which shall include all components at the remote DWLR stations as well as all newly acquired equipment's in the existing data center. The AMC must be comprehensive without any exclusion except from force majeure will be permitted.
- (viii) Provide installation and maintenance reports as required by the Purchaser and any delay is not acceptable in time schedule provided by supplier.
- (ix) Supply detailed operation and maintenance manual for each component in the system and compile Knowledge and working supply type Manual for training purpose (including multimedia training kits).
- (x) Provide classroom and field training to the sufficient number of CGWB personnel on the DWLR data acquisition system. This includes operation and maintenance procedures. Training will also occur at selected field locations as selected by the Purchaser.

- (xi) A guarantee by the manufacturer that all equipment being provided will be supported for a minimum of ten years after the commissioning of the Digital Water Level Recorder (DWLR) Systems.
- (xii) Calibration and validation of the installed system shall continue during the entire **Warranty** period on half yearly basis.
- (xiii) The remote stations shall store the data for at least one year.
- (xiv) Supply a detailed operation and maintenance manual for each appropriate unit of supplied goods.
- (xv) Security of installed equipment's against theft and vandalism will be the responsibility of the Bidder for whole contract period including AMC period till successful installation, commissioning, and successful site acceptance testing.
- (xvi) Although all accessories and fixtures required for installation of the equipment & their specifications have been specified in technical specifications however, bidder shall ensure the satisfactory performance & functioning of DWLR system complete, for this if any accessory or items are required that shall be provided by bidder, the cost towards that is deemed to be included in the cost tendered by the bidder, no extra cost shall be paid to the bidder on this account.
- (xvii) Ensure that all software licenses and maintenance agreements are in the name of Purchaser and should seek full support and updates for such software for the duration of the warranty period and Annual Maintenance Services Period. All the software licenses should be valid for the design life of the system that is 10 years from date of commissioning.

2.0 Technical Specifications of Equipment

The Goods and Related Services shall comply with following Technical Specifications and Standards:

(A) Specifications of the DWLR, hydrostatic Type (GW) with Telemetry System

Specifications for Water Level and Temperature sensor

Feature	Value
Site Conditions	
Ambient Temperature	From 0 to 60 °C
Humidity	5-100 %
Altitude	0-2500 meter
DWLR Water Level Sens	or with Temperature Sensor
Sensor Type	Submersible pressure transducer with Non-Vented Pressure Sensor with Barometric Pressure Correction for Individual Sensor
Range	(30m, 45m, 75m, 105m, 120m)
Installation Depth (Cable length)	As per the attached list (Installation depth of the sensor shall be equivalent to the total depth of piezometer of the respective location minus 1-3 m as specified by the Purchaser)

Dimension	Outer diameter of sensor unit: <80mm, (for sensor)
Material	stainless Steel (SS-316) or other better corrosion resistant material
Ingress Protection	IP68 for sensor
Accuracy	0.2% FSO
Resolution	3 mm
Reproducibility	0.1% full scale or better
Long Term Stability	0.1% Full scale and should ensure long term stability without any field calibration requirements except barometric compensation
Temperature Measuring Range	0 to 50°C
Temperature Measuring Accuracy	Better than ±0.2°C
Burst Pressure	>=3 Time Full scale
Overload Pressure	2 Time full scale without effect on calibration
Over-voltage Protection on supply & sensor wires	Should include lightening, over-voltage and surge protection
Output	SDI-12, RS-485, 4-20 mA or compatible with data logger.
Installation	The system should be provided with a suspension bracket, Well enclosure /canopy & junction boxes (if required) allowing secure installation within the Piezometers' headwork, including appropriate cable mounting accessories to allow the sensor to be adjusted to the required depth.
Direct Read <u>Sensor</u>	The cable shall have following features:
Cable	 Strength members for good longitudinal stability of cable The cable and contacts should be fixed or quick connect Cable screen to be connected to the data logger ground terminal to minimize electrical interference. A cable suspension bracket allowing the DWLR to be adjusted to the required depth, in a stable and reproducible manner. Corrosion and moisture free as the equipment has to work under water condition. Cable should have good flexibility. Should be of Polyurethane Jacket or better The electrical wires shall have sufficient conductivity to allow for extension of the cable to up to 200m without degrading accuracy, stability and data communication. 25mm dia PVC pipe with BIS mark should be provided for housing the cables in the bore-hole.

Data logger	
Atmospheric Pressure correction	Atmospheric Pressure corrections to be made automatically
Data Logger Input	Level sensor*, Temperature sensor
	* only compensated water levels need to transmitted to data base, however barometric pressure/uncompensated water levels may be stored in data logger and shall be transferred to the data base periodically.
Resolution of Measurement	16-bit ADC with +/- 1 LSB accuracy
Measuring interval and measuring modes	Should be programmed to store data from 1 minute one reading to 24 hours one reading.
Settling up Time	< 30minutes
Recording Capacity	Shall store data of at least 1 year
Memory Type	Non-Volatile flash memory that can store one year of data (with 15minute logging interval) & expandable up to minimum 1 GB using USB/SD Card
Power Supply	Should be equipped with lithium or alkaline battery pack, giving at least 2 years operation (with one transmission and four recordings per day). Battery must be replaceable in the field or in local offices of the implementing Agency or supplier. Replacement of batteries must be readily available in India.
Battery Voltage Monitoring	Monitoring and transmission of Battery Voltage level
Data logger Location	Data logger should be located on top (on ground surface).
Built in clock	Accurate to ±1 minute per year
Displayed Time Resolution	1 second or better
Over-voltage Protection on supply & sensor wires	Should include lightening, over-voltage and surge protection
Protection	IP68 with Impact Resistant for Water level sensor IP65 (for data logger) with Impact Resistant
Port for configuration	One serial port for communication with laptop for programming
Ports for telemetry	Port for communication with GSM & GPRS telemetry
Operating System	Windows based software for system configuration / communication
Licenses	All required licenses shall be included
Real time clock	Time synchronization facility shall be provided with IST

Accessories	Serial cable and adaptor if required along with all accessories and fixing units etc.
Communication Interfac	e
Computer Interface	The Logger must be capable of connection to a computer via USB 2.0/USB 3.0 and supply should include the necessary interface cables.
File Format	The format of the data downloaded by communication interface shall be in standard CSV format (as specified in technical Specifications) which is compatible with e-SWIS software.
GSM & GPRS Transmitte	r
Transmission System	GSM /GPRS/edge-based data transmission system
Frequency range	900 MHz: 824-960 MHz/1800MHz:1710-1880 MHz 4G and better
Performance	Data Reception availability of 95% or better
Communication Direction	Utilize GPRS network for two-way connection with connection with FTP, TCP/IP (INTERNET) connection and SMS server
Transmission trigger	Data collection to be triggered by interrogation from Data Center, or by event-based transmission triggered by remote site
Power Saving	Ability to disable interrogation system in order to save power at remote site
Communication Protocol	Data transmission to execute HTTP Post or FTP, SMS to transmit data to the Data Center
Accessories	All associated equipment, including Antenna all cables and mounting hardware
Software for Data logger	
Operating System	Windows based software for system configuration, transfer and analysis of data to computer
Version	English language version
License	All required licenses included
General Features	·
Battery	The battery should be easy to replace, and easily available in the market.
Tools	Complete tool kit for installation and routine maintenance
Manuals	Full documentation and maintenance instructions in English
Training	As per mutual consent at the time of installation of telemetry system

Specifications for Data Services

Bidder is to acquire, manage, and operate data collection, storage and dissemination to support the following activities during 5 years warranty period and 2 years comprehensive AMC period for DWLRs with telemetry system.

Note: A server and storage s	vstem for additional back	up shall be provided at N	National Data Center

S No.	Parameter	Functionality requirement	
1	Data collection performance	 Bidder should be seamless data and responsible for Real-time data collection at all DWLR stations& shall ensure seamless data transfer. The data from DWLR stations will be transmitted through GSM/GPRS in the standard CSV format (as specified in technical Specifications) to FTP server at RODC, CGWB, Chennai. National Data Center (NDC), Faridabad and e-SWIS. Data Transfer from RODC to NDC server & E-SWIS software through internet. This data will be processed and disseminated via E-SWIS cloud. The processed data from e-SWIS in the form of reports/ bulletins will be transmitted to existing National Data Centre. 	
2	Data maintenance	All activities pertaining to installation, data services, Operation & maintenance at the remote DWLR station will be maintained by the bidder during the warranty and maintenance period and will include a log of activities during every station visit.	
3	Reports & Bulletins Storage system	Storage of all data, reports & bulletins in the proper manner and easy to access. This data will be backed up in such a way that it is not possible to lose data that has already been stored with the use of mirrored or replicated storage in such a way that no data is lost.	
4	Help desk	Bidder to operate help desk to respond to queries from the purchaser. Help desk will be able to solve any problems related to data collection, processing, and dissemination to the purchaser. Help desk shall be available from 8am to 6pm, Monday – Sat.	

4.0 Specifications for Data Transmission System (Telemetry)

The transmission system should be tightly integrated with the DWLR System (DAS), along with compact remote/field mounted systems consisting of sensor, data logger, modem and antenna.

(i) The system should be watertight (IP68 for sensor & IP65 for data logger or equivalent) and impact resistant;

- (ii) The system should allow easy access for monitoring measurements without removing complete system.
- (iii) System must be power-supplied by standard lithium/ alkaline batteries for operation time of at least two years by one set of batteries (one transmission per day, 4 measurements per day) and must be placed in a water resistant (IP65 or equivalent) enclosure. The replacement of batteries during five years warranty would be responsibility of the bidder, at bidder's cost.
- (iv) The system must have integrated energy management system using free programmable time slots for measurement and transmission to minimize power consumption;
- (v) The connectors should be water-tight (IP68 or equivalent).
- (vi) An alarm notification must be sent by the system via SMS to user defined phone numbers through suitable means of communication for user defined parameters. This includes battery performance (battery voltage).
- (vii) Standard USB / RS232 communication interface should be available for set up and configuration and must be easily accessible.
- (viii) Data logger shall be provided with Atmospheric Pressure sensor at individual station, & Atmospheric Pressure correction shall applied automatically on the raw water level reading from non-vented water level sensor. The details of correction procedure shall be fully documented in user manual. Provision shall be made to view and store the raw and compensated water level data along with atmospheric pressure and Water Temperature data in data logger memory.

Only compensated water level need to transmitted to data base, however barometric pressure/uncompensated water levels may be stored in data logger and shall be transferred to the data base periodically.

- (ix) All measurement and set up options, data download and programming of data logger shall also be done by online session similar to all functions at site by direct connection to a PC
- (x) Data download / retrieval from remote DWLR station to central server PC via GSM &GPRS network shall be provided. The data from remote station should be in standard CSV format (as specified in technical Specifications) which is compatible with e-SWIS software
- (xi) The software should be provided to allow download of the data from the DWLR data logger to a Laptop/hand held devices in the field. The downloaded data shall be in standard CSV format (as specified in technical specifications) which is compatible with e-SWIS software.

5.0 Specifications for Data Processing Hardware at Data Centre

The Bidder shall provide one high end server with monitor and 3 KVA online UPS with power backup of 4 hour and one computer node (workstation) at the Data Center along with A3 size color printer & 42" LED display. All the consumables (including batteries) except cartridge and papers shall be responsibility of the Bidder during the entire period of warranty and AMC. The minimum specification of server, computer node, Display system are as below:

Hardware at Regional Office Data Centre, Chennai should have following major equipment;

- a) Server with monitor as per the following specifications
- b) Necessary data switch, router and firewall for minimum8Mbps internet speed, static IP
- c) 3 KVA online UPS with 4 hours backup time
- d) Computer Node (Workstation) PC

- e) A 3 Size color Printer
- f) 42" LED Display unit

5.1 Server Technical Specification:

- a) Server having two nos. of x86 64-bit processor (Intel Xeon E5-2620 v4 or better)
- b) 64 GB DDRIII expandable to 256 GB or more
- c) Integrated Graphics Controller
- d) SAS RAID Controller supporting RAID 0, 1,
- e) 2*600 GB SAS Hot Swap HDD (10 K or higher RPM),
- f) Dual 1 Gbps Network port,
- g) DVD writer,
- h) 23" LED Monitor with a resolution 1920X1080 or better,
- i) OEM Keyboard and OEM Mouse
- j) Server Chassis having Redundant Hot Swappable Power Supply with 8 Hot Swap drive bays,
- k) Certification for Linux and Windows,
- I) All required device drivers for System Configuration and Server Management Support including additional data storage facility of 8TB for 5 years and all accessories.
- m) Software: Perpetual license for window server (2012 or later), perpetual license for MS Office, firewall system with Good antivirusetc.

Operating system	Windows 10 Home/Professional
Chipset	Intel H270 and above or equivalent
Processor	Intel® Core™ i7-6700T with Intel® HD Graphics 530 (2.8 GHz, up to 3.6 GHz, 8 MB cache, 4 cores) and above or equivalent
Memory	8 GB DDR3L rand above or equivalent (RAM)
Hard drive description	1 TB 7200 rpm SATA or better
Display	58.42 cm (23) diagonal WLED-backlit (1920 x 1080). Touch-enabled (optional)
Optical drive	DVD-Writer
Network interface	Integrated 10/100/1000 Gigabit Ethernet LAN
Wireless	802.11b/g/n (1x1) and Bluetooth® 4.0 combo (Optional)
Port	4 USB 2.0; 2 USB 3.0; 1 headphone/microphone combo

5.2 Computer Node (Workstation)

Pointing device	USB wired/wireless optical mouse
Keyboard	USB wired/wireless standard keyboard
Pre-installed software	Preinstalled MS Office Lifetime with Good antivirus is preferred.

5.3 Printers Specifications

A3 size color printer shall be procured for National Data Center from a reputed manufacturer.

- i. A3 coulor printer
- ii. Functions: Print, Copy, Scan
- iii. Printing Up to 20 page/minute
- iv. Black & color printing: As fast as 9.5 sec per page
- v. Recommended monthly page volume: 250 to 2000
- vi. Processor speed: 600MHz
- vii. Connectivity: ePrint capability
- viii. Paper handling input, standard: 100 sheet input tray
- ix) Paper handling output, standard: 100-sheet face-down bin

5.4 DISPLAY UNIT (LED)

- i) Screen Type: 42" Screen LED
- ii) Display resolution: 1920 x 1080
- iii) Colors: 256K colors

iv) Interfaces: 1 x Ethernet (RJ45) (max. 12Mbit/s), HDMI port, USB port 1 x USB, Multimedia card / SD card slot combined.

- iv) Industrial Ethernet: 1 x Ethernet (RJ45)
- v) Protocols: Protocol (Ethernet) TCP/IP
- vi) Image formats Supported: JPEG, JPS, MPO
- v) Sound technology: Dolby digital

6.0 Transmission of Data format to RODC, NDC, Faridabad & e-SWIS Software:

The format for GSM / GPRS communication is as specified below

Table below gives the GSM / GPRS data parameters and their identification code format which is required to transmit the data from data logger to FTP server.

FORMAT:

&Station ID, Date and Time, Mobile Number, Battery, Water Temp, Corrected Water Level

Above data string will be ended with New-Line character and a separate data string will be for each measurement cycle.

Example Data Spring:

&738D1E76,07/01/19 00:00,9849556430,13.5, 22.3,26.347 &738D1E76,07/01/19 06:00,9849556430,13.5, 24.5,26.347 &738D1E76,07/01/19 12:00,9849556430,13.5, 26.8,26.347 &738D1E76,07/01/19 18:00,9849556430,13.5, 24.3,26.347

SI.No.	Channel no.	Parameter
1.	Station ID	Start of String should be '&" and Eight Characters Station ID provider by bidder
2.	Date and Time	Measurement date and Time in DD/MM/YY HH:MM in IST of the measurement cycle
3.	Mobile Number	Mobile no (10 digit) of remote station SIM
4.	Battery	Battery voltage in Volts with 1 right digit at measurement date and time
5.	Water Temp	Water Temperature in °C with 1 right digit at Measurement date and time
6.	Corrected Water Level	Water level after atmospheric pressure compensation in Mts. with 3 right digit at measurement date and time

Note:

- 1. If any sensor is not connected then it should transmit '--' characters in place of the sensor value.
- 2. Attached format is indicative, recommended for standardised data acquisition for development of unified Water Information System.

7.0 TRAINING AND DOCUMENTATION

The Bidder is required to provide an extensive training programme for the system. The training set forth in the following paragraphs is a minimum requirement and the bidder should propose any additional training that he considers critical for long term success of the system operations.

The Bidder is expected to provide an outline or table indicating the contents of each of the required courses. The table shall describe the specific topics to be covered for each day of the training period.

The Bidder is responsible for the salaries of the training instructors and all training materials. The costs of travel, transportation and per diem for the trainees shall be borne by the Purchaser.

Training shall be provided by the bidder in several phases. The training shall include both classroom and field trainings and will be continued during all five years. The bidder is required to have DWLR equipment specialists.

7.1 The Bidder shall provide mandatory trainings as training modules as part of the Tender given as under:

S. No.	Description	Numbers of trainings	Number of Participants per session
1	User Training Course for senior management. (one day)	2(1 before/ during commissioning and 1 during warranty and AMC)	15
2	Operation and Maintenance course (3 days). Course topics will include sensor calibration, data logger configuration, data downloading, data retrieval, collection, compilation, processing, maintenance requirements, and procedures for equipment configuration, installation, site testing and commissioning.	22 (1 before /during commissioning and 1 during warranty and AMC) at CGWB Regional offices (SECRi) & at NDC, Faridabad.	10

All aspects of the electrical, instrumentation and telemetry equipment being supplied shall be covered in the courses and full documentation shall be provided. The documentation and kits shall be got approved from purchaser in advance. The course shall provide detail documentation and shall ensure that the purchaser's personnel shall be able to modify settings/ parameters without reference back to the Supplier. The places / sites where this training will be decided later by the purchaser.

The training course will take place as decided by the Purchaser. In case of formal training, the Purchaser will provide classroom and other logistics. The Bidder will facilitate the professional and the training materiel. On-the-job training will be provided by the Bidder in conjunction with the installation of the DWLRs and during the course of maintenance as required.

- 7.2 TA/ DA of the trainees shall be borne by the purchaser.
- 7.3 Training kit containing course material in soft as well as hard copy shall be provided by the Bidder.
- 7.4 All logistical arrangement such as projector, training space etc. for training is to be made by purchaser

8.0 PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE

The bidder shall be responsible for operation and maintenance of all stations /components of installations, commissioning, site acceptance and operation tests. All equipment maintenance cost, repairs, replacements and repairs to civil work shall be borne by the bidder during the warranty AMC Period. The scope of O&M support would include all materials and services including major replacement of components, mandatory spare parts required to ensure smooth and sustainable operations of the entire system. The bidder shall provide monthly maintenance reports during the course of maintenance. The bidder shall supply a Manual specifying all the faults experienced by the system together with an account of how such faults have been rectified. Bidder shall provide the list of mandatory spare parts & shall ensure the availability of sufficient mandatory spare parts in its godown for fulfilling its service obligations during warranty and AMC period. The same can be inspected by Engineer-in Charge or its authorized representative.

The bidders shall ensure the following visits at remote site for preventive maintenance. The bidder should take time stamped geo tagged photographs of the equipment during each maintenance visit (either scheduled or unscheduled visit). The photographs should show the condition of equipment before maintenance, during maintenance and after maintenance.

SI. No.	Station Category	Minimum Annual Preventive Visits	Remarks
1	Data Server maintenance	4	Every Quarter and also on need basis
2	DWLR stations	4	Every Quarter and also on need basis

SCHEDULE SHOWING FREQUENCY OF SCHEDULED VISITS FOR ROUTINE AND PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE

8.1 Operation & Maintenance

- Bidder shall provide at least one dedicated Service Engineer cum operator at the Regional Office Data Center for Operation of DWLR system and ensure seamless data transfer from remote stations to Regional & National Data Center (NDC), CGWB, Faridabad FTP server through GSM/GPRS network & from RODC to NDC & E-SWIS software through internet. And also the processed data from e-SWIS in the form of reports/ bulletins will be transmitted to Regional & National Data Centre which should be stored in a proper manner and easy to access.
- The Service Engineer shall have experience of working on similar systems for period of at least 3 years and shall be well versed with Operation and Maintenance aspects of DWLR systems.
- Operation and Maintenance shall include free of cost repairs/ replacement of hardware and Software necessary to keep the system functional for the period of five years from Date of Installation, and further during 2 years of AMC.

TECHNICAL RESPONSIVENESS FORM

Bidder shall furnish clause by clause commentary against the laid down technical specification and standards as per the format given below:

(A) Summary of Instructions

- (i) Particulars of Manufacturer and local agent cum representative are to be given under rows Model and Address.
- (ii) All entry boxes in column "Specification and Standards as offered in by Bidder" shall be filled in accurately and comprehensively. Quantitative fields shall be filled in accurately. It is not acceptable to use 'Yes', No, Compliant or similar evading words. Following format is designed to help the Bidder to understand the requirements of the equipment being procured. The Bidder must describe in the format how his bid responds to the technical requirements of the equipment. Bidder to note that one or two word responses (e.g. "Yes", "No" "will comply" or similar evading words) are normally not sufficient to confirm the responsiveness with the technical requirements, hence elaborate responses are sought from the bidders. In case deviation on the following technical requirements of equipment is not as per the minimum criteria mentioned, the bids may be declared "non-responsive".
- (iii) Requested materials and information shall be enclosed with the bid and be unambiguously associated with instruments as offered in the bid
- (iv) Negligence to comply with the instructions and requirements as stated above makes the bid liable to be rejected.
- (v) Abbreviations: OD-Outer Diameter; ID-Inner Diameter; FS-Full Scale; Pa-Pascal (unit of pressure), DWLR-Digital Water Level Recorder; DRS-Data Retrieval System; HHT-Hand Held Terminal, DCP- Data Collection Platform, AWLR- Automatic Water Level Recorder
- (vi) Sample interval is the interval at which samples or sensor readings are taken. The recording /measurement interval defines the interval at which the data records are stored in memory. A data record can represent a single sample or the average of a number of samples. In particular the result of the wave suppression filter is a single record representing the average value of a number of samples.

B) Entries requiring special attention:

(i) The longitudinal properties of the suspension cable affect the accuracy directly. Bidder to specify all factors affecting the longitudinal properties of the suspension cable: e.g. length creeps due to sensor and cable weight (submerged) longitudinal temperature coefficient, uncoiling after installation, expansion/contraction of jack due to temperature and aging, etc.

(C) Bidder shall provide information in the formats given below:

(i) Make/ Model/ Local Agent etc.:

Bidder	DWLR Sensor make/ model	Data Logger make/ model	Local Agent
Name / Complete Address/Website/Email	Model: Manufacturer: Name: Place: Tel: Fax: E-mail: Web:	Model: Manufacturer: Name: Place: Tel: Fax: E-mail: Web:	Name: Address: Tel: Fax: E-mail: Web:

(ii) Clause by Clause Commentary against laid down technical specifications: Specifications of the DWLR, hydrostatic Type (GW) with telemetry system

Name of Goods-Its Features	Required Specifications and standards as per bidding document	
Site Conditions		
Ambient Temperature	From 0 to 60 degree	
Humidity	5-100 %	
Altitude	0- 2500 meter	

Sensor Type	Submersible pressure transducer with Non-Vented Pressure Sensor with Barometric Pressure Correction for Individual Sensor.
Range	(30m, 45m, 75m, 105m, 120m)
Installation Depth (Ca length)	As per the attached list (Installation depth of the sensor shall be equivalent to the total depth of piezometer of the respective location minus 1-3 m as specified by the Purchaser)
Dimension	Outer diameter of sensor unit: < 80mm, (for sensor)
Material	stainless Steel (SS-316) or other better corrosion resistant material
Ingress Protection	IP68 for sensor

Overall Accuracy	0.2% FSO	
Resolution	3 mm	
Reproducibility	0.1% full scale or better	
Long Term Stability	0.1% Full scale and should ensure long term stability without any field calibration requirements except barometric compensation.	
Temperature Measuring Range	0 to 50°C	
Temperature Measuring Accuracy	Better than ±0.2°C	
Burst Pressure	>=3 Time Full scale	
Overload Pressure	2 Time full scale without effect on calibration	
Over-voltage Protection on supply & sensor wires	Should include lightening, over-voltage and surge protection	
Output	SDI-12, RS-485, 4-20 mA or compatible with data logger.	
Installation	The system should be provided with a suspension bracket, Well enclosure /canopy & junction boxes (if required) allowing secure installation within the Piezometers' headwork, including appropriate cable mounting accessories to allow the sensor to be adjusted to the required depth.	
Direct Read <u>Sensor</u> Cable	The cable shall have following features:	
	 Strength members for good longitudinal stability of cable The cable and contacts should be fixed or quick connect Cable screen to be connected to the data logger ground terminal to minimize electrical interference. A cable suspension bracket allowing the DWLR to be adjusted to the required depth, in a stable and reproducible manner. Corrosion and moisture free as the equipment has to work under water condition. Cable should have good flexibility. Should be of Polyurethane Jacket or better. The electrical wires shall have sufficient conductivity to allow for extension of the cable to up to 200m without degrading accuracy, stability and data communication. 	

DWLR Data logger

Atmospheric Pressu correction	re Atmospheric Pressure corrections to be applied automatically
Resolution of measurement	16-bit ADC with +/- 1 LSB accuracy
Measuring interval	Should be programmed to store data from 1 minute one reading to 24 hours one reading.

Settling up Time	< 30 minutes after submersion.		
Recording Capacity	Shall store the data for at least 1 year		
Memory Type	Non-Volatile flash memory that can store one year of data (with 15minute logging interval)		
Power Supply	Should be equipped with lithium or alkaline battery pack, giving at least 2 years operation (with one transmission and four recordings per day). Battery must be replaceable in the field or in local offices of the implementing Agency or supplier. Replacement of batteries must be readily available in India.		
Battery Voltage Monitoring	Monitoring and transmission of Battery Voltage level		
Data logger Location	Data logger should be located on top (on ground surface).		
Built in clock	Accurate to ± 1 minute per Year		
Displayed time resolution	1 second or better		
Over-voltage Protection on supply & sensor wires	Should include lightening, over-voltage and surge protection		
Protection	IP68 with Impact Resistant for Water level sensor IP65 (for data logge with Impact Resistant		
Port for configuration	One serial port for communication with laptop for programming		
Ports for telemetry	Port for communication with GSM &GPRS telemetry		
Operating System	Windows based software for system configuration / communication		
Licenses	All required licenses shall be included		
Real time clock	Time synchronization facility shall be provided with IST		
Accessories	Serial cable and adaptor if required along with all accessories and fixin units etc.		

Communication Interface

Computer Interface	The Logger must be capable of connection to a computer via USB 2.0/USB 3.0 and supply should include the necessary interface cables.
File Format	The format of the data downloaded by communication interface shall be in standard CSV format (as specified in technical Specifications) which is compatible with e-SWIS software.

GSM & GPRS Transmitter

Transmission System	GSM /GPRS/edge-based data transmission system	
Frequency range	900 MHz: 824-960 MHz/1800MHz:1710-1880 MHz 4G and better	
Performance	Data Reception availability of 95% or better	

Communication Direction	Utilize GPRS network for two-way connection with connection with F TCP/IP (INTERNET) connection and SMS server	
Transmission trigger	Data collection to be triggered by interrogation from Data Center or be event-based transmission triggered by remote site	
Power Saving	Ability to disable interrogation system in order to save power at remote site	
Communication Protocol	Data transmission to execute HTTP Post or FTP, SMS to transmit data the Data Center	
Accessories	All associated equipment, including Antenna all cables and mounting hardware	

Software for Data logger

Operating System	Windows based software for system configuration, transfer and analy of data to computer	
Version	English language version	
License	All required licenses included	

General Features

Battery	The battery should be easy to replace, and easily available in the market.	
Tools	Complete tool kit for installation and routine maintenance	
Manuals	Full documentation and maintenance instructions in English	
Training	As per mutual consent at the time of installation of telemetry system	
GSM / GPRS transmission format	As specified in the technical Specification table for GSM /GPRS communication format	

Specifications of Data Acquisition Software (DAS):

SI	Required Specification and Standards as per Bidding Document	Specification and Standards as offered in by Bidder	Remarks
1	Data collection performance :		
	Bidder should ensure seamless data and responsible for		
	 Real-time data collection at all DWLR stations& shall ensure seamless data transfer. 		
	• The data from DWLR stations will be transmitted through GSM/GPRS in the standard CSV format (as specified in technical Specifications) to FTP server		

	 at the Regional office data centre, Chennai From RODC, the data will be transmitted to NDC, Faridabad & E- SWIS software through internet. This data will be processed and disseminated via E-SWIS cloud. The processed data from e-SWIS in the form of reports/ bulletins will be transmitted to RODC, Chennai & National Data Centre, Faridabad. 	
2	Data maintenance : All activities pertaining to installation, data services, Operation & maintenance at the remote DWLR station will be maintained by the bidder during the warranty and maintenance period and will include a log of activities during every station visit.	
3	Reports & Bulletins Storage system: Storage of all data, reports& bulletins in the proper manner and easy to access. This data will be backed up in such a way that it is not possible to lose data that has already been stored with the use of mirrored or replicated storage.	
4	Help desk : Bidder to operate help desk to respond to queries from the purchaser. Help desk will be able to solve any problems related to data collection, processing, and dissemination to the purchaser. Help desk shall be available from 8am to 6pm, Monday – Sat.	

Specifications for Data Transmission System:

SI. No:	Required Specification and Standards as per Bidding Document	Specification and Standards as offered in by Bidder	Remarks
	The transmission system should be tightly integrated with the DWLR System, along		

	with compact remote/field mounted	
	consisting of sensor, data logger, modem and antenna and other accessories complete.	
1	The system should be watertight (IP68 for sensor & IP65 for data logger or equivalent) and impact resistant;	
2	The system should allow easy access for monitoring measurements without removing complete system.	
3	System must be power-supplied by standard lithium/alkaline batteries for operation time of at least two years by one set of batteries (one transmission per day, 4 measurements per day) and must be placed in a water resistant (IP65 or equivalent) enclosure. The replacement of batteries during five years warranty and two years of O&M would be responsibility of the bidder, at bidder's cost .	
4	The system must have integrated energy management system using free programmable time slots for measurement and transmission to minimize power consumption;	
5	The connectors should be water-tight (IP68 or equivalent).	
6	An alarm notification must be sent by the system via SMS to user defined phone numbers through suitable means of communication for user defined parameters. This includes battery performance (battery voltage).	
7	Standard USB/RS232 communication interface should be available for set up and configuration and must be easily accessible.	
8	Data logger shall be provided with Atmospheric Pressure sensor at individual station, & Atmospheric Pressure correction shall applied automatically on the raw water level reading from non-vented water level sensor. The details of correction	

	procedure shall be fully documented in user manual. Provision shall be made to view and store the raw and compensated water level data along with atmospheric pressure and Water Temperature data in data logger memory	
9	All measurement and set up options, data download and programming of data logger shall also be done by online session similar to all functions at site by direct connection to a PC	
10	Data download / retrieval from remote DWLR station to central server PC via GSM &GPRS networkshall be provided. The data from remote station should be in standard CSV format (as specified in technical Specifications) which is compatible with e-SWIS software	
11	The software should be provided to allow download the data from the DWLR data logger to a Laptop/hand held devices in the field.The downloaded data shall be in standard CSV format (as specified in technical specifications) which is compatible with e-SWIS software.	

Specifications of Data Server		<u>Make:</u> <u>Model No:</u> <u>Manufacturer Name, address, email, phone,</u> <u>website, fax</u>	
S. No:	Required Specification and Standards as per Bidding Document	Specification and Standards as offered in by Bidder	Remarks
1.	 Server having two nos. of x86 64-bit processor (Intel Xeon E5-2620 v4 or better), 64 GB DDRIII expandable to 256 GB or more, Integrated Graphics Controller, SAS RAID Controller supporting RAID 0, 1, 2*600 GB SAS Hot Swap HDD (10 K or higher RPM), Dual 1 Gbps Network port, 		

|--|--|

Specifications of Computer node (Workstation)		<u>Make:</u> <u>Model No:</u> <u>Manufacturer Name, address, email, phone,</u> <u>website, fax</u>	
Re	quired Specification and Standards as per Bidding Document	Specification and Standards as offered in by Bidder	Remarks
1	Windows 10 Home/Professional		
2	Intel H270 and above or equivalent		
3	Intel® Core [™] i7-6700T with Intel® HD Graphics 530 (2.8 GHz, up to 3.6 GHz, 8 MB cache, 4 cores) and above or equivalent		
4	8 GB DDR3L and above or equivalent (RAM)		
5	1 TB 7200 rpm SATA or better		
6	58.42 cm (23) diagonal WLED-backlit (1920 x 1080). Touch-enabled (optional)		
7	DVD-Writer		
8	Integrated 10/100/1000 Gigabit Ethernet LAN		
9	802.11b/g/n (1x1) and Bluetooth® 4.0 combo (Optional)		

10.	4 USB 2.0; 2 USB 3.0; 1 headphone/microphone combo	
11.	USB wired/wireless optical mouse	
12	USB wired/wireless standard keyboard	
13	Preinstalled MS Office Lifetime with Good antivirus is preferred.	

Specifications of Color printer	<u>Make:</u> <u>Model No:</u> <u>Manufacturer Name, address,</u> <u>email, phone, website, fax</u>	
Required Specification and Standards as per Bidding Document	Specification and Standards as offered in by Bidder	Remarks
A3 Size color printer		
Functions: Print, Copy, Scan		
Printing Up to 20 page/minute		
Black & color printing: As fast as 9.5 sec per page		
Recommended monthly page volume: 250 to 2000		
Processor speed: 600MHz		
Connectivity: ePrint capability		
Paper handling input, standard: 100sheet input tray		
Paper handling output, standard: 100-sheet face- down bin		

Specifications of Display Unit (LED)	<u>Make:</u> <u>Model No:</u> <u>Manufacturer Name, address,</u> <u>email, phone, website, fax</u>	
Required Specification and Standards as per Bidding Document	Specification and Standards as offered in by Bidder	Remarks
Screen Type : 42" Screen LED		
Display resolution: 1920 x 1080		
Colors: 256K colors		

Interfaces: 1 x Ethernet (RJ45) (max. 12Mbit/s), HDMI port, USB port 1 x USB Multimedia card / SD card slot combined	
Industrial Ethernet : 1 x Ethernet (RJ45)	
Protocols: Protocol (Ethernet) TCP/IP	
Image formats Supported: JPEG, JPS, MPO	
Sound technology : Dolby digital	

4. DRAWINGS

These Bidding Documents includes no drawings.

5. INSPECTIONS AND TESTS

The following inspections and tests shall be performed: **General**:

- 1. After manufacture, the supplier shall get each equipment/item of Goods inspected in manufacturer/s works as per approved datasheets and QAP and forward to the Purchaser along with his letter seeking to inspect an equipment/item of Goods conform to contract specifications.
- 2. Upon receipt of the test certificate and calibration certificates, the purchaser or its representative shall arrange for inspection and/or test of any or part or all the equipment/Goods prior to issuance of dispatch clearance. In cases where the supplies are received from abroad, the purchaser may waive the pre-dispatch inspection.
- 3. However, the inspection and dispatch clearance by the Purchaser or the waiver thereof shall not prejudice the right of the Purchaser or its consignee to test the equipment/goods on receipt at destination. Upon receipt of the goods at final destination, the Purchaser shall have the right to inspect and/or test the equipment/Goods to confirm their confirmity to contract specifications.
- 4. If the equipment fails to meet the contract specifications during inspection, whether pre dispatch or upon receipt of at final destination, the supplier shall take immediate steps to remedy the deficiency or replace the defective equipment to ensure that all supplies meet with the specifications specified in the contract

Inspection and tests prior to shipment of Goods and at final acceptance are as follows:

- 1. The inspection of the Goods shall be carried out to check whether the Goods are in conformity with the approved technical specifications attached to the contract and shall be in line with the inspection/test procedures laid down in the Technical Specifications and the General Conditions of contract. Following broad test procedure will generally be followed for inspection and testing of instruments. The supplier may dispatch the goods to the ultimate consignee after internal inspection testing along with the supplier's inspection report and manufacturer's warranty certificate based on the inspection waiver from purchaser. The purchaser will test the equipment after completion of the installation and commissioning at the site of the installation.
 - a. Site Preparation and Installation: The Purchaser will designate the installation sites before the scheduled installation date to allow the Supplier to perform a site inspection before the installation of the DWLRs and associated telemetry system
 - b. For site preparation, the supplier should furnish all details (installation drawings) to the purchaser sufficiently in advance so as to get the works completed before receipt of the equipment.

- 2. Complete hardware and software as specified in 'List of Goods and Delivery Schedule' Under the Schedule of Requirement should be supplied, installed and commissioned properly by the supplier prior to commencement of performance tests.
- 3. The acceptance test will be conducted by the purchaser/their consultant or any other person nominated by the purchaser, at its option. The acceptance will involve trouble-free operation for seven consecutive days. There shall not be any additional charges for carrying out acceptance tests. No malfunction, partial or complete failure of any part of hardware attached to printers, drivers etc. or bugs in the software should occur. All the software should be complete and no missing modules/sections will be allowed. The supplier shall maintain necessary log in respect of the results of the tests to establish to the entire satisfaction of the purchaser, the successful completion of the test specified. An average uptake efficiency of 90% for the duration of test period shall be considered as satisfactory.
- 4. In the event of the hardware and software failing to pass the acceptance test, a period not exceeding two weeks will be given to rectify the defects and clear the acceptance test, failing which the purchaser reserves the rights to get the equipment replaced by the supplier at no extra cost to the purchaser.
- 5. DWLRs procured would be subject to the Acceptance Protocol given below

ACCEPTANCE PROTOCOL

- 1. General
 - a. The delivery of goods/equipment and software should be in accordance with the contract agreement and the process of delivery will adhere to the following 'Acceptance Protocol'. The Acceptance Protocol shall serve as a formal guidance during delivery of the DWLRs. Its primary goals are twofold.
 - i. Ascertain the delivery and completeness of all ordered products and related documents.
 - **ii.** Check the functioning of the equipment and software in a formal way against the specifications by application of Acceptance Tests. The tests also verify the accuracy and stability of the equipment.
 - **b.** The Acceptance Protocol shall be executed in close co-operation between the Supplier and the Client.
 - **c.** Products shall be accepted only if they meet the requirements and are functioning in compliance with the technical specifications, and the related documents are complete and correct. Defective products and any other discrepancies shall have to be replaced/ resolved, within a pre-defined time frame as specified in bid document.
- 2. Documents
 - a. The following documents shall accompany the delivery of the instruments and software:
 - i. Administrative and Quality Assurance (QA) documents
 - ii. Test and calibration documents
 - iii. Manuals and Guidelines

All documents shall have identification and references to subject or instrument, date, time, location and officer in charge.

b. The Acceptance Report lays down the findings and observations during the execution of the Acceptance Protocol and is a formal document to record the acceptance or rejection of any item

as covered in the Bid document. Any flaws or findings are to be reported. The forms and checklists filled out during the execution of the Acceptance Protocol are to be enclosed with the Acceptance Report. The Supplier receives a signed copy of the Acceptance Report, which the Supplier can use as proof that the items listed in the report were accepted.

- c. The content of the various documents shall be as follows:
- 2.1 Administrative and QA documents: These QA documents shall include:
 - i) Production documents associated with the instruments.
 - ii) Type codes, serial numbers and other identification data on, possibly externally procured, sensors and major assemblies, to clearly demarcate the sensors/major assemblies associated with each DWLR.
 - iii) Shipping documents indicating instrument/product type, serial number, measuring range, cable length and other similar data.

2.2 Test and calibration documents:

- i) A comprehensive Method Statement on the applied calibration and in-factory test procedures shall accompany the bid. The Method Statement should define the test and calibration methods applied on the instruments and the components thereof. The Method Statement shall also include, for each calibrated product, an audit trail to national standards on all instruments and facilities used for testing and calibration. The Audit Trail Report shall associate the calibration of the reference instruments and test equipment to the national calibration standards.
- ii) If the Supplier or Manufacturer is not in a position to deliver an Audit Trail Report to the national standards, the Manufacturer shall explain what the quality standards are and how they are maintained and monitored.
- iii) Conditions during calibration, such as room and/or instrument temperature, equipment and facilities used, shall be included in the calibration and test documents.
- iv) The test and calibration documents shall contain the data generated during calibration and testing, including:
 - Calibration data supplied by the Manufacturer of pressure sensor
 - Calibration and test data of the data-logger electronics
 - Calibration data on overall DWLR calibration, i.e. comprising both pressure sensor and electronics. A table listing applied reference pressures versus instrument readings is to be delivered for each sensor and instrument. Furthermore, that table shall also show the test conditions during calibration
 - Data on hysteresis test, temperature tests, zero stability test, scale stability test
 - Humidity test, in particular for vented gauge pressure sensors
 - Temperature cycling of sensor and electronics
 - Spray test on enclosure(s), connectors and cables

2.3 Manuals and Guidelines

- i) The manuals shall meet the requirements on style and clarity, completeness, preciseness, detail and accessibility. This includes:
 - System manual,
 - Operation, Maintenance and Service manuals,
 - Observation guideline, and

- Training handouts.
- 3. Acceptance Tests

1. General

- i) Qualified engineers under responsibility of a test manager shall execute the Acceptance Tests. The progress of the Acceptance Tests would be monitored and supervised by the Client and/or his authorised representative. The Client may have any tests redone or additional tests executed as deem required based on the results of previous tests conducted. The Client's and/or his authorised representative shall have the right of access to any instrument and may request any data or information at any time. The Supplier has the obligation to deliver requested information without delay; i.e. collected test data and documents must be available at the test site.
- ii) It is important that all activities (what, when, where, who, which instrument, etc.) are annotated and uniquely linked to the individual instruments.
- iii) The Acceptance Tests mainly comprise three levels viz.:
 - <u>Functional Tests</u>: The Functional Tests shall verify the proper functioning of the instruments and the associated software. Primary goal is to verify that the instrument performs its functions according to the bid specifications.
 - <u>Accuracy Tests</u>: The Accuracy Tests shall verify that each individual instrument is functional and operates according to the bid specifications. A number of relatively simple accuracy tests are routinely exercised on the instruments.
 - <u>Overall Test</u>: The main purpose of the Overall Test is to verify the common features that are identical to all the instruments in a series. Typical components of the Overall Test are: - in-built software functions, materials of the instrument, cables, connectors, etc. Further tests include battery and memory autonomy, details of sensor specifications like temperature effects, hysteresis, long term stability etc.
 - The above tests can be executed at any one of the following locations:-Premises of the Manufacturer/Supplier; Premises of the Client; Independent organisation; at Site of installation
- iv) The charges for testing shall be borne by the Manufacturer/Supplier. The Client and/or his authorised representative may at his cost opt to be present during the performances of the tests.
- v) If the tests are executed at the Client's premises, the charge for testing shall be borne by the Client and the Supplier shall be responsible for conducting the tests. The bidder in his bid shall indicate the name of independent organisation and the charges for testing. The Client reserves the right to accept the independent organisation and its charges or get the tests done by any other agencies. However, the Supplier would be permitted to be present at these tests.

(Explanatory Note: Test report from manufacturer would be acceptable. In case purchaser desires to test the system from independent agency (ies), testing charges would be borne by purchaser.)

- vi) The details of these tests are as follows.
- **1.1. Functional Tests:** The Functional Tests include: visual inspection, and user tests.

- **1.1.1 Visual Inspection:** Visual inspection includes the following activities.
 - i) All items are visually checked for damage, e.g. on cables, sensor and housing.
 - ii) Availability of non-removable identification codes and specifications are verified, e.g. serial number, type identification, manufacturer and measuring range.
 - iii) Cables have to be marked: each cable is to have an identification code and name.
 - iv) Cable connectors shall have their ends marked suitably to indicate the device to which it is to be connected, e.g. PC, HHT, Power Supply etc. Suitable precaution shall be taken so that the connectors are not connected to wrong terminals, i.e. it shall be impossible to connect a power cable to a communication bulkhead socket.

1.1.2 User tests

- i) All instruments have to be identical except for measuring range, cable length, identification code and similar aspects. Consequently, there is no need to check the functionality of all systems. It is assumed that the functional compliance with the specifications is tested under the Overall Tests. The objective of the user test is to detect any malfunction and/or defect. From practical point of view, the user tests can be coupled with other test, e.g. the stability tests.
- ii) Basic functions to be tested are:
 - Pre-deployment preparation, e.g. setting of clock, erasing of memory, setting data logging parameters, entry of identification data
 - Facilities for execution of on-site functional checks
 - Data retrieval and data transfer to PC
 - Battery status and voltage
 - Simple output test by observing pressure reading while the sensor is immersed in a bucket filled with water

1.2 Accuracy Tests: The Accuracy tests include:

- accuracy tests on clock, and
- accuracy tests on pressure measurement

1.2.1 Accuracy tests on clock

- i) The clock of the data logger shall be carefully checked against national time, e.g. taking the radio broadcast time beeps as a reference. The data logger clock is set precisely and checked at the start of the individual tests and upon instrument and/or data retrieval. In between, the clock should not be readjusted.
- ii) The clock test shall cover at least 3 days to get sufficient time resolution. The reference clock, e.g. a watch, must be carefully tuned against national time prior to and during the tests. The clock drift, converted to seconds per month (31 days) shall comply with the defined specifications. This test method makes use of the specified time resolution of 1 s.

1.2.2 Accuracy tests on pressure measurement

i) The accuracy test on the pressure sensor is an overall accuracy test covering both the pressure and electronics systems. The pressure tests are to be executed against accurately known reference pressure(s). Pressure can be generated from compressed air (gas) or by submerging the sensor to known depths in water.

- Reference pressure may be created via a precision pressure reduction valve from a source of compressed air. A high precision sensor like a Digi Quartz pressure sensor or a Dead Weight Tester can be implemented to quantify the applied pressure. Pressure should be measured in kPa (or mbar).
- iii) When applying the immersion method it is much more difficult to check the instruments because water density affects the reading. Moreover, it is not simple to establish the exact depth of sensor immersion. And especially in narrow wells, while immersing a pressure sensor on its cable into a well, the water level will rise due to the additional volume of the immersed pressure sensor and cable. The water level will gradually fall again, when the well level adjusts again to equilibrium with the ground water level. In order to achieve a high accuracy these effects have to be assessed.
- iv) The pressure sensor tests include:
 - Zero stability test
 - Scale test
 - Scale stability test
- v) The pressure sensor tests shall focus on temperature effects on zero, scale and cable length, and in addition to that establish quantitative data on drift of zero, scale and creep of cable length.

1.2.2.1 Zero stability test

- During the zero-test the instruments are in logging mode, say at an interval of 30 minutes, and shall be kept in a separate room where they will not be touched for at least 3 days. The instruments must be dry, i.e. not in a bucket of water, to exclude any water effect on the sensor, and hence, the instrument reading is expected to be 0.0.
- ii) Under this test, each instrument will record its short term zero drift and inherently the effectiveness of the air-pressure compensation method. During the zero-test, the instruments shall be in the same and constant position, vertical or horizontal. The room temperature shall vary over 5 °C or more, e.g. due to daily temperature fluctuation, this to assess temperature effects on the instrument reading. This requirement may affect the choice of venue for the zero-tests. To avoid any adverse temperature strain, no direct sunlight shall fall on the instruments. At the end of the test, the collected data are offloaded from the data logger memory and analysed for zero stability. As the instruments are kept in air and are not touched, the reading shall be stable and not change over time that is not beyond permissible limits.
- iii) Room temperature is to be logged against time, preferably by digital method. In case the DWLR has a built-in temperature sensor, that sensor may be used for temperature logging. The pressure sensors shall not be tested in an air-conditioned room for several reasons. First, temperature fluctuations may be so rapid that the sensor temperature compensation scheme may not be able to cope with it. Moreover, rapid air-pressure fluctuations may not be handled properly by the air-vent system and/or the pressure measurement method. This is to be understood from the perspective that the instruments are designed to operate in wells where changes occur but not rapidly. One or more fans may be operated continuously to minimise temperature gradient across the test room.
- iv) To test the creep and elongation of the electrical cum suspension cable some vertical open space is required, e.g. a stairwell can be used for this purpose. However, it is important that the cable is protected against touch to avoid interference with the

measurements. The cable is loaded with some weight to emulate the weight of cable and sensor. The length of cable under tests shall be as long as possible, i.e. 10 m or more, to get the best accuracy of the tests. The lowest point is suspended to about 0.15 m above the floor. The gap between lowest point and floor is monitored against time. Initially readings are taken every 30 minutes for 12 hours, subsequently the reading interval may be increased to 6 hours. The cable test shall be executed during 7 days. Resolution of measurement should be 1 mm or better. The result is to be presented in mm length change per meter suspended cable length. Only one cable is to be tested.

- **1.2.2.2 Scale test:** A precisely known pressure is applied on the instrument and the instrument reading is taken. The instrument reading is converted into level or pressure whatever is applicable. The calculated value is compared with the applied value; the difference is regarded as the FS error. In case the specifications of the applied pressure sensor may give reason to doubt the instrument's linearity, then a mid-scale test is to be executed as well.
- **1.2.2.3 Scale stability test:** Scale stability is tested by subjecting the instrument to the fullscale pressure for at least 24 hours. During the test, the applied pressure/level is to be accurately monitored by taking reference readings either by a reference logger of high accuracy or by manual readings. The accuracy and resolution of the reference measurement must be 1 mm water column or 0.01 kPa (0.1 mbar).
- 1.3 Overall Test: Part of the Overall Test is also covered under the Functional Tests and Accuracy Tests. The Overall Test comprises tests on:
 - autonomy
 - fitness for environment
 - functionality
 - calibration
 - stability
 - reproducibility, and
 - main power failure

Details of the various tests are as follows.

- 1.3.1 **Autonomy:** Two autonomy tests shall be conducted:
- battery capacity versus the power consumption per measurement, and
- memory capacity
- i) <u>Battery autonomy test</u>: To execute the test, the instrument is set to a fast data collection interval and the capacity, i.e. the number of samples, is established by a continuous process of data collection until the batteries are depleted. The test shall be executed on new batteries. In this context, the batteries are deemed depleted when the instrument stops functioning because the battery voltage watch-dog function detects a too low battery voltage or the normal operation of the instrument stops.
- ii) <u>Memory capacity verification</u>: The memory is filled at the highest data-recording rate and the volume of collected data is verified against the bid specification. This test could be combined with the battery autonomy test and the samples are taken at a high rate to minimize the test duration.

1.3.2 **Fitness for environment**

- i) Connectors, cable glands, cables and housing must be suitable for the environment of operation, be it submersed, in a well or above the ground. Water ingress can be assessed by visual inspection and / or by insulation measurement. Visual inspection may only reveal ingress of a significant amount of water. The insulation measurement is more sensitive, especially for cables, connectors and encapsulated electronics, but requires specialised equipment.
- ii) The above-surface components have to be compatible with IP65 standard and shall be tested accordingly by exposing them to a heavy shower for 3 minutes. Subsequently the ingress of water is assessed by opening of the instrument and connectors.
- iii) The submersible components must comply with IP68 standards. To verify this, the instrument shall be suspended in a well for at least one week, to a maximum depth, without affecting the calibration of the pressure sensor and not exceeding 2 times the rated measuring range. Although most pressure sensors can withstand considerably more than 2 times the rated measuring range, there is no need to exceed this. Prior to this test, the zero and scale of the sensor have to be established and verified again upon recovery.

1.3.3 Functionality

- i) Functionality has to be verified for all requirements for operation of the DWLR with reference to the bid specifications and the instrument specifications as given by the Manufacturer. Missing functionality shall be reported.
- ii) All (software) functions as stated in the instrument manual(s) and the instrument specifications are tested for correct functioning. Any detected flaws are reported which shall be repaired/rectified by the Manufacturer/Supplier within seven days.

1.3.4 Calibration

- i) The instrument calibration is checked for compliance with the bid specifications. In particular accuracy, stability, linearity, hysteresis and reproducibility are verified.
- ii) The scale or sensitivity of the complete instrument, including sensor and electronics, is to be checked for at least 11 pressures, equally distributed over the full measuring range. Furthermore, the calibration data as delivered with the instrument are verified for accuracy and consistency with data obtained from the calibration tests. The calibration may be executed by application of accurately known air-pressure or by immersion in a well. The temperature effects on the calibration should also be verified at low, mid and maximum range temperatures.
- iii) **Note:** Prior to execution of immersion tests, the effective position of the sensor membrane relative to the sensor housing is to be assessed and measured, e.g. by execution of a bucket experiment. In this experiment, the sensor is partly immersed in a water filled bucket to a depth where the related reading has changed by several centimetres, relative to the 'in-air' reading. During the test, the position of the water surface on the sensor's body shall be observed and marked accordingly. The 'effective-sensor-zero' lies below the water surface during the test. The position of the sensor reading expressed in centimetres. The effective-sensor-zero may be close to the sensor membrane but not necessarily coincides with it.

- 1.3.5 **Stability:** Stability related to the DWLR is defined as a variation over time of the instrument specifications, whereas the circumstances and pressure do not vary. Parameters to be checked are:
- zero: offset stability
- scale: full scale stability
- cable: length (extension/contraction) and creep stability

The methods to assess these stability factors are explained under the section on Accuracy Tests.

- 1.3.6 **Reproducibility:** The sensor reading in air is annotated, subsequently the sensor is immersed to the rated measuring depth, and a stable reading is collected. Then the sensor is recovered to the surface and again a stable reading is taken. This process is repeated 5 times and results are duly annotated. It is important that during the complete test the instrument is kept in the same, vertical position.
- 1.3.7 Main power failure:
- i) Some instruments operate on replaceable batteries or even external power and have a built-in back-up facility, usually based on a Lithium battery. It is quite possible that on some instruments the external power supply or the replaceable batteries fail because of total depletion, disconnection, defect on the cable or connector etc. In such an event, the instrument must retain its clock, its program setting and most importantly all the collected data.
- ii) The Functional Tests are executed in conjunction with the stability test. Upon finalising these tests and after successful retrieval of all test data the power is disconnected by removing the main power batteries and/or disconnecting the power cable. The instrument is to be left in that state for at least 24 hours. Then the power shall be connected again and clock, program settings and recorded data are checked for availability and correctness.
- iii) Instruments with entirely built-in factory replaceable batteries cannot be tested in this way. In such case, the Manufacturer shall provide a technical description of the method applied to avoid loss of clock, program and collected data.
- 4. Test Execution: Two test programmes are to be executed:
 - All Units Test Programme
 - Single Unit Test Programme

Prior to execution of the tests, a detailed test script has to be drafted and agreed upon. The test script shall define:

- test sequence.
- the test conditions and requirements for each test.
- place of the test.
- person(s) responsible for conducting the tests.
- reporting requirements.
- handling failures and problems.
- **4.1 All Units Test Programme:** The All Units Test Programme aims to identify the malfunctioning instruments and those not compliant with the bid specifications. The Functional Tests, the Clock

Accuracy Test and the Zero Stability Test must be executed on each instrument. The design of the tests shall be selective and practical and enable execution with simple means, preferably at the Client's premises.

4.2 Single Unit Test Programme

- i) A full system shall be tested, that is: pressure sensor, electronics, cable, power supply, DRS, software and manuals. The Single Unit Test Programme is a combination of the Functional Tests, the Accuracy Tests and the Overall Test. The Client shall randomly select an instrument for testing from the instruments delivered. The Single Unit Test Programme can only be started after verification that all documents related to the order/delivery, including manuals, calibration data, QA data etc., are delivered to the Client. Any other unit, for which doubts arise on its compliance with the bid specifications, shall also be tested on the client's request.
- ii) Failing to pass the Single Unit Test Programme results in rejection of the entire delivery until the defective units have been repaired to meet the technical specifications, and such to the satisfaction of the Client.
- 5. Evaluation of test results: The test results have to be evaluated and results and conclusion shall be reported. Instruments that do not meet the bid specifications, shall be replaced by properly functioning and satisfactorily tested instruments.
- 6. Post acceptance performance monitoring
 - i) After installation and field deployment the instrument performance shall be continuously monitored by taking manual observations, initially at a relatively high rate, e.g. every 3 hours, gradually migrating towards the normal monitoring interval. The level comparisons are required for reference and validation purposes. Manual observations and automatic readings shall be taken at short intervals after each other, in practice the time difference shall be kept to less than 15 minutes. The primary criterion though, is that the manual reading shall be taken before the water level changes more than 1 mm.
 - ii) Other checks are on functioning of the internal clock, data recording and retrieval, battery discharge, siltation of the sensor, moisture ingress and any development of corrosion.
 - iii) The tape used for taking the reference readings shall be of high accuracy, considerably better than the accuracy of the DWLR, only then the performance of the high accuracy instruments can be monitored. However, an accuracy of 1 mm over the full measuring range is enough. Only best quality tapes, e.g. the electric types, come close to this requirement. The tapes shall be checked for accuracy against a precise reference, e.g. over 10 or 20 m on a single stretch. Verification by a standard ruler will not reveal to overall accuracy of a tape. The 'tape verification reference' could be prepared using high accuracy geodetic equipment. A long, straight corridor, or a quiet stretch of road, could accommodate the length reference marks, the accuracy should be 1 mm relative to the reference point (0.000 m).
- 7. Instrument History File: For each instrument, an individual History File shall be opened and maintained (The Instrument history file shall be suppliers' scope.). In the History File the full instrument history and all documents generated shall be stored. This also includes any changes, adaptations, repairs etc. made to the instruments. The products and results of the execution of the Acceptance Protocol shall be included in the Instrument History File. Some document types and entries are listed below:

- 7.1 **Instrument identification:** The instrument identification uniquely defines the instrument particulars.
 - Make, vendor, service provider, date of manufacturing, date of delivery
 - Instrument make, model and serial number
 - Instrument configuration
 - Measuring range
 - Cable type, length
 - Manual version
 - Instrument status: e.g. working, under calibration, under repair
- **7.2** Functional, Accuracy and Over-all tests: For each of the three test categories, a separate and unambiguous record shall be maintained. The test conditions and results shall be duly recorded. Obviously any failures or irregularities shall be annotated accurately and comprehensively, as well as the actions taken and their results. At least the following data shall be recorded:
 - Administrative data: what, when, where, who, which instrument and configuration
 - List of tests
 - Specifications for each test
 - Results of each test
 - Failures, actions, conclusions

8.0 Acceptance Certificates:

• On successful completion of acceptability test, receipt of deliverables etc., and after the purchaser is satisfied with the working of the <u>DWLR</u> system, the acceptance certificate signed by the supplier and the representative of the purchaser will be issued. The date on which such certificate is signed shall be deemed to be the date of successful commissioning of the systems

6. PROFORMA OF CERTIFICATE FOR ISSUE BY THE PURCHASER AFTER

SUCCESSFUL INSTALLATION AND STARTUP OF THE SUPPLIED GOODS

[This is to be attached for supply, erection, supervision of erection and startup contracts only]

No.

Date:

M/s.

Sub: Certificate of startup of the supplied Goods

1. This is to certify that the plant/s as detailed below has/have been received in good condition along with all the standard and special accessories (subject to remarks in Para No. 2) and a set of spares in accordance with the Contract/Specifications. The same has been installed and commissioned.

(a)	Contract No.	dated
-----	--------------	-------

(b) Description of the plant_____

(c) Plant Nos. _____

(d) Quantity _____

(e) Rail/Roadways Receipt No. _____dated_____

- (f) Name of the consignee _____
- (g) Date of start up and proving test _____
- 2. Details of accessories/spares not yet supplied and recoveries to be made on that account.
 - S. No. Description Amount to be recovered
- 3. The proving test has been done to our entire satisfaction and operators have been trained to operate the plant.
- 4. The supplier has fulfilled his contractual obligations satisfactorily. *

The supplier has failed to fulfill his contractual obligations with regard to the following:

- (a)
- (b)
- (c)
- (d)
- 5. The amount of recovery on account of non-supply of accessories and spares is given under Para No. 2.
- 6. The amount of recovery on account of failure of the supplier to meet his contractual obligations is as indicated in endorsement of the letter.

Signature _____

Name _____

Designation with Stamp _____

* Explanatory notes for filling up the certificates:

- (a) He has adhered to the time schedule specified in the contract in dispatching the documents/drawings pursuant to Technical Specifications.
- (b) He has supervised the startup of the plan in time i.e., within the period specified in the contract from the date of intimation by the Purchaser in respect of the installation of the plant.
- (c) Training of personnel has been done by the supplier as specified in the contract
- (d) In the event of documents/drawings having not been supplied or installation and startup of the plant have been delayed on account of the supplier, the extent of delay should always be mentioned.

PART 3 – CONTRACT

SECTION VIII – GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract

Table of Clauses

1.	DEFINITIONS	
2.	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	.132
3.	CORRUPT & FRAUDULENT PRACTICES	.132
4.	INTERPRETATION	.132
5.	LANGUAGE	.133
6.	DELETED	.133
7.	ELIGIBILITY	.133
8.	NOTICES	.134
9.	GOVERNING LAW	.134
10.	SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES	.134
11.	INSPECTIONS AND AUDIT BY THE BANK	.134
12.	SCOPE OF SUPPLY	.135
13.	DELIVERY AND DOCUMENTS	.135
14.	SUPPLIER'S RESPONSIBILITIES	.135
15.	CONTRACT PRICE	.135
16.	TERMS OF PAYMENT	.135
17.	TAXES AND DUTIES	
18.	PERFORMANCE SECURITY	.136
19.	COPYRIGHT	
20.	CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION	
21.	SUBCONTRACTING	
22.	SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS	
23.	PACKING AND DOCUMENTS	.138
24.	INSURANCE	
25.	TRANSPORTATION & INCIDENTAL SERVICES	
26.	INSPECTIONS AND TESTS	.139
27.	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	.140
28.	WARRANTY	
29.	PATENT INDEMNITY	
30.	LIMITATION OF LIABILITY	
31.	CHANGE IN LAWS AND REGULATIONS	
32.	FORCE MAJEURE	.143
33.	CHANGE ORDERS AND CONTRACT AMENDMENTS	
34.	EXTENSIONS OF TIME	
35.	TERMINATION	
36.	ASSIGNMENT	.145

Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract

- **1. Definitions** The following words and expressions shall have the meanings hereby assigned to them:
 - (a) "Bank" means the World Bank and refers to the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) or the International Development Association (IDA).
 - (b) "Contract" means the Contract Agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the Supplier, together with the Contract Documents referred to therein, including all attachments, appendices, and all documents incorporated by reference therein.
 - (c) "Contract Documents" means the documents listed in the Contract Agreement, including any amendments thereto.
 - (d) "Contract Price" means the price payable to the Supplier as specified in the Contract Agreement, subject to such additions and adjustments thereto or deductions there from, as may be made pursuant to the Contract.
 - (e) "Day" means calendar day.
 - (f) "Completion" means the fulfillment of the Related Services by the Supplier in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract.
 - (g) "GCC" mean the General Conditions of Contract.
 - (h) "Goods" means all of the commodities, raw material, machinery and equipment, and/or other materials that the Supplier is required to supply to the Purchaser under the Contract.
 - (i) "Purchaser's Country" is India.
 - (j) "Purchaser" means the entity purchasing the Goods and Related Services, as specified in the **SCC.**
 - (k) "Related Services" means the services incidental to the supply of the goods, such as insurance, installation, start-up, training and initial maintenance and other such obligations of the Supplier under the Contract.
 - (I) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract.

- (m) "Subcontractor" means any natural person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, to whom any part of the Goods to be supplied or execution of any part of the Related Services is subcontracted by the Supplier.
- (n) "Supplier" means the natural person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, whose bid to perform the Contract has been accepted by the Purchaser and is named as such in the Contract Agreement.
- (o) "The Project Site," where applicable, means the place named in the **SCC.**
- Contract
 Documents
 Subject to the order of precedence set forth in the Contract Agreement, all documents forming the Contract (and all parts thereof) are intended to be correlative, complementary, and mutually explanatory. The Contract Agreement shall be read as a whole.
- Corrupt & 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Appendix to the GCC.
 Practices
 - 3.2 The Purchaser requires the Supplier to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee.
- **4.** Interpretation 4.1 If the context so requires it, singular means plural and vice versa.
 - 4.2 Incoterms
 - (a) Unless inconsistent with any provision of the Contract, the meaning of any trade term and the rights and obligations of parties there under shall be as prescribed by Incoterms.
 - (b) The terms EXW and other similar terms, when used, shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms specified in the **SCC** and published by the International Chamber of Commerce in Paris, France.
 - 4.3 Entire Agreement

The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Purchaser and the Supplier and supersedes all communications, negotiations and agreements (whether written or oral) of the parties with respect thereto made prior to the date of Contract.

4.4 Amendment

No amendment or other variation of the Contract shall be valid unless it is in writing, is dated, expressly refers to the Contract, and is signed by a duly authorized representative of each party thereto.

- 4.5 Nonwaiver
- (a) Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 4.5(b) below, no relaxation, forbearance, delay, or indulgence by either party in enforcing any of the terms and conditions of the Contract or the granting of time by either party to the other shall prejudice, affect, or restrict the rights of that party under the Contract, neither shall any waiver by either party of any breach of Contract operate as waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach of Contract.
- (b) Any waiver of a party's rights, powers, or remedies under the Contract must be in writing, dated, and signed by an authorized representative of the party granting such waiver, and must specify the right and the extent to which it is being waived.
- 4.6 Severability

If any provision or condition of the Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of the Contract.

- 5. Language 5.1 The Contract as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Supplier and the Purchaser, shall be English. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in English language, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, this translation shall govern.
 - 5.2 The Supplier shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Supplier.
- 6. Deleted
- 7. Eligibility
 7.1 The Supplier and its Subcontractors shall have the nationality of an eligible country. A Supplier or Subcontractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if it is a citizen or constituted, incorporated,

or registered, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country.

- 7.2 All Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank shall have their origin in Eligible Countries. For the purpose of this Clause, origin means the country where the goods have been grown, mined, cultivated, produced, manufactured, or processed; or through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components.
- Notices
 Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing to the address specified in the SCC. The term "in writing" means communicated in written form with proof of receipt.
 - 8.2 A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later.
- **9. Governing Law** 9.1 The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Union of India.
- 10. Settlement of
Disputes10.1The Purchaser and the Supplier shall make every effort to resolve
amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute
arising between them under or in connection with the Contract.
 - 10.2 If, after twenty-eight (28) days, the parties have failed to resolve their dispute or difference by such mutual consultation, then either the Purchaser or the Supplier may give notice to the other party of its intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this matter may be commenced unless such notice is given. Any dispute or difference in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given in accordance with this Clause shall be finally settled by arbitration. Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after delivery of the Goods under the Contract. Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of procedure **specified in the SCC**.
 - 10.3 Notwithstanding any reference to arbitration herein,
 - (a) the parties shall continue to perform their respective obligations under the Contract unless they otherwise agree; and
 - (b) the Purchaser shall pay the Supplier any monies due the Supplier.
- 11. Inspections and Audit by the Bank
 11.1
 The Supplier shall keep, and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Subcontractors to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Goods in such form and details as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs

- 11.2 The Supplier shall permit, and shall cause its Subcontractors to permit, the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the Supplier's offices and all accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the bid, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the Bank if requested by the Bank. The Supplier's and its Subcontractors and consultants' attention is drawn to Clause 3 [Fraud and Corruption], which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under this Sub-Clause 11.1 constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the Bank's prevailing sanctions procedures)
- **12. Scope of Supply** 12.1 The Goods and Related Services to be supplied shall be as specified in the **Special Condition of Contract**.
- 13. Delivery and Documents
 13.1 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 33.1, the Delivery of the Goods and Completion of the Related Services shall be in accordance with the Delivery and Completion Schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements. The details of shipping and other documents to be furnished by the Supplier are specified in the SCC.
- 14. Supplier's
Responsibilities14.1The Supplier shall supply all the Goods and Related Services included
in the Scope of Supply in accordance with GCC Clause 12, and the
Delivery and Completion Schedule, as per GCC Clause 13.
- **15. Contract Price** 15.1 Prices charged by the Supplier for the Goods supplied and the Related Services performed under the Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Supplier in its bid, with the exception of any price adjustments authorized in the **SCC**.
- 16. Terms of
Payment16.1The Contract Price, including any Advance Payments, if applicable,
shall be paid as specified in the SCC.
 - 16.2 The Supplier's request for payment shall be made to the Purchaser in writing, accompanied by invoices describing, as appropriate, the Goods delivered and Related Services performed, and by the documents submitted pursuant to GCC Clause 13 and upon fulfillment of all other obligations stipulated in the Contract.
 - 16.3 Payments shall be made promptly by the Purchaser, but in no case later than sixty (60) days after submission of an invoice or request for payment by the Supplier, and after the Purchaser has accepted it.
 - 16.4 The payments shall be made in Indian Rupees to the Supplier under this Contract.
 - 16.5 In the event that the Purchaser fails to pay the Supplier any payment by its due date or within the period set forth in the **SCC**, the Purchaser

shall pay to the Supplier interest on the amount of such delayed payment at the rate shown in the **SCC**, for the period of delay until payment has been made in full, whether before or after judgment or arbitrage award.

- **17. Taxes and Duties** 17.1 The Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, duties, license fees, etc., incurred until delivery of the contracted Goods to the Purchaser.
- 18. Performance 18.1 If required as specified in the SCC, the Supplier shall, within twenty-eight (28) days of the notification of contract award, provide a performance security for the performance of the Contract in the amount specified in the SCC.
 - 18.2 The proceeds of the Performance Security shall be payable to the Purchaser as compensation for any loss resulting from the Supplier's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.
 - 18.3 As specified in the SCC, the Performance Security shall be denominated in the Indian Rupees, and shall be in the format stipulated by the Purchaser in the **SCC**, or in another format acceptable to the Purchaser.
 - 18.4 The Performance Security shall be discharged by the Purchaser and returned to the Supplier not later than twenty-eight (28) days following the date of Completion of the Supplier's performance obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations, unless specified otherwise in the **SCC**.
- 19. Copyright 19.1 The copyright in all drawings, documents, and other materials containing data and information furnished to the Purchaser by the Supplier herein shall remain vested in the Supplier, or, if they are furnished to the Purchaser directly or through the Supplier by any third party, including suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials shall remain vested in such third party
- 20. Confidential Information
 20.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall keep confidential and shall not, without the written consent of the other party hereto, divulge to any third party any documents, data, or other information furnished directly or indirectly by the other party hereto in connection with the Contract, whether such information has been furnished prior to, during or following completion or termination of the Contract. Notwithstanding the above, the Supplier may furnish to its Subcontractor such documents, data, and other information it receives from the Purchaser to the extent required for the Subcontractor to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Supplier shall obtain from such

Subcontractor an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Supplier under GCC Clause 20.

- 20.2 The Purchaser shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Supplier for any purposes unrelated to the contract. Similarly, the Supplier shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Purchaser for any purpose other than the performance of the Contract.
- 20.3 The obligation of a party under GCC Sub-Clauses 20.1 and 20.2 above, however, shall not apply to information that:
- (a) the Purchaser or Supplier need to share with the Bank or other institutions participating in the financing of the Contract;
- (b) now or hereafter enters the public domain through no fault of that party;
- (c) can be proven to have been possessed by that party at the time of disclosure and which was not previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other party; or
- (d) otherwise lawfully becomes available to that party from a third party that has no obligation of confidentiality.
- 20.4 The above provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall not in any way modify any undertaking of confidentiality given by either of the parties hereto prior to the date of the Contract in respect of the Supply or any part thereof.
- 20.5 The provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall survive completion or termination, for whatever reason, of the Contract.
- **21. Subcontracting** 21.1 The Supplier shall notify the Purchaser in writing of all subcontracts awarded under the Contract if not already specified in the bid. Such notification, in the original bid or later shall not relieve the Supplier from any of its obligations, duties, responsibilities, or liability under the Contract.
 - 21.2 Subcontracts shall comply with the provisions of GCC Clauses 3 and 7.
- **22. Specifications** 22.1 Technical Specifications and Drawings

and Standards (a) The Goods and Related Services supplied under this Contract shall conform to the technical specifications and standards mentioned in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements and, when no applicable standard is mentioned, the standard shall be equivalent or superior to

the official standards whose application is appropriate to the Goods' country of origin.

- (b) The Supplier shall be entitled to disclaim responsibility for any design, data, drawing, specification or other document, or any modification thereof provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser, by giving a notice of such disclaimer to the Purchaser.
- (c) Wherever references are made in the Contract to codes and standards in accordance with which it shall be executed, the edition or the revised version of such codes and standards shall be those specified in the Schedule of Requirements. During Contract execution, any changes in any such codes and standards shall be applied only after approval by the Purchaser and shall be treated in accordance with GCC Clause 33.
- 23. Packing and Documents
 23.1 The Supplier shall provide such packing of the Goods as is required to prevent their damage or deterioration during transit to their final destination, as indicated in the Contract. During transit, the packing shall be sufficient to withstand, without limitation, rough handling and exposure to extreme temperatures, salt and precipitation, and open storage. Packing case size and weights shall take into consideration, where appropriate, the remoteness of the goods' final destination and the absence of heavy handling facilities at all points in transit.
 - 23.2 The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall comply strictly with such special requirements as shall be expressly provided for in the Contract, including additional requirements, if any, specified in the **SCC**, and in any other instructions ordered by the Purchaser.
- 24. Insurance 24.1 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the Goods supplied under the Contract shall be fully insured—against loss or damage incidental to manufacture or acquisition, transportation, storage, and delivery, in accordance with the applicable Incoterms or in the manner specified in the SCC.
- 25. Transportation &
Incidental
Services25.1Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, responsibility for arranging
transportation of the Goods shall be in accordance with the specified
Incoterms.
 - 25.2 The Supplier may be required to provide any or all of the following services, including additional services, if any, **specified in Schedule of Requirements and SCC:**
 - (a) performance or supervision of on-site assembly and/or start-up of the supplied Goods;

- (b) furnishing of tools required for assembly and/or maintenance of the supplied Goods;
- (c) furnishing of a detailed operations and maintenance manual for each appropriate unit of the supplied Goods;
- (d) performance or supervision or maintenance and/or repair of the supplied Goods, for a period of time agreed by the parties, provided that this service shall not relieve the Supplier of any warranty obligations under this Contract; and
- (e) training of the Purchaser's personnel, at the Supplier's plant and/or on-site, in assembly, start-up, operation, maintenance, and/or repair of the supplied Goods
- 25.3 Prices charged by the Supplier for incidental services, if not included in the Contract Price for the Goods, shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services
- 26. Inspections and
Tests26.1The Supplier shall at its own expense and at no cost to the Purchaser
carry out all such tests and/or inspections of the Goods and Related
Services as are specified in the SCC.
 - 26.2 The inspections and tests may be conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, at point of delivery, and/or at the Goods' final destination, or in another place in the Purchaser's Country as specified in the **SCC.** Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 26.3, if conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, all reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Purchaser.
 - 26.3 The Purchaser or its designated representative shall be entitled to attend the tests and/or inspections referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 26.2, provided that the Purchaser bear all of its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with such attendance including, but not limited to, all traveling and board and lodging expenses.
 - 26.4 Whenever the Supplier is ready to carry out any such test and inspection, it shall give a reasonable advance notice, including the place and time, to the Purchaser. The Supplier shall obtain from any relevant third party or manufacturer any necessary permission or consent to enable the Purchaser or its designated representative to attend the test and/or inspection.
 - 26.5 The Purchaser may require the Supplier to carry out any test and/or inspection not required by the Contract but deemed necessary to verify that the characteristics and performance of the Goods comply with the technical specifications codes and standards under the Contract, provided that the Supplier's reasonable costs and expenses incurred

in the carrying out of such test and/or inspection shall be added to the Contract Price. Further, if such test and/or inspection impedes the progress of manufacturing and/or the Supplier's performance of its other obligations under the Contract, due allowance will be made in respect of the Delivery Dates and Completion Dates and the other obligations so affected.

- 26.6 The Supplier shall provide the Purchaser with a report of the results of any such test and/or inspection.
- 26.7 The Purchaser may reject any Goods or any part thereof that fail to pass any test and/or inspection or do not conform to the specifications. The Supplier shall either rectify or replace such rejected Goods or parts thereof or make alterations necessary to meet the specifications at no cost to the Purchaser, and shall repeat the test and/or inspection, at no cost to the Purchaser, upon giving a notice pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.4.
- 26.8 The Supplier agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of the Goods or any part thereof, nor the attendance by the Purchaser or its representative, nor the issue of any report pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.6, shall release the Supplier from any warranties or other obligations under the Contract.
- 27. Liquidated Damages 27.1 Except as provided under GCC Clause 32, if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods by the Date(s) of delivery or perform the Related Services within the period specified in the Contract, the Purchaser may without prejudice to all its other remedies under the Contract, deduct from the Contract Price, as liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the percentage specified in the SCC of the delivered price of the delayed Goods or unperformed Services for each week or part thereof of delay until actual delivery or performance, up to a maximum deduction of the percentage specified in those SCC. Once the maximum is reached, the Purchaser may terminate the Contract pursuant to GCC Clause 35.
- **28. Warranty** 28.1 The Supplier warrants that all the Goods are new, unused, and of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials, unless provided otherwise in the Contract.
 - 28.2 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 22.1(b), the Supplier further warrants that the Goods shall be free from defects arising from any act or omission of the Supplier or arising from design, materials, and workmanship, under normal use in the conditions prevailing in the country of final destination.
 - 28.3 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**, the warranty shall remain valid for twelve (12) months after the Goods, or any portion thereof as the

case may be, have been delivered to and accepted at the final destination indicated in the **SCC**, or for eighteen (18) months after the date of shipment from the port or place of loading in the country of origin, whichever period concludes earlier.

- 28.4 The Purchaser shall give notice to the Supplier stating the nature of any such defects together with all available evidence thereof, promptly following the discovery thereof. The Purchaser shall afford all reasonable opportunity for the Supplier to inspect such defects.
- 28.5 Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, within the period specified in the **SCC**, expeditiously repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, at no cost to the Purchaser.
- 28.6 If having been notified, the Supplier fails to remedy the defect within the period specified in the **SCC**, the Purchaser may proceed to take within a reasonable period such remedial action as may be necessary, at the Supplier's risk and expense and without prejudice to any other rights which the Purchaser may have against the Supplier under the Contract.
- 29. Patent Indemnity 29.1 The Supplier shall, subject to the Purchaser's compliance with GCC Sub-Clause 29.2, indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and its employees and officers from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Purchaser may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract by reason of:
 - (a) the installation of the Goods by the Supplier or the use of the Goods in the country where the Site is located; and
 - (b) the sale in any country of the products produced by the Goods.

Such indemnity shall not cover any use of the Goods or any part thereof other than for the purpose indicated by or to be reasonably inferred from the Contract, neither any infringement resulting from the use of the Goods or any part thereof, or any products produced thereby in association or combination with any other equipment, plant, or materials not supplied by the Supplier, pursuant to the Contract.

29.2 If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against the Purchaser arising out of the matters referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 29.1, the Purchaser shall promptly give the Supplier a notice thereof, and the Supplier may at its own expense and in the Purchaser's name conduct such proceedings or claim and any negotiations for the settlement of any such proceedings or claim.

- 29.3 If the Supplier fails to notify the Purchaser within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claim, then the Purchaser shall be free to conduct the same on its own behalf.
- 29.4 The Purchaser shall, at the Supplier's request, afford all available assistance to the Supplier in conducting such proceedings or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Supplier for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing.
- 29.5 The Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless the Supplier and its employees, officers, and Subcontractors from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Supplier may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract arising out of or in connection with any design, data, drawing, specification, or other documents or materials provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser.
- 30. Limitation of Liability
- 30.1 Except in cases of criminal negligence or willful misconduct,
 - (a) the Supplier shall not be liable to the Purchaser, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, for any indirect or consequential loss or damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits or interest costs, provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any obligation of the Supplier to pay liquidated damages to the Purchaser and
 - (b) the aggregate liability of the Supplier to the Purchaser, whether under the Contract, in tort or otherwise, shall not exceed the total Contract Price, provided that this limitation shall not apply to the cost of repairing or replacing defective equipment, or to any obligation of the supplier to indemnify the purchaser with respect to patent infringement
- 31. Change in Laws and Regulations
 31.1 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, if after the date of 28 days prior to date of Bid submission, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or bylaw having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated, or changed in India, where the Site is located (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the Delivery Date and/or the Contract Price, then such Delivery Date and/or Contract Price shall be

correspondingly increased or decreased, to the extent that the Supplier has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such additional or reduced cost shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been accounted for in the price adjustment provisions where applicable, in accordance with GCC Clause 15.

- **32. Force Majeure 32.1** The Supplier shall not be liable for forfeiture of its Performance Security, liquidated damages, or termination for default if and to the extent that its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.
 - 32.2 For purposes of this Clause, "Force Majeure" means an event or situation beyond the control of the Supplier that is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and its origin is not due to negligence or lack of care on the part of the Supplier. Such events may include, but not be limited to, acts of the Purchaser in its sovereign capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargoes.
 - 32.3 If a Force Majeure situation arises, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Purchaser in writing, the Supplier shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event.

33. Change Orders and Contract Amendments

- ers33.1The Purchaser may at any time order the Supplier through notice in
accordance GCC Clause 8, to make changes within the general scope
of the Contract in any one or more of the following:
 - drawings, designs, or specifications, where Goods to be furnished under the Contract are to be specifically manufactured for the Purchaser;
 - (b) the method of shipment or packing;
 - (c) the place of delivery; and
 - (d) the Related Services to be provided by the Supplier.
 - 33.2 If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Supplier's performance of any provisions under the Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or in the Delivery/Completion Schedule, or both, and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Supplier for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within twenty-eight (28)

days from the date of the Supplier's receipt of the Purchaser's change order.

- 33.3 Prices to be charged by the Supplier for any Related Services that might be needed but which were not included in the Contract shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services.
- 33.4 Subject to the above, no variation in or modification of the terms of the Contract shall be made except by written amendment signed by the parties.
- 34. Extensions of Time
 34.1 If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Supplier or its subcontractors should encounter conditions impeding timely delivery of the Goods or completion of Related Services pursuant to GCC Clause 13, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of the delay, its likely duration, and its cause. As soon as practicable after receipt of the Supplier's notice, the Purchaser shall evaluate the situation and may at its discretion extend the Supplier's time for performance, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of the Contract.
 - 34.2 Except in case of Force Majeure, as provided under GCC Clause 32, a delay by the Supplier in the performance of its Delivery and Completion obligations shall render the Supplier liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to GCC Clause 26, unless an extension of time is agreed upon, pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 34.1.

35. Termination 35.1 Termination for Default

- (a) The Purchaser, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract, by written notice of default sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract in whole or in part:
 - (i) if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods within the period specified in the Contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Purchaser pursuant to GCC Clause 34;
 - (ii) if the Supplier fails to perform any other obligation under the Contract; or
 - (iii) if the Supplier, in the judgment of the Purchaser has engaged in fraud and corruption, as defined in GCC Clause 3, in competing for or in executing the Contract.
- (b) In the event the Purchaser terminates the Contract in whole or in part, pursuant to GCC Clause 35.1(a), the Purchaser may procure, upon

such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, Goods or Related Services similar to those undelivered or not performed, and the Supplier shall be liable to the Purchaser for any additional costs for such similar Goods or Related Services. However, the Supplier shall continue performance of the Contract to the extent not terminated.

35.2 Termination for Insolvency.

(a) The Purchaser may at any time terminate the Contract by giving notice to the Supplier if the Supplier becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In such event, termination will be without compensation to the Supplier, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy that has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Purchaser

- 35.3 Termination for Convenience.
- (a) The Purchaser, by notice sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, at any time for its convenience. The notice of termination shall specify that termination is for the Purchaser's convenience, the extent to which performance of the Supplier under the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.
- (b) The Goods that are complete and ready for shipment within twenty-eight (28) days after the Supplier's receipt of notice of termination shall be accepted by the Purchaser at the Contract terms and prices. For the remaining Goods, the Purchaser may elect:
 - (i) to have any portion completed and delivered at the Contract terms and prices; and/or
 - (ii) to cancel the remainder and pay to the Supplier an agreed amount for partially completed Goods and Related Services and for materials and parts previously procured by the Supplier.
- **36. Assignment** 36.1 Neither the Purchaser nor the Supplier shall assign, in whole or in part, their obligations under this Contract, except with prior written consent of the other party.

APPENDIX TO GENERAL CONDITIONS Bank's Policy- Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

(text in this Appendix shall not be modified)

Guidelines for Procurement of Goods, Works, and Non-Consulting Services under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits & Grants by World Bank Borrowers, dated January 2011:

"Fraud and Corruption:

- 1.16 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank loans), bidders, suppliers, contractors and their agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts.⁹ In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:
 - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;¹⁰;
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;¹¹
 - (iii) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;¹²
 - (iv) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;¹³
 - (v) "obstructive practice" is:

⁹ In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

¹⁰ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "*another party*" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "*public official*" includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

¹¹ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

¹² For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

¹³ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

- (aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
- (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 1.16(e) below.
- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- (c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the loan allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement or the implementation of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank's sanctions procedures,¹⁴ including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time: (i) to be awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (ii) to be a nominated¹⁵;
- (e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors, and their sub-contractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records, and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank."

¹⁴ A firm or individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract upon: (i) completion of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, and through the application the World Bank Group corporate administrative procurement sanctions procedures for fraud and corruption; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an ongoing sanctions proceeding. See footnote 14 and paragraph 8 of Appendix 1 of these Guidelines.

¹⁵ A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

SECTION IX. SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall supplement and / or amend the General Conditions of Contract (GCC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC.

[The Purchaser shall select insert the appropriate wording using the samples below or other acceptable wording, and delete the text in italics]

GCC 1.1(j)		
	The Purchaser is:	
	The Chairman ,	
	Central Ground Water Board, Bhujal Bhawan,	
	N.H. IV, Faridabad – 121001	
	Phone No : :0129-2477186, FAX: 0129-2477200 E mail id: seop-cgwb@nic.in	
GCC 1.1 (o)	The Project Site(s)/Final Destination(s) is/are: as mentioned in Schedule of Requirements Section IV.	
GCC 4.2 (a)	The meaning of the trade terms shall be as prescribed by Incoterms.	
GCC 4.2 (b)	The version edition of Incoterms shall be 2010	
GCC 8.1	For notices , the Purchaser's address shall be:	
	The Chairman, Central Ground Water Board, Bhujal Bhawan, N.H. IV, Faridabad – 121001 Phone No : :0129-2477186, FAX: 0129-2477200 E mail id: seop-cgwb@nic.in Country: INDIA	
GCC 10.2	Settlement of Disputes	
	 The dispute settlement mechanism to be applied shall be as follows: (a) The initial Dispute Resolution Board shall comprise i) The Member (CGWB) ii) The Finance And Account Officer, CGWB iii) The Officer In-Charge, Data Centre, Central Ground Water Board 	
	(b) In case of Dispute or difference arising between the Purchaser and a domestic supplier relating to any matter arising out of or connected with this agreement, such disputes or difference shall be settled in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996. The arbitral tribunal shall consist of 3 arbitrators	

P	
	 one each to be appointed by the Purchaser and the Supplier. The third Arbitrator shall be chosen by the two Arbitrators so appointed by the Parties and shall act as Presiding arbitrator. In case of failure of the two arbitrators appointed by the parties to reach upon a consensus within a period of 30 days from the appointent of the arbitrator appointed subsequently, the Presiding Arbitrator shall be appointed by the "Indian Council of Arbitration/president of the institution of Engineers (India) (c) In the case of a dispute with a Foreign Supplier, the dispute shall be settled in accordance with provisions of UNCITRAL (United nations Commission on International Trade Law) Arbitrator Rules. The Arbitral Tribunal shall consist of three Arbitrators one each to be appointed by the Purchaser and the Supplier. The third Arbitrator shall be chosen by the two Arbitrators appointed by the parties, and shall act as presiding arbitrator. In case of failure of the two arbitrators appointed by the parties, and shall act as presiding arbitrator. In case of failure of the two arbitrators appointed by the parties to reach upon a consensus within a period of 30 days from the appointment of the arbitrator appointed subsequently, the Presiding Arbitrator shall be appointed by the "Indian Council of Arbitration/President of the Institution of Engineers (India) (d) If one of the parties fails to appoint its arbitrator in pursuance of sub-clause (a) and (b) above, within 30 days after receipt of the notice of the appointent of its arbitrator by the other party, then the "Indian Council of Arbitration/President of the Institution of Engineers (India). (e) Arbitration proceedings shall be furnished to each of the parties. (e) Arbitration proceedings and that of all documents and communications between the parties shall be English. (f) The decision of the majority of arbitrators shall be final and binding upon both parties. The cost and expenses of Arbitration appointed by such pary
GCC 10.4	Add as Clause 10.4 to the GCC the following: 10.4 All court cases shall be settled within jurisdiction of New Delhi

GCC 12.1, 25.2 and 25.3	The scope of supply for the Goods and Related Services to be supplied shall be as specified in the schedule of requirement.	
GCC 13.1	Details of Shipping and other Documents to be furnished by the Supplier are given below:	
	GCC 13.1 Upon delivery of the goods to the transporter/ consignee, the supplier shall notify the purchaser and mail the following documents to the Purchaser :	
	(i) Four Copies of the Supplier invoice showing contract number, goods description, quantity, unit price, total amount;	
	(ii) Delivery note, Railway receipt, or Road consignment note or equivalent transport document or acknowledgement of receipt of goods from the Consignee;	
	(iii) Four Copies of packing list identifying contents of each package;	
	(iv) Insurance certificate;	
	(v) Manufacturer's/ Supplier's warranty certificate;	
	(vi) Inspection certificate issued by the nominated inspection agency, and the Supplier's factory inspection report; and	
	(vii) Certificate or origin.	
	The above documents shall be received by the Purchaser before arrival of the Goods (except where it is handed over to the Consignee with all documents) and if not received, the supplier will be responsible for any consequent expenses.	
GCC 14.1	The supplier is responsible for and obliged to conduct all contracted activities in accordance with the contract using state- of- the- art methods and economic principles and exercising all means available to achieve the performance specified in the Contract. The Supplier is obliged to work closely with the Purchaser's staff, act within its own authority and abide by directives issued by the Purchaser and implementation activities. The Supplier will abide by the job safety measures prevalent in India and will free the Purchaser from all demands or responsibilities arising from accidents or loss of life the cause of which is the supplier's negligence. The Supplier will pay all indemnities arising from such incidents and will not holding the activities of its personnel or sub- contracted personnel and will hold itself responsible for any misbehavior/ misconduct. The Supplier will treat as confidential all data and information about the purchaser, obtained in the execution of his	

	responsibilities, in strict confidence and will not reveal such information to any other party without the prior written approval of the Purchaser. The bidder is responsible for following all Labour Laws, any other expenses applicable on the Service Engineer.
GCC 15.1	The prices charged for the Goods supplied and the related Services performed <i>shall</i> not be adjustable.
GCC 16.1	Payment shall be made in Indian Rupees in the following manner:
	The Bidder shall be paid 40% (<i>as per clause i</i>) of the Contract Price excluding AMC cost and the balance 60% (<i>as per clause ii</i>) of the Contract Price excluding AMC cost for O&M and data communication over the next five years @ 12% per year which include 5 year period of onsite warranty and two years of AMC as mentioned below: (<i>Note: Contract Price does not include any taxes or levies, as may be applicable and treated separately</i>) • Disbursement of Payment shall be as under:
	• 10% of Contract Price excluding AMC cost as advance payment against
	Bank Guarantee
	 20% of Contract Price excluding AMC cost, plus total GST amount charged in Invoice against Supply of Goods shall be released after 30 days of the successful Delivery and installation of all the instruments/ Equipment on pro-rata basis as per Schedule of Requirements and its final acceptance. 20% of Contract Price excluding AMC cost will be paid on pro-rata basis after 30 days of testing, commissioning and final acceptance. Advance payment of 10% paid against Bank Guarantee will be adjusted in 20% payment paid on testing, commissioning and final acceptance as stated above.
	 40% of the Contract Price excluding AMC cost but including replacement of parts if any and seamless data communication, here onwards referred as maintenance charges over the balance 05(five) years (5 years of warranty period) shall be paid as follows;
	 12% per Year to be paid on Half Yearly basis (6% at every six month) inclusive of GST payable on Supply of related services excluding AMC. The Conditions (applicable for this payment) shall be governed by <u>Annexure I: Service Level Conditions</u>
	• AMC cost inclusive of GST payable on it, shall be paid on half yearly basis after 5 years of onsite manufacturer warranty period.

	• Payment of GST will be against valid Invoice as per GST Act & Rules and submission of GST Registration Certificate along with declaration that GST Registration is valid and all liabilities towards GST have been discharged by the vendor. GST amount will be reimbursed after 30 days of submission of valid Invoice and all required documents and declaration by vendor.
	v) For all the payments to be made, against Bank guarantees, the bank guarantee shall be issued by a Scheduled Indian Bank or a foreign bank located in India. The guarantees issued by other banks should be confirmed by a Scheduled Indian Bank or a foreign bank operating in India.
	vi) Bank guarantee for advance payment shall be released not later than 30 days after the adjustment of advance amount against payment due after testing, commissioning and final acceptance. The bank guarantee should be valid for a period of 180 days or till the date of final testing, commissioning and final acceptance whichever is later, from the date of issue of bank guarantee including claim period.
	The bidder shall indicate in the Price Schedules specifying all items prices shown therein including the unit prices and total prices of the goods and related services along with GST or any other duties and taxes applicable against the schedule of requirements. GST if leveable shall be paid as applicable. Any statutory variation shall be paid on submission of documentary evidence. Bidders shall be required to quote HSN code and applicable tax rates.
	"GST" means all four Acts CGST, SGST, UTGST, IGST and any other regulations by Government in relation to GST and rules thereto.
	Note: The award of CAMC (Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Cost) for 2 Years after expiring of warranty will be at the discretion of purchaser, subjected to NHP tenure
GCC 16.5	The payment-delay period after which the Purchaser shall pay interest to the supplier shall be 60 days.
	The interest rate that shall be applied is 4 % per annum.
GCC 17	In the case of tax/ duty waiver, the purchaser will issue only the certificates in terms of the Government of India's notification as per information given by supplier in form stipulated in Section IV. Supplier is solely responsible for obtaining such benefits and in case of failure to receive such benefits, the purchaser will not compensate the supplier separately.

shall recov contra	ble by the contractor to the State Government or Local authorities in respect or material used by the contractor in the works/ services then in such a case, it be lawful to the Tendering authority and it will have the right and be entitled to er the amount paid in the circumstances as aforesaid from the dues of the factor. itions for Reimbursement of Levy/ Taxes, if Levied after Receipt of
Tend	
statut furthe of ten prope paid, (whos	indered rates shall be inclusive of all taxes and levies payable under respective es. However, pursuant to the Constitution (46th Amendment) Act, 1982, if any r tax or levy is imposed by Statute, after the last stipulated date for the receipt der including extensions if any and the contractor thereupon necessarily and rly pays such taxes/levies, the contractor shall be reimbursed the amount so provided such payment, if any, is not, in the opinion of the Tendering authority be decision shall be final and binding on the contractor) attributable to delay in tion of work/services within the control of the contractor.
this c inspe autho	upplier shall keep books of accounts and other documents for the purpose of ondition as may be necessary to clearly arrive at such amounts and shall allow ction of the same by a duly authorized representative of the Tendering rity and further shall furnish such other information/ document as the ering authority may require from time to time.
contra	mance Security to the Purchaser shall be for an amount of 10% of the act value, valid up to 60 days after the date of completion of performance tions including warranty obligations i.e. 05 years+60 days
the w exten propo	event of any correction of defects or replacement of defective material during arranty period, the warranty for the corrected/ replaced material shall be ded to a further period of 12 months and the Performance Bank guarantee for rtionate value shall be extended 60 days over and above the extended nty period.
	erformance Security shall be in the form of a "Bank Guarantee" drawn in r of the Purchaser.
follow	arge of the performance Security shall take place not later than 60 days ing the date of completion of the Supplier's performance obligations, including arranty obligation, under the contract.
GCC 18.5 Add a	s Clause 18.5 to the GCC the following:

	In the event of any contractual amendment, the Supplier shall, within 28 days of receipt of such amendment, furnish the amendment to the Performance Security, rendering the same valid for the duration of the Contract, as amended for 60 days after the completion of performance obligations including warranty obligations.
GCC 23.2	Packing Instructions: The Supplier will be required to make separate packages for each Consignee. Each package will be marked on three sides with proper paint/ indelible ink with the following:
	(i) Project; (ii) Contract No.; (iii) Country of Origin of Goods; (iv) Supplior's Name; (v) Packing List Reference Number.
	Suppliers should use recycled materials as much as possible for packing
	=-Deleted
GCC 24.1	Supplier to arrange for safety & security of goods and their accessories to be used for supply of data till completion of performance obligations at his own risk, No additional cost shall be paid.
GCC 25.1	The Supplier is required under the Contract to transport the Goods duly insured to the specified final destination, and until the commissioning and final acceptance of each equipment and all related costs shall be included in the Contract Price.
GCC 25.2	Incidental services to be provided are: All services under GCC clause 25.2
GCC 26.1	 The inspections and tests shall be as detailed in Para 5 of Section VI-Schedule of Requirement: (a) The supplier shall get each item indicated in the Schedule of requirement inspected in manufacturer's works or at the premises of supplier and submit a test certificate and also manufacturer's guarantee /warranty certificate that the items confirms to the laid down specification.
	The Purchaser or its representative may inspect and /or test any or all the items to confirm their conformity to the contract specification, prior to dispatch from the manufacturer's premises/ supplier's premises. Such inspection and clearance will not prejudice the right of the consignee to inspect and test the items on receipt at destination to verify conformity to technical specification. If the items are fails to meet the laid down specifications the supplier shall take immediate steps to remedy the deficiency or replace the defective parts of the each to the satisfaction of the purchaser/ consignee.
	 For validation of data, physical measurement shall be cross checked with the data generation from DWLR in presence of CGWB during installation, testing and commissioning of DWLR at destination.

	 Random inspection shall be carried out by CGWB for validating the data with physical measurement during the contract period at regular interval for which arrangement for measurement shall be made by the contractor.
GCC 26.2	The Inspections and tests shall be conducted at remote site and Regional Office data centre, CGWB, Chennai India as specified in technical specification.
GCC 27.1	The liquidated damages shall be 0.5% of contract price per week or part thereof. This is applicable up to successful installation testing and commissioning.
	Further, for the performance towards the related services, following shall govern-
	 Penalty for faulty stations/ data centers; 1. For remote site Rs 500 per day. 2. For Data centre Rs 1000 per day. The conditions when the penalty as above would be applicable, provision of clause 28.5 to be referred
GCC 27.2	The maximum amount of liquidated damages shall be 10% of the contract price.
GCC 28.3	The period of validity of the Warranty shall be Sixty (60) months after successful installation, testing, commissioning and acceptance. Warranty period shall be followed by 2 years comprehensive AMC. This includes seamless communication of data through telemetry system to RODC, CGWB, Chennai, e SWIS platform and National data center. The AMC period can be suitable extended as per mutually acceptable terms and conditions. After completion of contract, the equipments with accessories used for this contract shall be handed over to the purchaser in running condition i.e. flawless data supply.
GCC 28.5	 Bidder shall provide at least one dedicated Service Engineer cum operator at the Regional office Data Center for Operation of DWLR system and ensure seamless data transfer from remote DWLR stations to National data Center through GSM/GPRS network & then to E-SWIS software through internet. The processed data from e-SWIS in the form of reports/ bulletins will be transmitted to Regional & National Data Centre as per technical specifications. The period for repair or replacement shall be 7daya. It is the responsibility of the bidder to rectify/ replace the equipment without any notice from purchaser and it is the duty of its personnel i.e. dedicated service engineer cum data entry operator to notice that site become non-operational or become faulty. A remote site shall be treated as faulty if it fails to respond or transmits erroneous data equal to or more than 8 data measurement i.e. equal to or more than 2 transmission cycles /2 days. The decision of CGWB about errors in data shall be final and binding. If a remote site continues to remain "fail" for more than 2 days in excess of the maintenance time schedule of 7 days. The contractor is liable to pay period.
	penalty @ Rs. 500/- per Day/ remote site. The Day for the purpose of penalty shall be taken as failure period of 24 hours or part thereof for a particular remote site.

	The encount of momentary will be many on the first of the second se	
	The amount of penalty will be recovered from performance bank guarantee or	
	payment due to bidder during warranty period or AMC period.	
	The penalty for faulty data centers beyond MRTR (Maximum Response Time for Repair) would be Rs 1000/- per day	
GCC 31.1	Repair) would be Rs 1000/- per day.	
000 31.1	This clause will apply only to variations in GST and other taxes payable in India on the final product which is being supplied and not for variations in tax on the	
	the final product which is being supplied and not for variations in tax on the individual components / raw materials which go into the product	
GCC 33	individual components / raw materials which go into the product.	
(additional	5 The Supplier shall replace/ re-install/re-commission Goods in case of damage/theft or vandalism not attributable to the Supplier, of the line item/items listed in Table	
clause)	3A- Price Schedule for Supply of Goods as per Schedule of Requirement and Table	
ciausej	3B- Price and Completion Schedule-Related Services of this contract and payment	
	shall be accordingly made at the quoted rates in this contract by the Supplier for the	
	line item. The procedure adopted shall be in accordance with GCC 33- Change	
	Orders and Contract Amendments.	
GCC 37	Add the following additional sub clauses.	
	37.1	
	Supplier integrity:	
	The supplier is responsible for and obliged to conduct all contracted activities in	
	accordance with the contract using state- of- the- art methods and economic	
	principles and exercising all means available to achieve the performance specified	
	in the Contract.	
	37.2	
	Supplier's obligations:	
	The Overland a shift of the second state should be Developed at the state of the second	
	The Supplier is obliged to work closely with the Purchaser's staff, act within its own	
	authority and abide by directives issued by the Purchaser and implementation	
	activities.	
	The Supplier will abide by the job safety measures prevalent in India and will free	
	the Purchaser from all demands or responsibilities arising from accidents or loss of	
	life the cause of which is the supplier's negligence. The Supplier will pay all	
	indemnities arising from such incidents and will not hold the purchaser responsible	
	or obligated.	
	The Supplier is responsible for managing the activities of its personnel or sub-	
	contracted personnel and will hold itself responsible for any misdemeanors.	
	The Supplier will treat as confidential all data and information about the purchaser,	
	obtained in the execution of his responsibilities, in strict confidence and will not	
	reveal such information to any other party without the prior written approval of the	
	Purchaser.	
	37.3	
	Purchaser.	
	01.0	

Site preparation and installation
The supplier is responsible for associated civil work required for installation and commissioning of the supplies in the Schedule of Requirement under the heading of Relative services
37.4
Hardware installation:
The Supplier is responsible for all unpacking, assemblies, wiring, installations, cabling between hardware units and connecting to power supplies. The Supplier will test all hardware operations and accomplish all adjustments necessary for successful and continuous operation of the hardware at all installation sites.

SERVICE LEVEL CONDITIONS

1. The bidder is fully responsible to keep the system functional during installation, warranty and AMC period. The bidder should take suomotu action to repair any faulty instrument and should not wait for a complaint from purchaser to initiate action

2. DEFINITIONS

i) REMOTE SITE

Remote site is the site at remote location where Digital water level recorder (DWLR) systems are installed. The Remote site DWLR generally installed within the Piezometers' headwork, dug wells (open wells), Ground water level monitoring site or any combination of these sites

ii) DATA CENTRE

Data centre is the respective server where data is expected to be received. In case of GSM & GPRS based telemetry, the data centre is the server installed in National data centre for receiving GSM & GPRS transmission.

iii) INVALID DATA

A data would be considered **invalid** if

- a) The value recorded / transmitted is beyond permissible limit for that variable. The valid permissible upper limits and lower limits for each monitoring variable for each site would be provided to bidder by the purchaser.
- b) If the sensor value recorded / transmitted is absurd values or sudden variation in the value (may be within the specified limits) which is not in-line with the actual physical parameter. (e.g. If the Water level sensor recorded / transmitted value is showing absurd sudden variation of 2mts (beyond the limits of rate of change of sensor value) with respective to the previous measurement interval, then this data is the invalid data).
- c) If the sensor value recorded / transmitted is having frequent / periodic gapes then the data will be considered as invalid data.
- d) If the sensor value recorded / transmitted is remain constant, even if there is variation in the physical parameters. (e.g. If the Water level recorded / transmitted value is showing constant / fix value even there is variation in the water level, then this data is the invalid data)
- e) If the sensor value recorded / transmitted is not in line with the value of co-located automatic / manual observation of the same sensor parameter.

iv) FAILED DATA TRANSMISSION

For each remote station, each scheduled transmission (for all variables including battery voltage) would consist of one data transmission. A data transmission would be considered *failed* if any of the following conditions are true

- There is no transmission of data from **remote site**
- Data is transmitted from remote site but not received at data centre / e-SWIS.
- Data is recorded in data logger but not transmitted
- Data is not recorded by data logger
- Battery voltage not transmitted

- Only battery voltage is transmitted without any actual data from sensors
- Data is transmitted but data values are **invalid**.

v) FAULTY STATION

A station would be considered faulty if:

In case of DWLR data received at National Data Center, if there is \geq 8 data measurement (\geq 2 transmission cycles / 2days) are failed / invalid data receptions.

vi) FAULTY DATA CENTRE

A Data Centre shall be treated as Faulty if

- Vital Hardware Equipment's installed by bidder at Data Centre Viz. Server, GSM modem, online 3 KVA UPS, FTP Server services, Firewall system etc. are not functioning properly.
- Bidder has failed to pay the communication charges (SIM, internet, GSM/GPRS etc.) & system is not in function due to unpaid communication charges.
- Unauthorized absence of Bidders Operator/ Service engineer at Data Centre.

vii) MAXIMUM RESPONSE TIME FOR REPAIR (MRTR)

- The MRTR for Remote station would be 7 days
- The MRTR for Data Centre would be 2 days

viii) MINIMUM TIME BETWEEN REPAIRS PER STATION

• The minimum time between repairs is six months. If a station went faulty for reasons attributed to bidder and availed of MRTR once, it would not be eligible to avail the free repair period within payment period (six months)

2. PAYMENT FOR DATA RECEPTION

• The payment would be released proportion to data received at the Data centre. A table below presents the percentage of data reception and corresponding payment

Percentage of data received	Payment to be made to vendor
90-100%	100% of (6% of contract price to be paid six monthly as per SCC clause no. 16.1 (ii))
80-89.99 %	90% of (6% of contract price to be paid six monthly as per SCC clause no. 16.1 (ii))
70-79.99 %	80 % of (6% of contract price to be paid six monthly as per SCC clause no. 16.1 (ii))
60-69.99 %	70 % of (6% of contract price to be paid six monthly as per SCC clause no. 16.1 (ii))
50- 59.99%	60% of (6% of contract price to be paid six monthly as per SCC clause no. 16.1 (ii))
40- 49.99%	40%of (6% of contract price to be paid six monthly as per SCC clause no. 16.1 (ii))

30-39.99%	25% of (6% of contract price to be paid six monthly as per SCC clause no. 16.1 (ii))
Below 30%	NIL of (6% of contract price to be paid six monthly as per SCC clause no. 16.1 (ii))

The calculations for data reception percentage are as below

Data reception percentage for each station =

[1- (No of Failed transmissions / No of transmissions expected)] *100

Data reception percentage for each station is calculated for payment period (six months)

Number of transmissions expected is calculated based on transmission cycle. For 6-hourly transmission cycle, if there are 182 days in six months period,

The no. of expected transmissions = 182 (days) * 4 (transmissions per day) for a given station.

If a station went faulty during payment period of six months and availed of free time of MRTR (7 days), the 7 days period would be subtracted from no. of expected transmissions. For example, if a station went faulty and payment period is for 182 days, the number of transmissions expected would be calculated as:

Number of transmissions expected = (182-7) * 4; here 7 days time to repair. However, this deduction would be allowed only once in six months period for any given station.

Total data Reception percentage = $\frac{\sum_{i=1}^{n} Data \ reception \ percentage \ of \ i^{th} station}{n}$

Where n is number of remote stations

 In case the percentage of data reception is below 50% continuously for 3 months, the Purchaser may initiate termination process as per GCC clause no. 35. Attachment: Price Adjustment Formula

Deleted

SECTION X – CONTRACT FORMS

Table of Forms

1. LETTER OF ACCEPTANCE	
2. CONTRACT AGREEMENT	
3. PRFORMANCE SECURITY	169
4. BANK GUARANTEE FOR ADVANCE PAYMENT	170

1. LETTER OF ACCEPTANCE

[letterhead paper of the Purchaser]

To: [name and address of the Supplier]

[date]

Subject: Notification of Award Contract No.

You are requested to furnish the Performance Security within 28 days in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, using for that purpose the of the Performance Security Form included in Section X, Contract Forms, of the Bidding Document.

Attachment: Contract Agreement

2. CONTRACT AGREEMENT

[The successful Bidder shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT is made

the [insert: number] day of [insert: month], [insert: year].

BETWEEN

- (1) [insert complete name of Purchaser], a [insert description of type of legal entity, for example, an agency of the Ministry of of the Government of { insert name of Country of Purchaser }, or corporation incorporated under the laws of { insert name of Country of Purchaser }] and having its principal place of business at [insert address of Purchaser] (hereinafter called "the Purchaser"), and
- (2) [Insert name of Supplier], a corporation incorporated under the laws of [insert: country of Supplier] and having its principal place of business at [insert: address of Supplier] (hereinafter called "the Supplier").

WHEREAS the Purchaser invited bids for certain Goods and ancillary services, viz., [insert brief description of Goods and Services] and has accepted a Bid by the Supplier for the supply of those Goods and Services in the sum of [insert Contract Price in words and figures, expressed in the Contract currency(ies)] (hereinafter called "the Contract Price").

NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract referred to.
- 2. The following documents shall constitute the Contract between the Purchaser and the Supplier, and each shall be read and construed as an integral part of the Contract Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other contract documents: In the event of any discrepancy or inconsistency within the Contract documents, then the documents shall prevail in the order listed below.
- (a) The letter of Acceptance
- (b) this Contract Agreement
- (c) The Supplier's letter of Bid and original completed Schedules including Price Schedules
- (d) Special Conditions of Contract
- (e) General Conditions of Contract
- (f) Technical Requirements (including Schedule of Requirements and Technical Specifications)
- (g) [Add here any other document(s)listed in GCC/SCC as part of contract]
- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Purchaser to the Supplier as hereinafter mentioned, the Supplier hereby covenants with the Purchaser to provide the Goods and Services and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.

4. The Purchaser hereby covenants to pay the Supplier in consideration of the provision of the Goods and Services and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of *[insert the name of the Contract governing law country]* on the day, month and year indicated above.

For and on behalf of the Purchaser

Signed: [insert signature] in the capacity of [insert title or other appropriate designation] in the presence of [insert identification of official witness]

For and on behalf of the Supplier

Signed: [insert signature of authorized representative(s) of the Supplier] in the capacity of [insert title or other appropriate designation] in the presence of [insert identification of official witness]

3. Performance Security

[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Beneficiary: [insert name and Address of Purchaser]

Date: _ [Insert date of issue]

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]

We have been informed that _ [insert name of Supplier, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the contract] dated [insert date] with the Beneficiary, for the supply of _ [insert name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a performance guarantee is required.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of *[insert amount in figures]* () *[insert amount in words]*,¹ such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that the Applicant is in breach of its obligation(s) under the Contract, without the Beneficiary needing to prove or to show grounds for your demand or the sum specified therein.

This guarantee shall expire, no later than the Day of, 2...², and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office indicated above on or before that date.

[signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

¹ The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount specified in the Letter of Acceptance, and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary.

4. Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment

[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month, and year) of Bid Submission] NCB No. and title: [insert number and title of bidding process]

[bank's letterhead]

Beneficiary: [insert legal name and address of Purchaser]

ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.: [insert Advance Payment Guarantee no.]

We, [insert legal name and address of bank], have been informed that [insert complete name and address of Supplier] (hereinafter called "the Supplier") has entered into Contract No. [insert number] dated [insert date of Agreement] with you, for the supply of [insert types of Goods to be delivered] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Supplier, we hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of *[insert amount(s)*¹⁶ *in figures and words]* upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing declaring that the Supplier is in breach of its obligation under the Contract because the Supplier used the advance payment for purposes other than toward delivery of the Goods.

It is a condition for any claim and payment under this Guarantee to be made that the advance payment referred to above must have been received by the Supplier on its account [insert number and domicile of the account]

This Guarantee shall remain valid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment received by the Supplier under the Contract until *[insert date¹⁷]*.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No.758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.

¹⁶*The bank shall insert the amount(s) specified in the SCC and denominated, as specified in the SCC, either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser.*

¹⁷ Insert the Delivery date stipulated in the Contract Delivery Schedule. The Purchaser should note that in the event of an extension of the time to perform the Contract, the Purchaser would need to request an extension of this Guarantee from the bank. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the Guarantee. In preparing this Guarantee, the Purchaser might consider adding the following text to the Form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "We agree to a one-time extension of this Guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Purchaser's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to us before the expiry of the Guarantee."

<u>CHECKLIST</u>

Checklist:

(it should be the first document of your bid numbered as page1.)

S.	Documents	Page Number
No. 1.	Proof of Nationality in accordance with ITB 4.4	
2.	Tender document duly signed	
<u>2.</u> 3.	No conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4.3	
5.	Not having been declared ineligible by the bank as described in ITB, 4.5	
4.	ITB 11.2(a) Letter of bid (Technical Part) in accordance with ITB 12	
4 . 5.	Bid Security as per the tender document	
-		
6.	Written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB Clause 20.2 (Power of Attorney	
7.	Documentary evidence in accordance with ITB Clauses 16, that the Goods and Related Services conform to the Bidding Documents and of eligible origin.	
8.	Manufacturer's authorization form	
9.	Copy of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by all members. Lead partner of the joint venture may be defined	
10.	Details in accordance with ITB 16.4	
11.	Model Offered	
	Model No.	
	Manufactured By	
	Country of Origin	
12.	Performance statement as per bid document.	
13.	Document proof for Capacity to have a cash flow as per tender	
14.	Documents for annual turnover period of 5 years shall be reckoned from 31st	
	march of financial year preceding the year in which bid is published. (2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18 and 2018-19)	
15.	Documents for continuous business of supplying and after sale services of	
	products similar to that specified in the 'Schedule of requirement' during the	
	last 5 years prior to date of bid submission.	
16.	Documents for the legal status, place of registration and principal place of	
	business of the company or firm or partnership, etc.;	
17.	Details of experience and past performance on equipment offered and on	
	those of similar nature within the past seven years (Prior to the date of bid	
	submission) and details of current contracts in hand and other commitments	
10	(suggested Proforma given in Section IV).	
18.	The bidder should furnish a brief write-up, backed with adequate data as per	
10	tender	
19.	Reports on Financial standing of the bidders such as profit and loss	
	statements, balance sheets and auditor's report for the past three years,	
20	bankers certificate etc.	
20.	Should possess GST Registration. In case of foreign bidder, if presently bidder	
	is not having any office(s) in India, he has to provide the GST registration	
21	certificate within one month of award of contract.	
21.	Documents to ascertain that the bidder must have supplied, tested, and	
	commissioned the Digital/ Automatic Water Level Recorder stations with GSM	

	/ GPRS based telemetry to the extent of (comprising of minimum 1 data logger and sensor at each station) in any two of the year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document and should be in use satisfactorily with no adverse report for at least one year preceding the date of bid opening.	
22.	Bidder or JV partner should furnish the documentary evidence from the manufacturer of the equipment to establish that the manufacturer has manufactured and supplied the quantity of the DWLR station equipment as per tender in any two year during a period of last 7 years from the last date of submission of bid document.	
23.	The bidder should have after sales support in the region (within a radius of 500 km from the State Capital). If bidder does not have any after sales support office within 500 km from state Capital at the time of bidding, he shall require to be establish the same within one month after successful award of contract	
24.	Confirm in clear terms that all the facilities exist for inspection and testing and these will be made available to the purchaser or his representative for inspection.	
25.	Technical responsive form	
26.	Any other document required in the tender.	

Signature of Bidder

NOTE: The bidders shall put serial number on all the pages as per checklist before uploading on the portal. Bidders will be responsible if their bids become non-responsive due to submission without page number and as per checklist.